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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIEM
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Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu
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Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick
Mr. Chen Maosheng

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan
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Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert
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Mr. Henry Tan (retired on 6 May 2013)
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Mr. Lo Ka Leong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIEF
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 7548 22

Year ended

31 December 2013
Bit—ZT—=

TZAE+—LEE

HKS$’ millionE &S T

Year ended

31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F
+TZA=+—HIEFE
HK$ million & &5 7T

Revenue =2
EBITDA* RIMBRFIE ~ BiE
BRI BRI
Profit before tax* R A1 725 F >
Net profit attributable to ViN/NCIE= XN
owners of the Company PE{h &R
— Underlying net profit* — R
— Reported net profit —BRmE AR
Basic earnings per share® SREXREF

— AR E

— ABREAEAETE
BEREFRE"

—BRPHRE

—BRREFRIIE

—EERESRREEE
pidNnd Sy

— Based on underlying net profit*

— Based on reported net profit
Full-year dividend per share"

— Interim dividend per share

— Special dividend per share

— Proposed final dividend per share
Dividend payout ratio*

BREEFE"
FREL=R

Net asset value per share”
Net gearing

Excluding:

(1) Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$1,122.9
million (2012: HK$20.1 million), net of portion shared by non-controlling
shareholders and deferred tax.

2 Share-based payments of HK$41.4 million (2012: HK$97.5 million), net of
portion shared by non-controlling shareholders.

» Adjusted for the bonus share issue incurred for the year ended 31 December 2012
and 2013 as if the bonus share issue had occurred on 1 January 2012.

# Calculated base on underlying net profit
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRmE

Revenue

E S

HK$ Million
HEBT
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30,000
27,000
24,000
21,000
18,000
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9,000 7,082
o

1,558
146 243 410 513 734 899 975

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 \2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
2T -FNA[ZE+= A April-Dec 2002"

Note: Changed financial year end to December from March 2002 onwards

* Annualized

2000 Excluding the gain from the spin off of copper foil business of HK$178.4 million

2006 Excluding the gain from the spin off of laminate business of HK$4.8 billion and

discount on acquisition of HK$49.7 million

2007 Excluding the gain on fair value change of conversion and redemption option
derivative of HK$182.4 million; loss on disposal and deemed disposal of interest
in an associate of HK$23.7 million and discount on acquisition of HK$1.0 million

2008 Excluding:

1) loss on disposal of convertible bond and interest in an associate of

HK$189.7 million
2 impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$253.2 million

(8)  discount on acquisition of HK$45.1 million
2009 Excluding:

(1) net loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$82.6 million

(2)  gain on disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries of HK$340.0 million

(©)] impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$111.8 million (net

of the portion shared by non-controlling shareholders)

4) discount on acquisition of HK$11.4 million (net of the portion shared by

non-controlling shareholders)

2010 Excluding the gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments of HK$111.8

million (net of the portion shared by non-controlling shareholders)

2011 Excluding:

1) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$83.2 million (net

of the portion shared by non-controlling shareholders)

2) gain an fair value changes of investment properties of HK$306.8 million

(net of deferred tax)

(38)  share-based payments of HK$212.9 million (net of the portion shared by

non-controlling shareholders)

Net profit attributable to owners of
the Company
PAUNSIESZ DN o
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRmE

2012 Excluding:
(1) gain an fair value changes of investment properties of HK$20.1 million (net of the
portion shared by non-controlling shareholders and deferred tax)

(2)  share-based payments of HK$97.5 million (net of the portion shared by non-
controlling shareholders)
2013 Excluding:
(1) gain an fair value changes of investment properties of HK$1,122.9 million (net of
the portion shared by non-controlling shareholders and deferred tax)

(2)  share-based payments of HK$41.4 million (net of the portion shared by non-
controlling shareholders)

6 KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #E{c T5EE

—E-—F

—E2-=F

TBEE :

(1) REVEAFTEEDH 2 WH-TE
— T &EB T (N IEZE AR PTG D
HEETRIR)

@ UEGHEANFATFLER+EET
(BRI AR A 10 50)

TBEE :

) BREDERXTFEEDH 2 &
TEZTZBA+EBT(HKRIE
PR AR R A6 10 B SUBIETRIR)

@ AERGEANFIEF-an+8ET
(BRI AR A 10 50)



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

It is my great pleasure to report to our shareholders that Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (“The Group”) delivered resilient results for the financial year
ended 31 December 2013. During the year, the US market showed positive
signs of rebound while the Chinese economic model went through a gradual
upgrade to maintain sustained growth. Against a backdrop of progressive
global economic recovery, demand for electronic products followed a more
steady growth trend with robust sales in smart-phones and other mobile
electronic devices. Leveraging our successful vertical integration business
model, our management team utilized our laminates capacity expansion to
capture additional market share, laminate division was able to deliver record
high shipment volume during the year. For the printed circuit board (“PCB”)
division, performance was impacted by average selling prices decline and
operational costs increases. The chemicals division yielded excellent results
as both the coal chemicals and acetic acid plants at our Hebei site delivered
strong earnings contributions. The property division started to bring in
attractive returns with excellent pre-sale results arising from our residential
projects. Rental income continued to increase bolstered by an occupancy
rate of over 95% in our investment properties portfolio.

Turnover Breakdown by Products & ¥ 589 47
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHmE

BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Our experienced management team continued to react promptly to market
changes and focused on operation efficiency improvements, as a result all
core business divisions continued to deliver profitable results. Since there was
no property sales income recorded in the current year, group revenue was
marginally down by 4% to HK$35,683.5 million while underlying net profit
(excluding non-recurring items) declined by 14% to HK$1,880.0 million. Basic
earnings per share was HK$1.833. Nevertheless, with a substantial gain in
the fair value of our investment properties, reported net profit was up by 41%
to HK$2,961.4 million. The Group maintained a robust financial position. The
Board proposed a final dividend of HK20 cents per share, together with the
interim dividend of HK10 cents per share and the special dividend of HK20
cents per share paid in September 2013, constitutes a total dividend per
share of HK50 cents, representing a payout ratio of 27%.

EFEOIEE )

g%@liﬂﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬂ%;&?lﬁﬂmﬂm B W
FoKBERLOBMAEBAGBRNE
Bl AR BAL EBEHERAAKR =
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AMBARREYEMEREERN - HUREAL
MEFAMNBE—TAEAT—BETEET °
SEFEMRERRR  EEFERREER
RERRS20/8( - EBRAR —F—=Fh ALK
BER10ELZ  HAE R B R20B Il Z 5
BB - 2FREBEBA/BRS0E - kS LLE
R27% °

Capacity expansion in laminates plants resulted in record high laminates shipment in 2013.
ERRATHENERMBIHESAFS -
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CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHmE

PERFORMANCE

Riding on the capacity expansion of the laminate plants in Jiangyin, Jiangsu
province and Jiangmen, Guangdong province in 2013, the laminates division
delivered satisfactory performance with record high shipment volume as
capacity utilization improved against last year. Our Chinese domestic market
share continued to expand, with Renminbi (“RMB”) sales of the Group
increasing to account for 59% of laminates division’s total revenue. The
average selling price for laminates came under pressure as the average
copper price was lower than in the previous year. Turnover (including inter-
segment sales) for the laminates division rose 1% against the previous year
to HK$13,056.3 million. Volume sales increased 9% from last year and
average monthly shipment reached 9.38 million square metres. Earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (‘EBITDA”) increased 1%
to HK$2,132.4 million.

For the PCB division, although automotive-related orders increased
substantially, computer-related orders declined due to soft demand. Hence,
turnover for the PCB division was down by 1% to HK$7,155.3 million and
EBITDA decreased 10% to HK$874.9 million. The Group continued to
expand its high density interconnect (“HDI”) PCB production capacity, and
gained market share in this market segment by ongoing technology and
capability enhancement. HDI PCB sales accounted for 23% (2012:21%) of
PCB division sales and generated good earnings contribution to the division.

Investment properties portfolio of the Group yield steady rental income.

REMEREBTRIEEHESWA -

EHRRR

RIS PIEARNERRIFBIER - IHE L
FeTh RIEERATIPIMHIE 2 B AEE -
MEBEEREREF LA HHEEER
ARzt ESEH S  SEEBTHFRANHET
%o ANRBEEEEIPIEE EE% - #
HATFHIREREF TR EREERE
EMERBPEACEXZB(RESHE2HE)
L EFEE MR E-—B=TEZERATNBE=1
EET - HEER T —F A% A
FHYNEEBNE=ZTNEF K - KNk
FE - FIE - TEREHEANAZMN EH1%E
—H—E=T-FEm+ESET -

i BN 4R B8 AR B PI 77 0 - #E AR ERINITE AR
METER EREER  EXINEMEE
HHERFEREFE  HPI2ERMEKI%
EX+—RBATEBE=1+T&8%ET ROKH
B BE MERBENAMNTRE10%E
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BUNRTH EERN - #5INHDIZ 35198 < HDI
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Residential properties pre-sale delivered remarkable results.

HEMEREXEE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHmE

P ERFORMANCE (continued)

As a result of better coal chemicals and acetic acid selling price during
the year, Hebei chemical plant delivered a strong profit contribution.
Meanwhile, the new phenol/acetone plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province
raised the division’s overall output capacity in 2013. Our Yangzhou chemical
refinery plant was leased out in the second half of 2013 in return for rental
income and processing charges. As a result, turnover (including inter-
segment sales) for the chemical division decreased marginally by 2% to
HK$17,202.4 million. However, average selling prices increase and operation
efficiency improvements in the chemical division drove EBITDA up by 4%
to HK$1,592.9 million. Share of associates results (the bulk of which was
contributed by our natural gas based methanol joint venture with China
BlueChemical Limited) rose by 9% to HK$234.3 million.

As there was no income recognition for property sales in 2013, property
division income declined 71% to HK$532.5 million, bulk of which related to
rental income from the investment properties. Rental income increased by
33% against the previous year, mainly due to additional rental contribution
from the commercial properties in Hong Kong and London acquired in
2012. Pre-sale of the residential projects delivered remarkable results with
contract sales increasing substantially to approximately HK$4.17 billion and
represented a contract sales area of around 417,000 square metres. As at
31 December 2013, the Group owned a land bank of approximately 6 million
square metres of gross floor area located at prime sites in major cities such as
Shanghai, Kunshan and Guangzhou in China. Management is confident that
these projects will bring in attractive returns.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our financial and liquidity position continued to be solid. As at 31 December
2013, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were approximately
HK$21,100.8 million (31 December 2012 — HK$16,166.1 million) and 2.24 (31
December 2012 — 2.29) respectively.

The net working capital cycle increased from 49 days as at 31 December
2012 to 56 days as at 31 December 2013 on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, decreased to 37 days
from last year (31 December 2012 — 39 days) due to stringent
inventory controls.
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CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHmE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtors turnover days, increased to 59
days (31 December 2012 — 51 days).

- Trade and bills payables, in terms of creditors turnover days, was 40
days (31 December 2012 — 41 days).

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents to total equity) was approximately 42% (31 December
2012: 38%). The proportion of bank borrowings between short term and
long term stood at 30%:70% (31 December 2012: 32%:68%). During the
year under review, the Group invested around HK$1.6 billion and HK$7.0
billion in new production capacity and property developments projects
respectively. With a professional and seasoned management team coupled
with our concrete business foundation and robust balance sheet, the Group
is confident that these investments will generate stable and attractive returns
to our shareholders in the future. About 1% of the Group’s bank borrowings
was denominated in RMB and the rest in Hong Kong or US dollars.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy.
The Group did not enter into any material derivative financial instruments in
2013. There was no material foreign exchange exposure to the Group during
the year under review. The Group’s revenue, mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars, was fairly matched with the currency
requirement of operating expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a global workforce of over 43,800 (31
December 2012: 43,400). In addition to offering competitive salary packages,
the Group grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible
employees based on our overall financial achievement and their individual
performance. The Group’s continued success relies on a comprehensive
human resources strategy. Kingboard Institute of Management was
established with a vision to focus on management training of middle and
senior management for the Group. The Group recruits fresh graduates from
both mainland China and Hong Kong each year in its search for talents. In
future, we will continue our effort to identify and develop staff via management
training schemes in order to rejuvenate our management team to support the
long term development of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHmE

PROSPECTS

At the onset of 2014, the global economy showed signs of steady recovery
and market outlook remains positive. Urbanization is helping to promote
domestic demand growth while e-commerce channels continue its
aggressive expansion and bring about substantial demand growth in digital
electronic products sales such as smart-phones and sophisticated household
applications such as smart TVs. These market trend changes are expected to
push demand growth for both laminates and PCBs.

In order to meet demand from downstream capacity expansion in the
laminates division and strengthen our vertical integration business model,
the Group plans to increase the upstream materials production capacity.
An expansion phase of the Lianzhou glass fabric plant and a new glass yarn
plant in Qingyuan, Guangdong province will commence production in 2014.

As regards the property division, demand is still robust with pre-sales units
being over-subscribed as soon as they are launched on to the market.
Construction work of Qiandeng Yu Garden Phase | has been completed and
some of the buyers have started the process of taking up title of the flats.
Revenue and profit of this project are expected to be recognized in 2014.
Leasing activities have commenced for Guangzhou Kingboard Plaza and
have yielded satisfactory occupancy rate. More residential properties projects
will be launched for pre-sale in 2014 to fuel the future growth of the property
division.

Cloud computing and cloud storage is a growing trend. Kingboard Group
has recently set up a new software development team to work on software
development for cloud computing, big data analysis and enterprise resources
planning (“ERP”) system. A new ERP system is now ready for internal test
run within the Group and will be launched on the market in due course.
Meanwhile, the Group plans to set up Cloud Data Centre in PRC utilizing our
existing land bank in eastern and southern China to capture new technology
trends in this sector.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014

12 KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &5t T5E

A 5%

RE-T—NF  2RQBERLELH - THER
RETT o BEAINRIEEREL - BAAF - BE
ERRERHERETEER  HEREAH
= BERLUFREHBERTRAL AR
RIBEERPERNEREHE - BEHFE
BERER R EIRIARERER 2B & -

H A T OB E A BB Ak K T A D TR R AR
U RE-—SERZEEEAEY  KEKEN
RABRETT Lk 2 Ere - EERA BN
T 38 S22 ) 3R B A R K FE 7 4 T 3T O TR B A R
RN S FIRALE ©

FHERPI I E - HEEEFERD - iR
fIBERBERE - TEMER -—HBRE25%
PRSI P A 1T SERE AR - ELE R AR R R
BR2014FE A ALK - BINEEESC M
- HARIBAE - £EIEEBEEHELIOE
TIHERR - EERMEIPIHRIFELR -

EMERARMRERNTEY - EEHAKIL
—(EEMKMEE - EMEBEAH - REBERE
EERRE(TERP Rt F R BERE - Hep
ERPR#RE TR ARBEE - HEEEREE
A SRIE - PRABELS TS - R
SETHEFBEERMEDNEE i HE
BYZERPL - BREARRBHEERNBE -

&l
FABREEFEHUASLRE RS R

T - BEABRBEIBESFHEE=ERE
B SR BUA RO RS

E
REAZ

HE —T-WF=HA-+—H



DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERBREBABZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 58, is the chairman and a co-founder of
the Group, and the chairman of Elec & Eltek International Company Limited
(“EEIC”), which is a subsidiary of the Company listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”) and dual-listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Cheung was
the chairman and director of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF”)
which is the subsidiary of the Company listed on the SGX up to 3 January
2012. Mr. Cheung is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie, the
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang
Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang. Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’ experience
in the sales and distribution of electronic components including laminates
prior to the establishment of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
overall strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction and
goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung won the Young Industrialist Award of
Hong Kong 1993, which was organized by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and was described as “far-sighted, enterprising, and having insight
in the business”. Mr. Cheung was the winner of the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong
Business Award, accredited with the Owner-Operator Award in 20086. In
2011, Mr. Cheung was awarded the Honorary University Fellowships of The
University of Hong Kong. In 2013, Mr. Cheung is appointed as a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of The People’s Republic of China.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 49, is the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He joined the Group in 1988 and
has been working in the PCB industry since 1984 with particularly extensive
experience in marketing components and materials required for PCB
production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the Group’s chemical business
operations and property developments in southern China.

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 47, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He joined the Group in 1989 and
has over 24 years’ experience in laminates production. Mr. Chang graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in marine
electronics. He is responsible for the Group’s methanol plant in Chongaing,
chemical refinery plant and phenol/acetone plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu
province and phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province. He is
also a non-executive director of EEIC.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENSREBANEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (ontinued)

Mr. MOK Cham Hung, Chadwick, aged 49, is the son-in-law of Mr. Chan
Wing Kwan. He joined the Group in 2000. Prior to this he worked in the
financial services industry for over 11 years. Mr. Mok is a fellow member of
both the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds an MA in Electrical
and Information Engineering from the University of Cambridge and an MBA
with distinction from Imperial College, the University of London. He is also the
vice-chairman and executive director of EEIC and responsible for the strategic
planning of EEIC.

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 59, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing
and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He joined the Group in 1989 and is
responsible for the Group’s chemical business operations in Hebei and
Shanxi province. He is also a non-executive director of KBCF.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 43, is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan. She joined the Group in
2002 and is responsible for the business operations of Techwise PCB group.
Prior to joining the Group, she worked as an administration assistant manager
in a listed company for about 5 years.

Mr. CHEN Maosheng, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 11 January 2011. He joined the Group in 1996 and is
currently the chief financial controller of the Group in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). He is responsible for the management of the finance and tax
matters of the Group in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he worked with
the finance and economics department of the government of the PRC for 12
years. Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangxi Finance and Economics University
(formerly known as Jiangxi Finance and Economics Institution) in 1990. He is
an accountant certified by the finance department of the government of the
PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Wing Kwan, aged 68, is a co-founder of the Group, and a non-
executive director of EEIC. Mr. Chan was the managing director of the Group
and responsible for the overall implementation of the strategic plans and goals
of the Group. On 11 January 2011, he was re-designated as a non-executive
Director and appointed as chief consultant of the Company. Mr. Chan had
been the managing director of KBCF up to 11 January 2011. Mr. Chan is the
father-in-law of Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick. Mr. Chan acquired a degree
of Doctor of Business Science from Pacific Western University L.A.. Prior to
the establishment of the Group, Mr. Chan had over 22 years’ experience in
the sales and distribution of electronic components, industrial chemicals and
PCBs.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENSREBANEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. CHENG Wai Chee, Christopher, GBS, OBE, JP , aged 65, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director in 2007. Dr. Cheng is the chairman of
Wing Tai Properties Limited, an independent non-executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited and New World China Land Limited, all being listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He is also a non-executive director of Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (as manager of Champion Real Estate Investment
Trust which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and the Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, a member company of HSBC
Holdings plc which is listed in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng has a keen interest
in the public services. He is currently a member of the Judicial Officers
Recommendation Commission, a member of the Council of The University of
Hong Kong and a steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr. LAl Chung Wing, Robert, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2009. He has many years
of experience in trading and investment and was previously the managing
director of Seaunion Holdings Ltd (now known as South Sea Petroleum
Holdings Limited) and an independent non-executive director of Kee Shing
(Holdings) Limited (now known as Gemini Property Investments Limited),
both companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He holds a Bachelor-of-Laws
(Honours) degree from the University of London and is involved in business
consultancy work in the Asia-Pacific region. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Plastec Technologies Ltd, a company quoted on the
US OTC Bulletin Board (OTCBB). Mr. Lai was previously an independent
non-executive director of KBCF. He is the brother of Mr. Lai Chong Tuck, an
independent non-executive director of EEIC.

Mr. TSE Kam Hung, aged 63, has over 30 years of experience in the field
of electronic industry. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2004.

Mr. TANG King Shing, GBS, PDSM, aged 59, has been appointed an
independent non-executive director with effect from 1 August 2013. Mr. Tang
took office as the Commissioner of the Hong Kong Police in January 2007
until his retirement in January 2011. In March 2013, Mr. Tang was appointed
a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Tang has
been appointed a director of the Hong Kong News-Expo since June 2013.
Mr. TANG is appointed as the Chairman of the Country and Marine Parks
Board of the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department with a two-
year term from 1 September 2013 to 31 August 2015 and he is an honorary
advisor of Hong Kong Strategy. He holds a Masters degree in International
and Public Affairs from the University of Hong Kong.

BMFHITES

BHrEEL 2EHEE  BTEEERE -
RKEF#Lt 65m R_TTZLFHRERERSE
VHERTEE - BELRAFHEFRAR L
& FAEEEARARMMERDEMES
RABZELIIFATES  ZFARBRELE
FHARAR - KAFREEEEETIR(BE)
BRAR(REEBZ A ETHEREEEREN
EEN)REBLBESRITERAR(FEREL
MRRESERZKERAR)ZIFRITES -
BIEH2EARER - FERRRIAABHER
ZEEL8  BAARERBLZBEZERER
BESEESF -

BAKE 665 RZETNFE - AEAR
AEARBYIENTES - HRESHRRER
HEHEEZNER - SHERBRA ETRER
EEEIR AR AR CGRER A MERBR R
A ZEFBREERTR(ER)BRARRE
B ERERRAR)MNBLIENTES - B2
EERARBARNBLEELRESN - RIER
FELAEHEBMIE - BEITARERSZIN
B 5 ZH (B HPlastec Technologies Ltd.
BB IEITEE - RAEL Y HIKBCFZ B
IEHITE S - HINVBEEICEB N JEITE SR A
BoREZIBR

AL LE 635  RMEFEBIFULE
B BN _TENFRARRZERBILIEN
TESE-

HEKLE  ©RFEE  FELERIPUE
T 505%  BETARRBIBNIERNITES -
B =FNA—BEBES - -BLtEa=F
THHE-ARIBESEEEREE  BEE T
—— F—ARKAELE RZFT—=F=F &
LRI APEARLNEHEARBEH
AEREHEESE8 - HAEE T —=F
NAREZTAEEMEIEERCIES - Bt
FREZTAEEAEEERTRARREFEAE
ZEeXF(AHH-_T—=FNA—BE-Z
—RFENA=Z+—8 AHEWF)RBEAHKS
M EER - BBEEEBRNZERAREE

T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —Z— =44 15



DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES
EENSREBANEZEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 40, the Company Secretary, joined the Group in
May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant at an interational accounting
firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company
secretarial work of the Group. He is a non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”), a 74.14% owned subsidiary listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
BEETWE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in notes 45, 22 and 24
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 55.

An interim dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend
of HK20 cents per ordinary share amounting to HK$307,680,000 in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents per ordinary share
to the shareholders on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday,
3 June 2014, amounting to HK$205,120,000 in aggregate, and the retention
of the remaining profit in the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARBIZEZ([EF D REAKERE_F
—=F Tt A=t RIEFEZFRREERX
RAMIBEWEK -

FEXK

KRB BEEERRAG  EXEWBQR - 5B
BRARIRABEZEBRDBIENGRA MR
RIET45 - 22 %24 -

FERk DK

AEEBE_T—=F1+_A=1t—HILFE
HEHNFERFAERRA

FR - ARBBIRMAFERE SR EBAZ10
Bl RFRIKRE FREBA 20BN - A5
307,680,000 T TR - EFHEZEAN_Z
—MFEXA=ZA(EHD) BHA QG RE M
ZRERA REAAR B SR T AR08 - AR
205,120,000 7T, + I 4R B8 Fl 68 003 FI R AR R
aj °

REWR

AEEZREMERFAZEBHHBFENES
TS MAMTET

ME - BERRE

REBZYE - BELRERFAEEDHIT
R A P IKRMEE18 -

SN

RABEBITRARF N2 ZEFBIARGE
B SRR M FESIS o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 =& — =44 17



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWE

PURCHASE, SALE OF REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities on the Stock
Exchange.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2013 comprised the retained profits of HK$250,206,000.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium and the
special surplus account of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2013, the sum of the retained profits and the share premium
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$4.7 billion.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick
Mr. Chen Maosheng

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Mr. Tse Kam Hung

Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 August 2013)
Mr. Henry Tan (retired on 6 May 2013)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEEWE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, each of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Mr. Chen Maosheng, being executive Directors, and
Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher and Mr. Tse Kam Hung, being independent
non-executive Directors, will retire from directorship by rotation and will be
eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual meeting of the Company in
accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

In addition, Mr. Tang King Shing was appointed by the Board as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 August 2013. In
accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Tang will hold directorship only until the next general meeting of the Company
following his appointment and will be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr.
Tang will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and will be eligible for re-election as an independent non-executive Director.

Pursuant to Code A.4.3 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, any re-
appointment of an independent non-executive director of a company who
has served more than 9 years shall be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by its shareholders. Mr. Tse Kam Hung has been an independent
non-executive Director since 27 September 2004. During his years of
appointment, Mr. Tse, with his experience in the electronic industry, has
demonstrated his ability to provide an independent view to the Board in
relation to the Company’s matters. Mr. Tse has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is
satisfied that Mr. Tse remains independent, and there is no evidence that his
tenure has a negative impact on his independence. A separate resolution
will be proposed for his role as an independent non-executive Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section “Directors’
and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 13 to 16.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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EEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long position
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”)

EEZR{ER

N-E—=F+-"F=+—H B=ERFES2
BMEATHRARRREAEEZE(FEAES
K HAE 60 ([ 355 R EIEEA ) EXVED) 2 B’
% - HERMDREST - EERRRREES
K EAEIGHIE 35257 B 2 B et Frac sk 2 18
& MR EMBEITAESETESRIHINE
EFRE MG AR R MR ST

<

&
(@ A2AESREECI0BTZEBER(K
1)

iy

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

Number of  of the Company

issued Shares (G2 R T
Name of Director Capacity held EEBTRA
EEME R FHERTROBE ZEBNBEDL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 3,043,370 0.297
REISR BmEAA
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 1,392,000 0.135
BRAKERSE A (1) 8ot/ Y PN G o
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.293
REBRE E=EAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 4,938,328 0.482
Epox s A (Misk2) EnlEAAN TiBER
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 3,120,674 0.304
a3 A 8 A (F5E3) EnlEAA TR
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick (Note 4) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 3,648,000 0.356
SRR (KE4) 6ot PN
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie (Note 5) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 652,000 0.064
sRiEE L (KiEE5) EnA AN Bk
Notes: B
1) Out of the 1,392,000 Shares, 1,320,000 Shares were held by Mr. Chan (1) % 1,392,000 f% B% & F - H &

Wing Kwan and 72,000 Shares were held by his spouse.

2) Out of the 4,938,328 Shares, 4,076,488 Shares were held by Mr. Chang
Wing Yiu and 861,840 Shares were held by his spouse.

3) QOut of the 3,120,674 Shares, 1,679,674 Shares were held by Mr. Ho Yin
Sang and 1,441,000 Shares were held by his spouse.

(4) QOut of the 3,648,000 Shares, 3,396,000 Shares were held by Mr. Mok
Cham Hung, Chadwick and 252,000 Shares were held by his spouse.

5) Out of the 652,000 Shares, 582,000 Shares were held by Ms. Cheung Wai
Lin, Stephanie and 70,000 Shares were held by her spouse.
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BEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continueq)

Long position (continued)

(b) Share options of the Company (“Share Options”)

EERDER
ERGE)

RAREBELBERE(ELCERED

Interest in underlying Shares

Name of Director Capacity pursuant to Share Options
EHEME RS B 5 i RAEAE R IR 0 1 i
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 3,360,000
SREIER BEnERA

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 3,120,000
SREEEL L BEnEBA

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 3,120,000
SRR A BEnEBA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 3,120,000
LIPS vt BEnEBA

Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 6,048,000
a3 A S A (B 5E) EnlEAATBER

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 3,120,000
REE A BEnERA

Note:  Out of the 6,048,000 Share Options, 3,120,000 Share Options were held
by Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 2,928,000 Share Options were held by his spouse.

The Company adopted its first share option scheme on 11 May
1998, and such share option scheme was terminated upon the
adoption of its second share option scheme (“2002 Scheme”) on 2
July 2002 for the duration of 10 years. In view of the changes to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) in 2009, a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 23 March 2009. The
2002 Scheme was accordingly terminated on the same day without
affecting the rights of holders of any options granted and outstanding

under the 2002 Scheme.

BT : P2 5%6,048,00015 BB EE F - Hp
3,120,00017) {8 5¢ B AR 4 T fa] ¥ A4 58 A
RAEAE - 2,928,000 1 5t & A 8
HERGBIEE -

RRRR—ANNFRA+— BERAE
BEELBERETS - RRZELBR
BEFEN T - F LA HRRAE
F_E/M+F2BEBBAEEI([ =
T _FEE MR L - ARBERATE
FETRMT ETRAUDR=_FFTAN
FZBE  ARABRRCN_ZFTNF
= A+ =RBRFZAARBRRERIA
g LR B TR &I ([ 3%aT
&) - —TZ_FFETRULMRFA
Bk TR FEEE TEANER
H R EARTTEE B LB B AR

WARZE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)
(c) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“KLHL Shares”) in KLHL, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

EECRDER

RE#)

() FARFZEEAWEBARNRBRER
BREEIGETZ2EBEBR([ZERE
AR )

Approximate

percentage of the

Number of issued issued share capital
KLHL Shares held of KLHL

Name of Director Capacity BT (@ EEERE R
EEHH R E RERERRGHE BRA 2 A E DL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 675,500 0.023
REBIZ e A& BEnEBA

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 400,000 0.013
Bk ER 5 A (M) EnlEAA TR

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Interest of spouse 100,000 0.003
oK iRt

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 540,000 0.018
fAlRAE e 4 iRt

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Interest of spouse 60,000 0.002
SRR E [

Note:  Out of the 400,000 KLHL Shares, 300,000 KLHL Shares were held by Mr.
Chan Wing Kwan and 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by his spouse.

(d) Share options of KLHL (“KLHL Share Options”)

Ffi5E : 7452 400,000f R EREBRBNER + H
"R 300,000 % 3 B A& [E 1R A% 19 TY i BR K 68
SERAFA - m100,0000% 2 EEE IR
A& B BB A -

(d EEEERELBERE(ZIERERE
SHREIRRE

Interest in underlying Shares pursuant
to KLHL Share Options

Name of Director Capacity BEEERELEREET
EEpE EHEMEE TERA AR 10 2
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 9,000,000
fAIFRA A o Bk
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Interest of spouse 10,000,000
SR e Bk s

22 KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ##55E{t T&



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (.ontinued)

Long position (continued)
(e) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the share
capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a non-wholly owned

BEEZROER®

REW®
() AATIXEHEEHEADIREBER
ERADAREHSREEIETZER

subsidiary of the Company EREEER 17

Number of

non-voting deferred shares held

(Note)

Name of Director Capacity IR EREL

EEHE EREME RIDEE

(BEE)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,904,400
REISR BmBEAA

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan Beneficial owner 1,481,200
BRAKER e A4 BEmEBA

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 846,400
REBERE BmBEAA

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner 529,000
A EAE SR A BEmEB A

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 423,200
Ehox iR BmBEAA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(f) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of EEIC, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

fiaE: AKEBSEFAREEERERAF
ZEERERERD - ZFRERD
B o P BUGEERE E IR B IR A F)
EMRRAEBSHHFERRRNE R
RE EREZER - 02 H WS
R BERSESER DR ERER

(f AATFEZEREEHE QX TEEICKR A
2 @R (TEEICKRA 1)

Approximate
percentage of the
Number of issued jssued share capital

EEIC Shares held of EEIC
Name of Director Capacity FIBEHT  (SEEICERTRA
EEME ERME EEICKR 3 & B ZEBNBEDL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,507,200 0.806
SREIER BB A
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note) Beneficial owner/ 1,400,000 0.749
Rk SRS A (BiEE) Interest of spouse

EnlEAAEEER

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner 486,600 0.260
AR ST 4 BEnEBA
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 1,120,200 0.600
SR A BEnERA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 486,600 0.260
oK BEmEBA

Note:  Out of the 1,400,000 EEIC Shares, 1,360,000 EEIC Shares were held by
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan and 40,000 EEIC Shares were held by his spouse.

faE © 7%1,400,0000%EEICK D EF - H
1,360,000A%EEICH& 15 T H FRAK 8B 28 A
AAFEE  M40,0000%EEICH 7 Bl F
HEMBIA -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (.ontinued)

Long position (continued)
(9) Ordinary shares (“KBCF Shares”) of US$0.10 each in the
share capital of KBCF, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the

EECRDER

RE@®#®)
(9) AATFFZ2EREEHE R TAKBCFR A
FEREE10E T 2 EER ([KBCFR

Company %1
Approximate
percentage of the
Number of issued issued share capital
KBCF Shares held of KBCF
Name of Director Capacity FriFC 84T {5KBCFE 21T
EEME RS KBCFE {3 8 B RAEZBHOBED L
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 620,000 0.086
SREISR BEmEEA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 2,000 0.0002
A4 iRzt
Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert Beneficial owner 72,000 0.0100
RABKFE BEmlER A

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2013.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, EEIC and KLHL
(including their vesting and exercise period) are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Share Options under the
Scheme during the year:

B Pt EEIN RZEBE—=Ft+_A=+—
H BIBEFSA BRI CHEBALTRARRRISNE
EAARBOEE (E & R &5 LIE GROIFEXVED)
%;{dﬂ%f’ﬁ - FEERNSESFPER A ER
HEE o

BrBERE

ANAF] - EEICREEREER 2 B BAET 2
HI5(REERBHRITER) SN GRE TSR
FMIFE35 ©

TRBE X B TEEBRER A2 2D

Adjusted

Outstanding (byway of  Outstanding
as at increment) asat
1.1.2013 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed during 31.12.2013
R-B-=f during during during during theyear HR=-B-=%
-A-H the year the year the year theyear HEREHE +-A=1-A
WATE  REREH RERTE  REREE  RERXN  (BBESR) K176

Category 1: Directors 218 8%
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing REREE 2,800,000 - - - - 560,000 3,360,000
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan REELE 2,600,000 - - - - 520,000 3,120,000
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu L e 2,600,000 - - - - 520,000 3,120,000
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) A S A () 2,600,000 - - - - 520,000 3,120,000
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick  E5Eif %4 2,600,000 - - - - 520,000 3,120,000
Ms. Cheung WaiLin, Stephanie ~ fEEx+ 2,600,000 - - - - 520,000 3,120,000
15,800,000 - - - - 3,160,000 18,960,000
Category 2: Employees 08 [EB 12,200,000 - - - - 2,440,000 14,640,000
Total all categories FBERIAE 28,000,000 - - - - 5,600,000 33,600,000

Note:  In addition to 3,120,000 Share Options held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the spouse of Mr.
Ho Yin Sang held 2,928,000 Share Options. None of such option was exercised.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The following table discloses movements in KLHL Share Options during the

(continued)

BEERE.

TREBZERERELBEERFRNZES)

year:
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
1.1.2013 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed  31.122013
RZE-= during during during during R=-Z-=f
-A—-A the year the year the year theyear +—A=+—-H
e AT RERFH RERTE REREH RERXH e AT
Directors and employees BERERES
of KLHL (Note) REE(FfEE) 100,000,000 - - - - 100,000,000
Total At 100,000,000 - - - - 100,000,000
Note: ~ Among these KLHL Share Options, some of which were granted to the associates of Mzt : ZERTERERELEREED  BETELERK

the Directors. Please refer to page 22 for details.

ROETESNMEA @ FEERF22E -

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2013, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company.

BERODIEZ ZZH

Bk £ FRF B ST RE R HD -

AR EE

A B R B F A Al s BT AR 2 B 5T L A fr]
2 B EERHEB AR QRS EAME

AEREZ BB

EECEREHRER

AR B HEAA T E R BABEFT LEMRFR
HEREARBDAERMESERIEER

BEAEGZIEREHL -

FERR

RIBAR R BIRE S KB E 15

FIBIHRAFTE

ZEERREMARLE R-T—=F+_A

=+—8 THRR(EXHAE
@SERIN BB AR RIRERA
THREZHRESSER -

BETESZE
REDETRA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (ontinued)

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

BRREE REIEE

FERER @)

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

share capital of

Number of issued the Company
Shares held NN |
e 81T 2RITRA
RHEE 2R B

Hallgain Management Limited ( “Hallgain™) (Note 1) Beneficial owner

(FHEE1) BmlEA A

FMR LLC Investment manager
RERE

JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 2) (ffzE£2) Investment manager
RERE

L The letter “L” denotes a long position.

P) The letter “P” denotes interests in a lending pool.

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2013: () no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or

control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power
at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors were not accustomed
to act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Chan Wing Kwan, being Directors, were also directors of Hallgain.

2 JPMorgan Chase & Co wholly controlled JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and
JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc.. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. was
interested in 59,881,101 Shares as beneficial owner.

JPMorgan Chase & Co., which wholly controlled JPMorgan Broker-Dealer Holdings
Inc., a company which wholly controlled JPMorgan Securities LLC, a company which
in turn wholly controlled JPMorgan Clearing Corp, was interested in 9,941 Shares as
beneficial owner.

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., which wholly controlled JPMorgan International Inc.,
a company which wholly controlled Bank One International Holdings Corporation,
a company which in turn wholly controlled JPMorgan International Finance Limited.
JPMorgan International Finance Limited wholly controlled: (a) JPMorgan Overseas
Capital Corporation, a company which wholly controlled JPMorgan Whitefriars Inc.,
was interested in a long position of 780,101 Shares as beneficial owner; and (b)
JPMorgan Capital Holdings Limited.
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363,154,200 (L) 35.40 (L)
92,322,100 (L) 9.00 (L)
61,630,372 (L) 6.01 (L)
59,881,101 (P) 5.84 (P)

[LIREZRE -

[PIRK A H AR

REZT—=F+=ZA=+—H : ()i EHallgainf%
R AN HallgainRE A& 170 sk Bk EEE
FITTE =D —sk A E 2 KRR - MHallgain & &
ESWMERRBEMBERIERITS  R()ES
SREI4E I A R PR oK 8B 2 A I B Hallgain 2 AR R »

JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 #|lJPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. }2JPMorgan Asset Management
Holding Inc. ° JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.J#
59,881,101 RN P HEE s - RAFRHZE
wHEBA ©

JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 ##% %] JPMorgan
Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. » i1 JPMorgan
Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. 2% #lJPMorgan
Securities LLC * JPMorgan Securities LLCJR
2 H|lJPMorgan Clearing Corp © JPMorgan
Chase & Co.7R9,941 RN H L - AZE
‘ipz BEmBEEA ©

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 2% HlJPMorgan
International Inc. * MJPMorgan International
Inc. 2 H|Bank One International Holdings
Corporation * Bank One International Holdings
Corporation7i 242 #lJPMorgan International
Finance Limited - JPMorgan International
Finance Limited Bl & # 3% %/ (a) JPMorgan
Overseas Capital Corporation * &% A 7 22|
JPMorgan Whitefriars Inc. + H 780,101 %% (%
WREFHEARER  RZSRHZEREEAN
K (b) JPMorgan Capital Holdings Limited °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (ontinued)

Notes:
2) (continued)

JPMorgan Capital Holdings Limited wholly controlled JPMorgan Chase (UK) Holdings
Limited, which in turn wholly controlled JPMorgan Chase International Holdings.
JPMorgan Securities plc, which was interested in 47,629 Shares as beneficial owner,
was 98.95% controlled by JPMorgan Chase International Holdings.

JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc., which wholly controlled JPMorgan
Asset Management (Asia) Inc., which in turn wholly controlled JF Asset Management
Limited, was interested in 911,600 Shares as beneficial owner.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2013 which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013, save for the deviation that the non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for
specific terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding
the aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code. In
addition, Mr. Henry Tan, a former independent non-executive Director and
member of the Audit Committee of the Company, retired from the aforesaid
roles immediately after the Company’s annual general meeting held on 6 May
2018. According to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, an issuer must appoint
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the
board. Also, Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires that an audit committee
must comprise a minimum of three members. Upon Mr. Tan’s retirement, the
number of members of the Company’s Audit Committee fell below three as
required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the number of independent
non-executive Directors of the Company represented less than one-third of
the Board. Since then, the Company has endeavoured to identify a suitable
candidate to take up the role as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Tang King Shing was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company with effect from 1 August 2013 and both Rules 3.10A and 3.21
of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

FERER @)
st
@) (&)

JPMorgan Capital Holdings LimitedZ ##2
JPMorgan Chase (UK) Holdings Limited * i1
JPMorgan Chase (UK) Holdings Limited8!| %4
#2#|lJPMorgan Chase International Holdings ©
JPMorgan Securities plcit47,6200% i {5 1
Blm - RZERNZEHEAA - JPMorgan
Securities plcFJPMorgan Chase International
Holdingsi%2 #198.95% Ky f& 4 °

JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. & ##
2 #lJPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc.
MJPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. &4
22 4#|JF Asset Management Limited ¢ JPMorgan
Asset Management Holdings Inc.72911,6000% %
DAL RRERDZESHEEA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (ontinueq)

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2013, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@)

28

Purchase Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, the Company and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “Purchase Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase certain materials
for the production of PCBs such as copper balls and drill bits from
Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain Group”) from 1 April 2011
to 31 December 2013. Under the Purchase Framework Agreement,
the amount of materials to be purchased is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time. The
actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the prevailing
market price) of the materials under the Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Purchase Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 26 April 2011.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ##58({t T4

TEEB @

IR ETRBIESABME - ARFDRE BB
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

KLHL Supply Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a supply framework
agreement (the “KLHL Supply Framework Agreement”) pursuant to
which the KLHL Group agreed to supply copper and laminates to
the Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2013. Under
the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement, the amount to be supplied
is not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between the parties
from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with
reference to the prevailing market price) of the products under the
KLHL Supply Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual
orders placed by the Hallgain Group with the KLHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL Supply Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and KLHL
is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the table below. Details
of the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 26 April 2011.

KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to purchase materials for
production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries from the
Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2013. Under the
KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount to be purchased
is not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between the parties
from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with
reference to the prevailing market price) of materials under the KLHL
Purchase Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual
orders placed by the KLHL Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and KLHL
is a subsidiary of the Company.

BERX S @)

(b)

()

R ER M EER S
R-ZT——FWNA—B  EEEERE
Hallgaina] sZ 4 EAE 2R i ([ @2EE[E
RUEIEZR W Z]) - Bt - BEEER
EERER T ——FNA—HE=Z
—=%+=ZHA=+—HMHallgaintk &
HHIER R BIMER o RIFEBEBRME
JEAEZR M - I 2 BRE L 3F T -
MRBTNATTREERRAE - EEHE
EBREEBEEREE T ERERK
2 BEREE(BERTTE) SKRT
Hallgainfk B2 5 EREEEL 2
RERIETEMmE -

MR Hallgain AN AR 2 EBALE @ 1R
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CO N N ECTE D TRAN SACTI ONS (continued)

(c) KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement (continued)
The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the table below.
Details of the KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 26 April 2011.

BAERF =)

(©

BEEERBEEREGRE®)
BEEERBEERBBEE T X SE
E_T—=F+_A=+—HLFEZ
FEFFREERERZEHNTER - B8
HEEREEIELGZE ZFIBERARAR]
B A—T——FHNA-t+B2ZEBK
PigEE

Amounts Annual caps
] FELR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Purchase of copper balls and drill bits from AREBIREEEIERGER 597,277 809,000
the Hallgain Group by the Group under the Hallgain£ [ f# B Rk & &8
Purchase Framework Agreement
Sales of coppers and laminates to the Hallgain &S i&E R &= BB EE SR ER At 819,290 1,878,000
Group by the KLHL Group under the KLHL FEAE 28 #3375 [ Hallgain & & i 5
Supply Framework Agreement i & 7B 4 R
Purchase of drill bits and machineries from the  E#EEEREEIRIEEEEERE 228,411 350,000

Hallgain Group by the KLHL Group under the
KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement

B R v

BiEZR % Z AHallgainsE [ iE B

The amounts of the above transactions did not exceed the corresponding
annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 as announced
by the Group.

The agreements summarised below were entered into by the Group on or
prior to 31 December 2013 and are in relation to transactions for the year
ending 31 December 2014 and subsequent years (and not for the year ended
31 December 2013):

(a) New Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into a
purchase framework agreement (the “New Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase certain
materials for the production of PCBs such as copper balls and drill
bits from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016. Under the New Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount
of materials to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of the materials under the New Purchase Framework Agreement
will be subject to the individual orders placed by the Group with the
Hallgain Group.
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CO N N ECTE D TRAN SACTI ONS (continued)

(@)

(b)

(©)

New Purchase Framework Agreement (continued)

The transactions contemplated under the New Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the New Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

New KLHL Supply Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “New KLHL Supply Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to supply
copper and laminates to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2016. Under the New KLHL Supply Framework
Agreement, the amount to be supplied is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time.
The actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the
prevailing market price) of the products under the New KLHL Supply
Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed
by the Hallgain Group with the KLHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the New KLHL Supply
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules,
and KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.

Details of the New KLHL Supply Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

New KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “New KLHL Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to purchase
materials for the production of laminates such as drill bits and
machineries from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016. Under the New KLHL Purchase Framework
Agreement, the amount to be purchased is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time. The
actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the prevailing
market price) of materials under the New KLHL Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the KLHL
Group with the Hallgain Group.

BERXS @

(a

(b)

()

FEBEERGR®)

MR Hallgain BARARF 2 EEREK « 1R
B EMRAARNARZEEALT - BIR
B EMRBE14AE - B EIERGE
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2

FBEIER R HEEREATBH
B-T—=F+—A=+/\BZEEH
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CO N N ECTE D TRAN SACTI ONS (continued)

() New KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement (continued)
The transactions contemplated under the New KLHL Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules,
and KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.

Details of the New KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013 disclosed by the Group
from pages 28 to 32 of the annual report in accordance with Listing Rule
14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange. The continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013:

(@) have received the approval of the Directors of the Company;

(b) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement governing such transactions;

(c) have not exceeded the relevant cap amount for the financial year

ended 31 December 2013 disclosed in previous announcements; and

(d) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company with reference to similar transactions with independent third
parties.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable requirements
relating to connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting
to HK$3,579,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers combined or suppliers combined were less than 30%
of the Group’s sales or purchases respectively.
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AUDITOR % ELEm

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint BRIEERAFA® HEZ2 —TBRER - IERE
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. =5 o EMR S LETENTT AR R EAD

On behalf of the Board EEEEM

Cheung Kwok Wing E

CHAIRMAN TR ER &8

21 March 2014 —ENFE=ZA=+—8H
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The Board of the Company recognises the importance of corporate
governance practice of a listed company. It is in the interest of the
stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to operate in a
transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory policies,
procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions as set out in the CG Code through out the year ended
31 December 2013, save for the deviation that the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific
terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

On 11 January 2011, the Board announced that Mr. Chan Wing Kwan was re-
designated as a non-executive Director and appointed as the chief consultant
of the Company and ceased to be the Managing Director and an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 11 January 2011. Mr. Chan Wing
Kwan and all independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
no fixed term of service with the Company and are subject to the relevant
provisions of retirement and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Their appointments without a specific term are deviation from paragraph A.4.1
of the CG Code. As at the date of this report, no replacement of the position
of Managing Director has been appointed since Mr. Chan’s resignation. His
resignation as a Managing Director is a deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the
CG Code. Under paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should not be performed by the same individual.

The Board will keep reviewing the structure of the Board from time to time. If
a candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is identified, the
Company will make appointment to fill the position of Managing Director as
appropriate.

In addition to the CG Code, which is mandatory in nature, the Board also
observes certain recommended best practices (“Recommended Best
Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has adopted
certain Recommended Best Practices which are suitable to the Company’s
current situation. The Board will continuously enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company by reference to the Recommended
Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Following a specific enquiry, each Director
has confirmed that he or she has complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions adopted by the Company.

A.

36

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed
to the Board members within reasonable time before the meetings.
Relevant meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the
meetings, informing them of the background and giving explanation
on matters to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To
ensure the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of
the Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he or his
associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in the quorum
of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meetings and
are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A. DlRECTORS (continued) A

The Board (continued)

EE )

BEEem)

During the year under review, the Board had held four meetings and ROEFERN BFSHRTTHRE
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’ ZC EFNESeesNEELEeE
meetings were as follows: w2 ME R
Audit Nomination  Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ERZEE REZEE FMzeg
i i i e
Number of Meeting BEHE 4 3 2 3
Executive Directors BTES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) KRR (FE) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4 - - -
Chang Wing Yiu Bk 4 - - -
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick BRI 4 - - -
Ho Yin Sang BE:S 4 - - -
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REE 4 - - -
Chen Maosheng 5532 4 - - -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Chan Wing Kwan BRiR 3 - - -
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITEE
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher Bgex 3 - - -
Henry Tan BEH(R=_F—=F
(retired on 6 May 2013) AAAHRE) 1 1 1 1
Lai Chung Wing, Robert BB 4 3 2 3
Tse Kam Hung SRt 4 3 2 3
Tang King Shing HER(R=-F—=F
(appointed on 1 August 2013) NA—BEZE) 2 2 - 1
The Directors have observed the importance of directing and EEABREATMTEREEREEARAR

supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than four times
in the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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A. DlRECTORS (continued)

38

Division and responsibilities

During the year under review, the Board was headed by the Chairman
whose role differs from that of the Managing Director of the Company.
The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director were segregated
and are not exercised by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

° scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

° preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the
Managing Director;

o exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between Management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
Directors; and

° assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and
the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director was mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.

On 11 January 2011, the Board announced that Mr. Chan Wing Kwan
was re-designated as a non-executive Director and appointed as the
chief consultant of the Company and ceased to be the Managing
Director and an executive Director with effect from 11 January
2011. As at the date of this report, no replacement of the position of
Managing Director has been appointed since Mr. Chan’s resignation.
If a candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is
identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the position of
Managing Director as appropriate.
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A. DlRECTORS (continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises twelve members, one of whom is
a non-executive Director and four of whom are independent non-
executive Directors who are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors. One of
the independent non-executive Directors possesses appropriate
professional qualifications (or accounting or related financial
management expertise) as required by the Listing Rules. The
composition of the Board as of the report date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Cheung Kwong Kwan

Chang Wing Yiu

Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick
Ho Yin Sang

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie
Chen Maosheng

Non-executive Director
Chan Wing Kwan

Independent non-executive Directors
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Tang King Shing

Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Tse Kam Hung

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and
Mr. Ho Yin Sang are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick is
the son-in-law of Mr. Chan Wing Kwan.

During the year under review, the non-executive Director and the
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed for specific
terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election. The Board considers that although such arrangement
deviates from paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code, sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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Board composition (continued)

On 11 January 2011, the Board announced that Mr. Chan Wing Kwan
was re-designated as a non-executive Director and appointed as the
chief consultant of the Company and ceased to be the Managing
Director and an executive Director with effect from 11 January 2011.
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan has no fixed term of service with the Company as
a non-executive Director and is subject to the relevant provisions of
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. His
appointment without a specific term is a deviation from paragraph
A.4.1 of the CG Code. As at the date of this report, no replacement
of the position of Managing Director has been appointed since Mr.
Chan’s resignation. His resignation as a Managing Director is a
deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code. Under paragraph
A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should not be performed by the same individual.

The Board will keep reviewing the structure of the Board from time to
time. If a candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is
identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the position of
Managing Director as appropriate.

Mr. Henry Tan, a former independent non-executive Director and
member of the Audit Committee, retired from the aforesaid roles
immediately after the Company’s annual general meeting held on 6
May 20183. According to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, an issuer
must appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board. Also, Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
requires that an audit committee must comprise a minimum of three
members. Upon Mr. Tan’s retirement, the number of members of
the Audit Committee fell below three as required under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and the number of independent non-executive
Directors represented less than one-third of the Board. Since then,the
Company has endeavoured to identify a suitable candidate to take
up the role as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee. Mr. Tang King Shing was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 1 August 2013 and both Rules 3.10A and
3.21 of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DlRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates, printed circuit boards, property developments
and chemical products, administration and management experience
in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skills, as well as in-
house advices to comply with international laws and regulations. The
Board size of twelve directors with a balance of skills and experience
is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into account the
nature and scope of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s Articles of Association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors
to the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a
casual vacancy or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible
for re-appointment at the next following annual general meeting
after appointment. The appointment of Directors are not fixed for a
specified term, but at every annual general meeting one-third of the
directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-appointment by shareholders. The Directors appointed
by the Board who are subject to retirement and re-appointment
as mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating the
total number of Directors for the time being but shall not be taken
into account in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-appointment shall have their
biographical details made available to the shareholders to enable
them to make an informed decision on their re-appointment. Any
appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall
be timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement and shall
include in such announcement, the reasons given by the Director for
his resignation.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.

EE )

EEEHEH)
ERehZRERAN  ARREMEE
BFmER - EVRIARIEIR - BHEZR R
EITEmZZOBEFN - HERMSE
FEER R M A - PREITRZITER
EEER  WHEREAROARARE
STEBEREROIZAMLER - EFR
Bt+-%KE  HETREERERS
EREIARBIZEHEERRR - EEF
EREABHEARMEMEERA
3 o

I EERER
ARBZEBERARFTA—ELEN
EERAHNMERBAEZEZEMESRE
F-B8fgRE2EMEE(TwAR
N TRABESTSMENE ) YA
REZTREERRBFRGRELA
BRBEEE - ESCREAUEEEE
B ERBERRBFASL =0—
ZEE(BREXR)YARMRERARK
REFZRE RAEERESHEE
SR AR XA mEESLREMER
WERENEERREZES  ERE
HhmEREEEABBFAATIHE -
FIENEEREENREZESEHEAR
BERFEBEARE - NERRREHNZE
ERERAIBERE - ENEERE - &
F - BERBEFEHRARBZAR
BABRIKE  YAEAMPEAZE
=EHEZIEH -

EEEE
ARBREEGEREGRERBRERIE
RERREEZRE  ARTHARE
BT EBEBRER - BRE
EHARARHBRNIBEREERS
ERRARFNERRE  WRREBEZ
BRI EERBEERRE - LEERE
BZREREZERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 =—Z— =443k 41



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

hERERWE
A. DlRECTORS (continued)

42

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

According to A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

A briefing session was organised for the Directors for the year under
review to update the Directors on the recent market developments
with respect to the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the
following trainings:
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Attending or participating in
the briefing session/seminars/
programmes relevant to

the business/directors’ duties

HERSEEGEER
ESHBNENE

Name of Directors BEEMNS e B
Executive Directors HITES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REIE(F/E) v
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE v
Chang Wing Yiu oK R v
Ho Yin Sang fal3AE v
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie RIZE v
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick R v
Chen Maosheng BRSCER v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Chan Wing Kwan BROK 4R v
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher B4 v
Henry Tan (retired on 6 May 2013) BRER(R=E—=FRANBRE) -
Lai Chung Wing, Robert R v
Tse Kam Hung b v
Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 August 2013) HEXK(R_Z—=FN\A—BEZT) v

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG
Code on Directors’ training.
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Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company. All the Directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tse Kam Hung (Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung
Wing, Robert and Mr. Tang King Shing, to formulate policies and
procedures for determining the remuneration of Directors and
senior management and other remuneration related matters. The
Remuneration Committee is set up with written terms of reference
which set out clearly its duties and authorities delegated by the Board,
including the following duties:

° formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;

° recommend specific remuneration packages including, where
appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive
payments, and share options, if any, for each executive
Director and the Managing Director and such other members
of senior management as it is designated to consider;
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

o recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

. recommend to the Board the remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors (including non-executive Directors,
if any), taking into account factors such as effort, time spent
and responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to
him by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for
similar position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis
for the year under review is set out on pages 127 to 130 in Note
14 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in terms of
Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened three meetings during which, among other things, the
performance, and the remuneration policy and packages for all
Directors and senior management including the remuneration package
for Mr. Tang King Shing, who was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 August 2013, were considered.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial performance
and operations of the Company to the Audit Committee and the
Board and respond to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit
Committee and the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 53 and 54 of this annual report.

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

o an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.

C.

HEYSEE

B RS EE 3R
EERRARUEEERATFRRASKE
BRI 2 RB IR EFE 2EE - AR
A A AN RN ERRBEAREEZ
FEERERRERZFERR - RRE
BEARNEZZEENEFEE2HRNME
BHARBMBRE N EEBKLAE
BREATZEZWHERRER - Wil
ERZBeRESERIZEANEE
FHSREENZOE - AR BZEED
HREHPBRRAE 2 AREEEHZ
BIRHNAFMESIRE4E 2 BUAZHK
AR o

A EREE IR
REBERT NPT EX BB
ZhONR ¢

. ABEABRENER H BFEF
MEREZIZRER BFESR
AlBy XX o b i< AN E
15 A BEHE R By b R AR 1 T 6
RAEEEE -

. HAECRRAEERZET
EIEZEBHRS - AEEE
BUBFEIERRF  UHESE
KA

. RHESAXBRPBHRE R
e - B ERSHEH
BREMER  WREE R
ERERE &

. RN AR BB R B K (R '

MEEGER  UHETE LR
FEBEEBTIABRT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —Z— =44 45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREAMSE

C.

46

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal controls (continued)

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The
Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the following:

o review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

° review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

° review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the adequacy
of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function,
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit
services to the Company, the Committee will keep the nature and
extent of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
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the Group were as follows: NEVZERERNT

Amount (HK$)
Nature of services RIEMHE SE(GERT)
Audit services ZERTS 13,050,000
Non-audit services SERZ R
()  Tax services () TGRS 267,000
(i) Other services (i)  EMRS 584,000

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-
audited services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded
that in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditor as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial
matters arising during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;

to have full access to and co-operation by the management;

to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer
to attend its meetings; and

to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Chung Wing,
Robert (Chairman), Mr. Tse Kam Hung and Mr. Tang King Shing.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

review of the scope of audit work;

review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2013 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had convened
three meetings.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by a different independent non-executive Director, to
assist the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee.
Each Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements which are
substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang King Shing
(Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert, and Mr. Tse Kam Hung.
According to the written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

o be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise;

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each individual Director to the effectiveness of
the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

Board committees (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee had convened three meetings during which,
among other things, considered and recommended candidates to
the Board to fill the vacancy of independent non-executive Director
as a result of the of retirement of Mr. Henry Tan. The Nomination
Committee also considered the Directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wing and Mr. Chen Maosheng, being executive Directors and
Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher and Mr. Tse Kam Hung, being
independent non-executive Directors, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Tang King Shing, who was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 August 2013, will hold directorship only until
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company according to
Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association and will be eligible
for re-election. During the meetings of the Nomination Committee, it
had considered the policy for the nomination of Directors, and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select
and recommend candidates for directorship.

It had also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and
assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors. All the above-named Directors were nominated by the
Nomination Committee to stand for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each committee are required to attend and answer questions
from shareholders in respect of the matters that they are responsible
and accountable for. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders. The Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their questions,
comments and opinions in relation to the Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other
corporate communications. The notices are also published on the
Company’s website at www.kingboard.com. Separate resolutions are
required at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each shareholder
is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings may request the Company to convene an EGM by
sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:
Address:  2nd Floor, Harbour View 1

No. 12 Science Park East Avenue
Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park
Shatin

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2691 0445/2691 5245
Email: enquiry@kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association.

An up to date version of the Company’s Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited’s website. Shareholders may refer to the
Company’s articles of association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kingboard.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ##58({t T4

BRERER

BT IRERRERLAEN - RRAE L
ERZEAFH(BEERENESR)R
2WORER  HRRZERERE - It
Sh - RIBARRIABERADN - HEL
PRI D2 —ARBMERRAGRE
BB RANBIRAEBAESTSN
RAMEBRHEERL  BRARAFA
FRRERIAS - AREHNB KA
HNEEEHA o

RERAIAAD AT EEMEASEZA
MEESFEDEMEN - BEFED
T

ok BB
> H
HAERZERSE ZH
B ABR+ 5%
HERE— g
BE (852) 2691 0445/2691 5245
BB enquiry@kingboard.com

RRLRAE BRRABZARENER
2R BARBAREACRBERTE)
M IEATF RN R B E baltinit - Wik
HRENEH  BRFBELRED - UL
HAR - BIREM A ERIBERBREM
TIAREE -

EEEER - AQTLE AR SR
MAVER RS -

AR A2 AR E AR A R S TR AN AT A2
AABBUREBBEIHMARRA
BB - BRI 2EARFAEBE
ARG A AEENNEZFHE -

BRIELETHRA - MBERRASREZR
RBRAG AR BIEZE RN ERR
BERERRAEREEREAERRERSE
BREREBBARIMER QAR
U (www.hkexnews.hk ) J2 78 2 7] 48 uh
(www.kingboard.com) Z4ff °



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HEN RS

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 201, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= N\ 7

AN
w3 EJ/IE_

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Notes
B 5

Revenue = 7
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE RIBHRE KA
Gross profit EH
Other income, gains and losses EAb A - Yz R E1E 9
Distribution costs FAKiz DN
Administrative costs TR AN
Gain on fair value changes of investment WEYENFEZS 2 WG

properties 17
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 W&

investments
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity HEFERIBRE 2 W

investments 23
Share-based payments LARR R FE A 3R
Impairment loss on properties, plant and WE - BE MERE 2 REEIE

equipment 18
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AN ERE R EEIE

investments 10
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRB ARz WE 38
Finance costs [ELEE NN 1
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate RIEHE — M E QT2 W 37(a)
Share of results of associates FEAEE S AR AR 22
Profit before taxation R A g A
Income tax expense FriSifsz 12
Profit for the year NG 5 F 13
Profit for the year attributable to: REERMEGNEE

Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEEFEWN

Non-controlling interests FEFERRAE R
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted GRER —EAR RS 16

2013
—E—=

HK$’000

FTET

35,683,457
(31,025,972)

4,657,485
419,000
(942,139)
(1,495,885)
1,406,679

144,901

(44,756)

(479,661)

234,349

3,899,973
(608,350)

3,291,623

2,961,409
330,214

3,291,623

HK$2.8873& ¢

2012

HK$'000
THET

37,290,319
(32,185,963)

5,104,356
343,768
(915,402)

(1,475,352)

28,915
2,634

83,138
(105,754)

(12,847)

(35,002)
9,822
(349,451)
30,377
217,791

2,926,993
(420,028)

2,506,965

2,097,031
409,934

2,506,965
(Restated)

(&E5)
HK$2.045/8 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e Em kA EERER

For the year ended 31 December 20183 HE - ZE—=F+_-A=+—HILFE

2012
—E——F
HK$’000
FAET
Profit for the year REZ R 3,291,623 2,506,965
Other comprehensive income (expense) HEihpmiias (X H)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profitor & EFHIEEIB2IER -
loss:
Translation reserve: b 3 R A
Exchange differences arising from ENEZ2REEMESEZ
translation to presentation currency FEH ZE% 962,601 75,135
Property revaluation reserve: VISR
Fair value changes on properties %%iﬁiﬂ% TIEMERZ
transferred to investment properties N EEE) 5,142 163
967,743 75,298
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently si&RHEEBEEFHHEEIER
to profit or loss: ZIER :
Cash flow hedge: BERER -
Gain on cash flow hedges e MRz e 4,766
Deferred tax recognised in relation MRS RE P E S MIERZ
to change in cash flow hedges IRIEFIR (2,270)
Investment revaluation reserve: A E L
Fair value changes of available-for-sale AIHHEREZ X THEZS)
investments 367,677 511,124
Reclassification adjustment relating to MHEAHEEREMIEL
disposal of available-for-sale ZEHDEARE
investments (145,426) (2,634)
Reclassification adjustment relating to AR ERE 2 REEE
impairment loss on available-for-sale MiEL 2 EF D AR
investments 35,002
Translation reserve: bE S -
Exchange differences arising EITE M E EMEE 2
from translation of foreign operations [ H, = %E 2,613
Exchange reserve released upon disposal HE R B A REE
of a subsidiary R = (682)
Share of change in reserve of associates FEEEE A RIREEEE 20,498 (1,350)
247,421 546,569
Other comprehensive income for the year AREEHEMEPENEE(BFE)

(net of tax) 1,215,164 621,867
Total comprehensive income for the year AREEETENEEE 4,506,787 3,128,832
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2 E Yt 25 42 FEFE(E (H 58 -

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIESF=WN 4,039,154 2,669,490

Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A R 467,633 459,342

4,506,787 3,128,832
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Re AR

At 31 December 2013 R=E—=F+_A=+—H

2013
—E—=

HK$’000

THERT

7,700,029
18,201,741
1,018,926
734,889
2,288,149
677,650
4,250,508
1,405,331
505,609
4,750

36,787,582

3,145,193
17,387,531

8,799,141
2,302,770
28,135
46,649
6,363,240

38,072,659

4,623,108
715,412

3,857,305
603,661
7,172,390

16,971,876

21,100,783

Notes
s
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EME 17
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 18
Prepaid lease payments FERAERE 19
Other non-current assets Hib3EREN B E 20
Goodwill [EES 21
Interests in associates RESE AR 2w 22
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 23
Entrusted loans ZIEER 29
Non-current deposits BT 25
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 32
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 27
Properties held for development FERME 28
Trade and other receivables and B 5 & E M FEBR R
prepayments SERES 29
Bills receivables FEUREE 29
Other current assets HibRBEE 20
Prepaid lease payments JERAERE 19
Taxation recoverable AT el B IE
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 29
Current liabilities neas
Trade and other payables B 5 MhEMEMER 30
Bills payables JEN R 30
Deposits received from pre-sale of TEEMEMKET®
residential units
Taxation payable FES TR
Bank borrowings RITEE 31
Net current assets MEEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRDEE

57,888,365

2012

HK$'000
THET

5,743,663
18,726,836
1,023,789
2,288,149
649,317
3,166,084
258,258
404,510
5,398

32,266,004

3,448,609
10,063,615

8,229,657
2,209,153
712,531
30,329
59,643
3,914,991

28,668,528

4,959,412
874,954
379,156
554,666

5,734,281

12,602,469

16,166,059

48,432,063
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iR B BRI R

At 31 December 2013 A —Z—=F+_-_A=+—H

2013
—E—=

HK$’000

FTET

521,196
16,507,210

17,028,406

40,859,959

102,560
34,055,683

34,158,243
6,701,716

Notes
B 5
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RAETIA A E 32
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 31
Capital and reserves IS 2
Share capital [N 33
Share premium and reserves B&A7 i (B M e
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 Ali% B A FE(G e
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A R 36
Total equity BARIBEE

40,859,959

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 201 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2014 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Kwok Wing
REDSE
DIRECTOR
FE
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2012

HK$'000
THET

258,118

12,024,799

12,282,917

36,149,146

85,467
30,560,168

30,645,635
5,503,511

36,149,146

FESEF20NAZHGEAMBHREREN T 1
FZA-tTRESFTSHAERKENE I

RN

|EERREE

Chang Wing Yiu
Bk IR
DIRECTOR
BF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARRZHE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATRAARGER
Capital Share Special Property  Investment Non-
Share Share  redemption Warrant options  Goodwill surplus  Statutory Hedging  revaluation revaluation ~ Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&% ARER GiRRE 155l 0% RE FER

s ROER  RERE i B BEEE  BERE  LEHR  HREE  ERERE  EMER  ENER  REW & RREE  HREE
HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FEL T TERL TEL FAT T AT FAL T AL FEL T TERL TEL FAL T
(Note o) (Note ) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Mitd) (W) (Wilb) (Hic)

Balence at 1 January 2012 R=F-—%
—A-B2&8 85467 4474830 1

o

669,521 167,089 765,338 10,504 260432 2.4%) 2175 (513086) 2964467 19,138,188 28045380 549,006 33,994,386

Fairvaue chengesof ~ AftHERE

avallle-for-salg JATERD

investments - - - - - - - - - - 467,287 - - 467,287 43837 511,124
Share of change in resenve E(RE SR 1R

of associates 23 - - - - - - - - - - - 1,350 - (1,350) - 1,350
Gain on cash flow hedges - - - - - - - - 4,766 - - - - 4766 - 4,766
Deferred tax recognised

inrelationtochangein A ZERL

cash fow hedges #E - - - - - - - - p2my) - - - - 210) - pamy

Bxchange difrences  RITENMEEET

aising fom transafon B2

of foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - - - - - - 1816 - 1816 Kl 2613
Bxchange reserve released HEFRATER

upon disposal of a ERRE

sibsay Noe38)  (Ffi138) - - - - - - - - - - - (662 . i ) )
Pt o e year AR _ _ _ _ _ - - - - - - - 200708t 2,097,031 409934 2,506,965
Bxchange dfierences  RTEZ2HER

afising from tranglaion T Z[E R,

to presentation curency £ - - - - - - - - - - - 70361 - o3t 4 15,13
Fairvauechengeson ~ MEEREREN

propertes ransleredto £ 2AT(E

investment propertis £ - - - - - - - - - 18 - - - 16 B 163
Redlassifcation acjustment ST/ #HERE 2

relatingtoimpaiment  FEB S

logs on avalable-for-sale 2 B BiEE

investments - - - - - - - - - - 35,002 - - 35,002 - 3,002
Reclassfication adjustment si/EatHER

relating to disposal Emfekz &R

of avalable-for-sdle e

investments - - - - - - - - - - (2634 - - (2634 - (2,634

Totd comprehensive  AEE2ANE
income for the year fat} - - - - - - - - 2496

63 499,655 70,145 2,007,031 2669490 450342 3,128,832

Issue of new sheres fom TR ERT
oxeciseofwarants B 2HRA - 5 - (1) - - - - - - - - - 4 - ¢
Recogniton of equity- BRI,
setfed share-based  MFNEREE
pamets : : ; - W _ _ _ B . - - ST wsm 1057
Final dividend for the year EZ-F——%
ended 31 Decermber ~ T=A=1-8
2011 EEZRE
e - - - - - - - - - - - - (213,667) (213,667) - (213,667)
Intefim iidend for the year HZ: 2
ended 31 Decermber ~~ T=A=+-H

2012 3wl

e - - - - - - - - - - - - (85,467) (85,467) - 85,467)
Acquisiton of interestina WEE—THIBA
subsidiary (Note 37) BRI - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 58,559 58,559
Acquistion of additional  UETHERT
interests in subsidiaries  ESMER - - - - - 154,988 - - - - - - - 154988 (760873 (605,885
Resenves rdleased upon  HEHBAE
dsposal ofasubsdlary  RABE(E - - - - - - - (1851 - - - - 13512 - - -

Dividends paidtonon- — f PHBAR
controling shareholders  Z3EERER

of subsidries 8 - - - - - - - - - - - - - B kT K
Transfer upon lapseof  ERRERRI
warants ikl - - - (669,520) - - - - - - - - 669,520 - - -
Transfers to reserve SERER - - - - - - - 90,160 - - - - 90,160) - - -
- 5 - (669,521) 74907 154,988 - 76,648 - - - - 293,738 (69235 (904837) (974072
Balance at 31 December 1 =F——%
2012 ZA=t-A
= ] 85467 4474835 1911 - 241,946 920,326 10,594 337,080 - 23338 (13431) 3034612 21528957 30645635 5503511 36,149,146
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SAEREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAREARGER
Capital Share Special Property  Investment Non-
Share Share  redemption options Goodwill surplus Statutory { { Translati Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Bx  EEERE #H E RE HER

A RGEE  HERE G HERE  BBRR  LEEG  EGRE  EMBRE  ENBR  REW &t RREE  EREE
HKBOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKPOOO  HKBOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000

Fign Fitn FiEn ThT T T T T TiEn Fign FiEn FiEn FhT Tt
(Note d) (Note ) (Note b) (Note )
GEL) (Hita) (Hfztb) (Hfzkc)
Balanceat 1 January 2013 R=F-=%
—A-HE# 85,467 4474835 1911 241,946 920,326 10,694 337,080 23,338 (13431) 3034612 21528957 30,645,635 5503511 36,149,146
Fair value changes of ALERE
avallable-for-sale ZATEED
investments - - - - - - - - 361,020 - - 361,020 6,657 367,677
Share of change in reseve of FEfEBIE AT
associates GRS - - - - - - - - - 20,498 - 20498 - 20493
Exchange differences arising BT &SR 4 T
from tranglation of foreign B4 ZER
operations 28 - - - - - - - - - 3247 - 3247 1,425 4672
Profit for the year TEFRT - - - - - - - - - - 2,961,409 2,961,409 330,214 3,291,623

Exchange differences RFEZ2HE%

ariging from translationto A ZELE

presentation currency 2 - - - - - - - - - 833,264 - 833,264 129,337 962,601
Fair value changes on NEBEERE

properties trangferred to  MEE 2 ATE

investment properties 25 - - - - - - - 5142 - - - 5142 - 5142
Reclassification adjustment ~ $iiH £ A k&%
relating to disposal ALz 85
of avallable-for-sale HRER
investments - - - - - - - - (145,426) - - (145,426) - (145,426)
Total comprehensive income - A48 2z
for the year &E - - - - - - - 5,142 215,504 857,009 2,961,409 4,039,154 467,633 4,506,787
Issug of new shares from ~ EERELRMEST
bonus issue 2kt 17,003 (17,093) - - - - - - - - - - - -
Recognition of equity-settled  BEZALIRIAR,
share-based payments fiERREE - - - 31,840 - - - - - - - 31,840 12916 4756
Final dividend for the year ~ HZ=
ended 31 December 2012 +=A=+—H
IHEEZKE
B - - - - - - - - - - (358,960) (358,960) - (358,960)
Interim dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013 +=A=+-H
IHEEZHE
- - - - - - - - - - (102,560) (102,560) - (102,560)
Special dvidend for the year I-=f
ended 31 December 2013 +=A=1-H
IFEE ¥R
K - - - - - - - - - - (205,120) (205,120) - (205,120)
Acquisition of additional ~ WREEBIBA A
interests in subsidiaries 351 - - - - 108,254 - - - - - - 108,254 (216,732) (108.478)

Capital contribution from non- B2 FFEERAR
controling shareholders of ~ EHA%E
subsidiaries . - - - - - - - - - - - 1,165,622 1,165,522
Dividends paid to non- THFHERAZ
controling shareholders of IR Z

subsidiaries &E - - - - - - - - - - - - (231,134 (231,134
Transfers o resenve HEEER - - - - - - 54,480 - - - (54,480) - - -
17,093 (17,093) - 31,840 108,254 - 54,480 - - - (721,120) (526,546) 730,572 204,026
Balance at 31 December ~ R=F-=
2013 T -
25 102560 4,457,742 1,911 213,786 1,028,580 10,694 391,560 28,480 202163 3891621 23769246 34158243 6,701,716 40,859,959
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AN
w3

EREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

Notes:

(@)

Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the issued share
capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the Company under the group
reorganisation in 1993.

Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds
shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production operations.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on revaluation of
certain properties of the Group for own use as a result of transfer of those properties
for own use from properties, plant and equipment to investment properties.

Goodwill reserve represents the effects of changes in ownership in certain
subsidiaries when there is no change in control.

TEE

iRl B RR B B AR R BHTHROEESRALRT
R—AN=FREEESHRBMBLRDE
TRATEZ Z8 °

EERBBERETANREELES » HEETR
hEARAME ([FEDKZHRE AR ZRE
BEMEAMEERRZEMBRARZBREES
HEREORHIARFEBRK(FEREES
38 o

AEENEEGRFRBEANEE TOERERAZ
ME - BERREEREREMENEL 2B
ez o

AEREEE THBRRERHEIAZBNE

RT 2 BEREBYE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FAERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of results of associates

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade

and other receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
inventories

Dividends from available-for-sale investments

Interest expenses and other finance charges
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

RExK
B 75 At )
HE
i =)l NETE i
M - BERRETE
B 5 K H A AR R AER 2
BRI
IF ERER R ERE
AHEEREZRE

MBS REMBEE M
HERHEERE 2 WS

Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity investments &8 2 RIEAKRE 2 W&

Gain on fair value changes of investment
properties

Gain on deemed disposal of an associate

Release of prepaid lease payments

Interest income

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Loss on disposal and write off of properties,
plant and equipment

Share-based payments

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
properties, plant and equipment

REMELNFEEH
Yeas
BYEH & — B & DR 2 e
TENEERAREE
A SHA
AR EREZRE
g
HERMIEME - BE &
H i B
PARBAD FZ AR
HE—ARE LRz s
HERNBEERE 2 s
IR - BB RREERZ
BB

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Increase in properties held for development
(Increase) decrease in trade and
other receivables and prepayments
Increase in bills receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables
Decrease in bills payables
Increase (decrease) in deposits received from
pre-sale of residential units

Ret2BESEHA 2
RERSRE

FERD (8 M)

(EESEVES I

B 5 REM R &
BN RIEGE )R

eSS ill

B 5 A ENERTOR

e RBR

BEMEZFT2EMORD)

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) paid

REXBAGRS
EHMEBMEMR

EAFE IR ER ([ HIRER])

Other income taxes paid Eh B BFEH
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RK&XEHMEBREESE
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2013
—Eg—=

HK$’000

THET

3,899,973

(234,349)
2,275,230

194,030

3,793
(112,151)
479,661

(144,901)

(1,406,679)
30,910
(240,957)

1,798
44,756

(4,563)

4,786,551
353,728
(6,467,637)

(817,854)

(41,628)
(586,390)
(197,978)

3,466,252

495,044
(3,589)
(43,908)
(270,832)

176,715

2012

HK$'000
TET

2,926,993

(217,791)
2,199,986

26,831

1,652
(109,432)
349,451

(2,634)
(83,138)

(28,915)
(30,377)
30,434
(192,228)

35,002

48,617
105,754
(9,822)
(653)

12,847

5,062,477
(5619,348)
(429,808)

63,193
(88,993)
(258,355)
(126,746)

(1,044,172)

2,658,248
2,772)
(31,936)
(501,406)

2,122,134



GONSOI_IDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,., < Eﬁiumiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

2013
—E—=

HK$’000

FTET

(3,978,821)
(1,308,771)
(1,205,434)

(273,783)
(271,376)
(62,680)
3,261,549
215,189
204,503
123,904
112,151

72,534
42,000

(3,069,035)

Notes
s
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Purchase of available-for-sale investments B & a[ftH&E&E
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment BB 4% - WE L& E
Net increase in entrusted loans ZREEFIEINFEE
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, B EWE - HE R
plant and equipment REBFIRT 2
Purchase of investment properties BEIREYE
Prepaid lease payments made BEREMNHEERIE
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale &R HEIRE
investments Fr{SEIR
Dividend received from an associate B AR B
Interest received B B
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant  HEWZE - HE X
and equipment RABFTS A
Dividends received from available-for-sale B AT SR ERE
investments
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease HEBMNHEERE
payments Fr{SEIR
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits 2 & R4 TFZUR A (3L 1)
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries  H&EHB R R 2 IR & R HF58 38
Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity — HEHHFEF|HAKRE
investments Fr{SEIR
Net cash outflow on acquisition of g DN S
subsidiaries Be i FeE 37
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEBFTARESFE
ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
New bank borrowings raised FIIRITIEE
Capital contribution from non-controlling B & X B 2 FEFE AR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries LB
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITIEE
Dividend paid on ordinary shares RS AR S

Interest and other finance charges paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Consideration paid for acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries
Proceeds from exercise of warrants

ENFIEREMEE &R

S T HIB R R Z IR AR
ZBE

Y B BT 1 RIRRSME R P S
RE

T8 BB RE P 1S 0R

10,218,080

928,397
(4,332,701)
(666,640)
(479,661)

(231,134)

(108,478)

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING & EE S (FTR)BE&FE

ACTIVITIES

5,327,863

2012
HK$'000
T

(2,407,553)
(1,295,175)
(271,362)
(93,911)
(703,808)
(14,092)
4,037,734
216,977
177,598
76,436
109,432
15,166
(29,679)
(30,264)
1,061,626

(1,504,544)

(655,419)

7,850,325

(8,397,574)
(299,134)
(356,967)
(233,370)

(605,885)
4

(2,042,601)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERESMER
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH R4e&RRELSEEREMCHS)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE £¥>B e RESZHEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE [EZXR&E 5
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE £ XZ2BH&R

END OF THE YEAR REEEER
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF REFRESLEEEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EER DT
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS
Less: Pledged bank deposits B EERERITER

Balances of cash and cash equivalents R&£RESZEIER &8
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2013
—E—=

HK$’000

FTET

2,435,543

3,752,100

49,595

6,237,238

6,363,240
(126,002)

6,237,238

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
FAT

(5675,886)

4,304,197

23,789

3,752,100

3,914,991
(162,891)

3,752,100



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - ZE—=F+_-A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL 1.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture of
laminates, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), chemicals, liquid crystal
displays (“LCDs”), magnetic products and property development and
investment (“Properties”).

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 joint arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
transition guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee benefits

—REH

ARBEREHESEMAILALETER
RAE - ERDAEBRZZ ERED o K
YNGIESRIIEIE i b - S
RAFRIRRER | — 8P R -

RARBREZBR AT - EHBRARZ
F B EEBHTIFE45 -

HEMB AR BN EERER - EIRI
AREEIR (TENRIARBEAR 1) ~ (L TEMm
RERBERR(BRRBERFE] W
EERBEEEBNEMESLE RIRE
GZESDE

FERAMBREEIIZE
ERBRHERN(FE
P ER AR AR )

AEERAFEEERERATHEES
ARG ([BBEFEIAE ) BMmAH
B RRERT BBV R

BRMBRRER  BHEMERIRER

2{&5] —ETNFE
—ET——F3

B Skl
ESHEEHRHRER R EKENSE
BT ZABET ERFBaE

BRMBRRER  RaMBEHEK -
F105% - BEME HERHERK
REERIE1EN  BREMER
BRMBRRER w0 BE

F125 2 185] M3

EBVIERRER  SRAMB®RE
F105%

EBVISRRER HRTH
F115R

EHEHRHRER HEAEMEERN
E12%% xR

BB ERREN AFER=
F135%

ExeHERE19 EEEF
F(ZT—F
KLYEET)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. MERHEREBITZE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ARERREN(FE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued) /\ji% =] ﬁ@i:,\u 1) (#)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate financial statements BRGFERF27 B IS mE
F(ZT——%F
55T
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in associates and joint B GHERFE8 REEDTIREE
ventures FR(ZT——%F EZIRE
HEET)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other AR HEtzmEmks=EE
comprehensive income B2 1EE] P&l
HK(FRIC*) - INT 20 Stripping costs in the production 76 (BB 75 BABISEERER
phase of a surface mine FRERAER|RE HYSKIBRPK AR
ZEe)—#%E
205
* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations * ER B SRR E RIS B 2B E R
Committee. BRMEARELZES -
Except as described below, the application of the new and revised RN ESN  REZERIHE NEEET
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the EBUIS R RER S AR EBAFE LB
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior TFERTIERIR R BMRITIA R, 3
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial RAGRAVERERATHMNIFEL EEK
statements. s
New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint GE - HEZRH - BELATIRE
arrangements, associates and disclosures BRI R LIET AR
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the AEBPAFEEXNER RV EHLT
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, A HEZH - BEAREFEENRE
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated R - BIEEAVBRRERE105%
financial statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12 [(REBEREK ] BEMBHRERSE
“Disclosure of interests in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 115R REAZHE] - BEMEBRRERSE
2011) “Separate financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 125 [ ENEMEENER] 558
2011) “Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together with SPERFE7HR( T ——F KB E
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding YRR IR E RS ERFE285E (—
transitional guidance. T——FEEND [ RBERE REE D
¥R E ] BRBERBEIESINES
WIS IRERIF 105 - BN B RIRE
AIEE115% R BB 15 R ERERI 1257 2
1BaT °
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it AR E B ERF275 (=T ——F
deals only with separate financial statements. BT ERBB MBS ®RE - Wk
AN E AR AER o
Except as described below, the adoption of the package of five BRI atESN - A — R RIEERE AR
standards has had no material impact on the Group’s financial EBENMERERTESATE -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)
Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, and associates.
In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements (please
see notes 45, 24 and 22 for details).

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and
disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad: the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items
for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the
purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment
assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period
(please see notes 6¢ and 17 for the 2013 disclosures). Other than
the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

2.

68

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuedq)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income”. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’ and the income statement is renamed as the
‘statement of profit or loss’. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities?

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: employee

contributions?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date of
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures?®

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities?
Recoverable amount disclosures for

non-financial assets!

Amendments to HKAS 36

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ##58({t T4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE —E—=F+_-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuedq)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 — 2012 cycle?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21 Levies!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and
further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NC R ER E
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE —E—=F+_-A=+—HILFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAMBREETIZE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B FRRER (B
STAN DARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued) E\ i% EF ﬁ;ﬁ—ﬁu J ) (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued) EBMEPRFEREEE SEMTA
&
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: %/é B FE RSBSOS M T B T
T
All recognised financial assets that are within the scope . BB EAFEINHEARLY
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and i DRSS EERE B
Measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost MR AR AT ESE - AR
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within = UEHENRBATES T
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual BERESNERIRE  RAF
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are LN A S i R B RS B K
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal & RAEMOERSRNEBER
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the B — RN EB e IR &
end of the subsequent accounting periods. All other debt HRE B R AREE o FRA EAM
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair EERE R EANERY
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, R HARS A A IR N TERE o
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election HON - AR BB S R RER|E
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity 9%E - fg@j{/;ﬂjﬁjﬁ&@ K
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive 12 REMEEWEED 2RE A
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in 8 (WIEEESS) AFER
profit or loss. H2E  HEREMABER
B o
The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the AATIEE([EE ) EY ARERS
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact B RS R B B OB Al AL & Y AN L2 )
on amounts reported for the Group’s financial assets in respect RAEBEAHNERENTEEEN 2R
of available-for-sale investments. However, it is not practicable to SEEEREATE o RifT - EERBE
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has SRR REEIR AT BN ARG
been completed. o

Except as described above, Directors anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

B Eui ESN  ERTEEREAH ML &
FUSRT BB RRER TS EH RS
IS HRFTIENERNTE ©

70 KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Bt T&=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERa B RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investeg;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ##58({t T4

3.

EESEER e

ZEHBEREIIOT ¢

REREEE
RAEMBRIEARRRENE AR &
HAENEBNMBHRRGEAK - &
ARRABHIRIATERE RIRAEE ?ﬂ
T

. AR E NRIITERED

+ wRAeEESRRTRTIRS
$&¢7¥(§H N‘EX¥E$EZ—|J

. BRENTTERE N AZEHBIR -

%58 RIERBERIA LS =SS
REA A LR EE - AKEE
MERTRGREEARMNIEHIREE
#ratfl o

AER BT I E A AT B E R A 15
B A RERA AR » RERKIEHIER A
RIEARR - REBME - FAMKELL
ENBRARZWMARAXRAEEER
2 BB AR R BaE M EE
Wk BEEAEETBEGHZMER

AR -

X%E&EM%E%ﬁEEE“Ei$

RAVHEB ARIEER R - B ARH
PEBEEBIDEERNRAERAR
SEVERR MR - BORE U R BRI R M e
HIRE AL SRR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERa B RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash generating units (“CGU”) (or groups of CGU) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro rata basis on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwiill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwiill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
is described below.
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3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for
sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
return and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =%

n.

3.

—=F+_A=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income and licence fee income are recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease and licence agreement.
The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue for operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for lands and development costs, are included
in properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
investment properties when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount of the properties is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
properties, plant and equipment when there is a change of intention
to hold the properties for the Group’s own use rather than for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Its previous carrying amount of the
properties becomes the deemed cost upon transfers to properties,
plant and equipment.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment (other than properties, plant and
equipment under construction) less their residual value over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes, are carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate category of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sales.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as other non-current assets or other
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less the
estimate costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

All intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than goodwill (see the accounting policies in

respect of goodwill))

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease and license agreement.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as properties, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the group entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint arrangements that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity under the heading translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January 2005
is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERa B RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reserve in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERa B RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend income or interest income earned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
other non-current assets/other current assets, trade and other
receivables, entrusted loans, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary, bills receivables and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale investments equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company to acquire a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency
are equity instruments if the Company offers the warrants pro rata to
all of its existing owners of the same class of its own-derivative equity
instruments. Warrants are recorded in warrant reserve at fair value
on initial recognition. When the warrants are exercised, the portion
of subscription money with the nominal value of the ordinary shares
is recognised to the share capital account while any excess of the
subscription money over the nominal value of ordinary shares is taken
into the share premium account. Upon exercise of warrants, the
relevant portion of warrant reserve is reallocated to share premium
account. When the warrants are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in warrant reserve is transferred to
retained profits.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries bills payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to Directors and employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve.

At end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 17 and 32)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s certain investment
properties located in PRC of carrying amount of approximately
HK$4,390,819,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$3,139,363,000)
are held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of such investment properties are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on LAT in respect of changes in fair value of such investment
properties but has recognised deferred tax on Enterprise Income Tax
on the assumption that these investment properties will be recovered
through use.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 17 and 32)
(continued)

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
of carrying amount of HK$1,873,795,000 and HK$1,435,415,000
at 31 December 2013 respectively (2012: located in Hong Kong
and United Kingdom of approximately HK$1,342,320,000 and
HK$1,261,980,000 respectively) are not held under a business model
whose objective is to recover the economic benefits of the investment
properties entirely through use. Accordingly, no deferred tax is
recognised in respect of the fair value change in such investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of investment properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
because no capital gain tax arising from property sales in Hong Kong
and no capital gain tax arising from non-resident properties in United
Kingdom.

Legal claim (note 40)

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements. Management has evaluated
and assessed the claims made against the Group based on legal
advice received and information presently available and is of the view
that it is difficult to provide the estimates on the outcome of the case
as it is still at an early stage. Accordingly, no provision and accrual are
made in the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill (note 21)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill arising
is HK$2,288,149,000 (2012: HK$2,288,149,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 21.

4.

BEASFTHE R AT
BAEARZ 2 F ERKIR )

FERERSTBR ZEAHE ()

REYEZELERE (17 R KE32)
€))
NREBEBRAENRENER T —=
FH+-_A=+—HNEAENZAA
1,873,795,000 /& st & 1,435,415,000
BL(ZE—ZF NRBEBRE
2 Bl # A 1,342,320,000 78 T &
1,261,980,0007%8 70 ) I FE 12 5 @ 1% A ify
W B4 B Y3 2 BB R a5 M E TSR =
A Bt BRASEEARLEER
BREREIEEMEMS G - &
ERERREVENDFEEHERER
TR RAEBMEBETEELS
AAEHR  ZEFERMENEEELE
ARFSEL o

A R ([EE40)

A BTG IR MR 40EE - AEEY
NOERRHFD - ERERBARIVERE
REBREAIBER - FHE R HHEA
SEREEZENHER - EEERAS - AR
EZRMER TR - A SERIED
et o Bt - AEEWEAL AR BHR
Rt BB R IARFOR -

fhET FABMER 2 EEZRR
TXFMARE AR EERR I @SN
RERE BT TRARRRZEMBER
KR - MEREE T EERREE
RASEERABER TEMBEFE 28R
EEEHERABZERREL

AR A (HE21)
ErmEREHIRAER  AhiraE
sz ReELESNFEREE -
AEEEFREAERARBHRA
ZHEcELENZBRBESRERE
BB EED G UETERE -
WERARKRESRE DR TBEHE -
ARt e EAEARAERE - N=F
—=F+-A=t+—HB BEZEEE
49/52,288,149,0008 L (=T — —4F :
2,288,149,000/8 7T ) ° AU [EFKIEFT &
BRI 21 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —Z— =44 95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

4.

96

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income taxes (note 32)

At 31 December 2013, deferred tax assets of (i) approximately
HK$12,522,000 (2012: HK$12,522,000) in relation to unused tax
losses and (i) approximately HK$14,836,000 (2012: HK$15,312,000)
in relation to write-down of inventories have been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$733,318,000
(2012: HK$434,357,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 18)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its properties, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are expected to be shorter than previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these estimations
may have a material impact on the results of the Group. The Group
tests whether properties, plant and equipment have suffered any
impairment in accordance with its accounting policy whenever
there is any indication that the assets may have been impaired.
The recoverable amounts of properties, plant and equipment have
been determined based on discounted cash flow method of each
asset or a CGU. The Directors consider that the recoverable amount
exceeded the carrying amount of the properties, plant and equipment
and therefore, no impairment was recognised at 31 December
2013. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts of properties,
plant and equipment are approximately HK$18,201,741,000 (2012:
HK$18,726,836,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$149,585,000 (2012: HK$149,585,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 18) (continued)

In addition, for the licenced properties, plant and equipment, the
recoverable amounts have been determined based on discounted
cash flow method. The Directors consider that the recoverable
amount exceeded the carrying amount of the licenced properties,
plant and equipment and therefore, no impairment was recognised
at 31 December 2013 and 2012. As at 31 December 2013, the
carrying amounts of licenced properties, plant and equipment are
approximately HK$685,797,000 (2012: HK$799,580,000).

Recoverability of the licenced inventory (note 20)

As described in note 20, the Licensee (as defined in note 18) is
required to return the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed
during the licence period to the Group at the end of the licence period,
on 31 August 2015, either by way of cash or identical inventory
with the same value as the licenced inventory used, consumed or
disposed. The recoverable amount of the licenced inventory used,
consumed or disposed during the licence period is secured by cash
and bills receivables of a related party of the Licensee (the “Securities”).

In determining the recoverable value of the Securities, the Group takes
into consideration the validity and existence of the Securities at each
month end and estimates the recoverable value of the Securities. In
this regard, the management of the Company is satisfied that the risk
is minimal and the recoverable value of the Securities is not less than
the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed at each month
end.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (note 29)

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables are approximately HK$5,763,394,000
(2012: HK$5,214,158,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$758,650,000 (2012: HK$572,319,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques
that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to Directors. Any changes in the price per square metre by reference
to recent transactions will affect the fair value of the investment
properties of the Group. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties are disclosed in note 17.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will assess the valuation of financial instruments based
on quoted bid prices of the previous trading day in the markets at
the end of each reporting period. As mentioned above, the fair value
of the Group’s bond securities listed in the Stock Exchange and the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading (“SGX”), the pricing vendors
will assess its fair value taking into account primarily the fair value
quoted by the brokers which is adjusted for the lack of marketability of
the bond securities at the end of the reporting period. Pricing vendors
will exercise their judgements based on their experience to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
valuation model. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the available-for-sale investments, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the Directors. Any changes in the marketability of
the listed bond securities will affect the fair value of the investments.
Notes 6¢ and 23 provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale investments.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments
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AEAEBZER - EERRAEER
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2013 2012
—ZE—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Financial assets BREE
Loans and receivables (including cash BRNMEWER(BERE N
and cash equivalents) ReFEEEH)
— trade and other receivables — B 5 REMEUERR 7,680,137 5,697,921
— bills receivables —EREE 2,302,770 2,209,153
— bank balances and cash —IRITEHBRIES 6,363,240 3,914,991
16,346,147 11,822,065
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 4,250,508 3,166,084
Financial liabilities HHEE
Amortised cost - B WiN
— trade and other payables — B 5 REMENRR 3,424,793 3,700,476
- bills payables —ENEE 715,412 874,954
— bank borrowings —RITIEE 23,679,600 17,759,080
27,819,805 22,334,510
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 22.5% (2012: 22.2%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities making the
sale, whilst almost 20.6% (2012: 17.6%) of purchases are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(o) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of United States dollars (“‘US$”), Euro, and Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$"). The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2012: 5%) increase and decrease in
functional currency of each group entity against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2012: 5%) represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only the
outstanding monetary items denominated foreign currencies
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2012: 5%) changes in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, available-for-sale investments, bank balances,
trade and other payables, bills payables as well as bank
borrowings. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit for the year which the functional currency
of each group entity strengthens 5% (2012: 5%) against the
relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening of
functional currency of each group entity against the relevant
foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit for the year.
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In the opinion of Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate entrusted loans (Note 29 for details of the other
financial assets), bank borrowings (see note 31 for details
of these borrowings) and listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest (see note 23 for details of these listed bond
securities). The management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider repayment of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate in Hong Kong dollars (“HIBOR”) and the interest
rates offered by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) arising
from the Group’s bank borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed-rate
short-term bank deposits, entrusted loans and listed bond
securities with fixed coupon interest. The Directors consider
the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank deposits to
interest rate risk is not significant as interest-bearing bank
balances are within short maturity period.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2012:
50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2012: 10 basis
points) decrease is used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 50 basis points (2012:
50 basis points) higher and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 would increase by HK$26,948,000 and
decrease by HK$99,515,000 (2012: increase by HK$
HK$16,766,000 and decrease by HK$72,862,000) as
a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its interest-bearing bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings respectively; and

° the credit side investment valuation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would decrease by
HK$38,604,000 (2012: debit side reserve would
increase by HK$13,564,000) as a result of the change
in the fair value of listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 10 basis points (2012:
10 basis points) lower and all other variables were held

constant, the Group’s:

post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
would decrease by HK$5,390,000 and increase by
HK$19,903,000 (2012: decrease by HK$3,353,000
and increase by HK$14,572,000) as a result of the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its interest
bearing bank balances and variable-rate borrowings
respectively; and

the credit side investment valuation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would increase
by HK$7,228,000 (2012: debit side reserve would
decrease by HK$2,288,000) as a result of the change
in the fair value of listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest.

In the opinion of Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% higher (2012: 10% higher):

o No effect for post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: post-tax profit for the year
would increase by approximately HK$25,352,000) as
a result of the change in fair value of these available-
for-sale investments.

o The credit side investment revaluation reserve for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would increase
by HK$48,283,000 (2012: debit side reserve
would decrease by HK$111,218,000) as a result
of the change in fair value these available-for-sale
investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% lower (2012: 10% lower):

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
would decrease by approximately HK$48,283,000
(2012: HK$136,570,000) as a result of the change in
fair value of these available-for-sale investments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% higher (2012: 10% higher):

o the credit side investment revaluation reserve
would increase by approximately HK$104,254,000
(2012: debit side investment revaluation reserve
would decrease by HK$286,899,000) as a result of
the change in fair value of these available-for-sale
investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% lower (2012: 10% lower):

° No effect for post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: post-tax profit for the year
would decrease by approximately HK$190,795,000)
as a result of the change in fair value of these
available-for-sale investments; and

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would decrease by
approximately HK$104,254,000 (2012: debit side
investment revaluation reserve would increase by
HK$96,104,000) as a result of the change in fair value
of these available-for-sale investments.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration of equity
price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 46.0%
(2012: 70.1%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in two (2012: two) equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are
exposed to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price of
the equity in the market.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
31 December 2013 and 2012 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has delegated the members of the Directors responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and
entrusted loans at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Moreover, the entrusted loans are pledged by the
properties held by the borrowers. In this regard, the Directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with various
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables and entrusted loans with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers. However, the Group is exposed to concentration
on geographic segment in PRC. At 31 December 2013,
approximately 91% (2012: 91%) and 100% (2012: 100%) of
the Group’s trade and other receivables and entrusted loans
respectively are arising from counterparties whose principal
place of operation is the PRC.

At 31 December 2013, the Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk on its available-for-sale debt investments
as 32.4% (2012: 20.7%) of the total available-for-sale
investments is concentrated in three (2012: one) listed bond
securities issued by three (2012: one) listed issuers in Hong
Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale debt investments are
exposed to credit risk due to the default of repayment by the
bond issuers. However, the Directors considered the credit
risk on these investments is limited as the listed bonds are
secured by certain assets of the issuers and the issuers are
listed companies in Hong Kong.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. At 31 December 2013, the Group has available
unutilised bank borrowings facilities of approximately
HK$6,666,432,000 (2012: HK$11,136,273,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted
average  On demand
effective ~ or less than
interestrate 3 months
mEws  EERE
EBRE  ZfEAR
% HK$'000
Tén

6. EITHu
b) HMBEBEEEERBX
(8)
REBESRM(E)
BB RFIFEE K
Over Over Over
3 months 1year 2years Total
but not more  but not more but not more  undiscounted
than1year than2years than5years cash flows
ZEANE  -ERE WEML  EAERS
BFER-5 BFEEmF BTHELE  REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TERL TEn

Carrying
amount

Rt
HK$'000
TEn

At 31 December 2013 W-8-=£+-B=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 37481 &E
Trade and other payables LS REMEMNER 3,424,193 3424793 3424793
Bils payables EHEE 715,412 715412 715,412
Bank borrowings RS
- fixed rate -E& - 14,938 - - 14,938 14,245
- variable rate -%8 1,120,097 4,514,331 7344733  11,176927 24,816,094 23,665,355
5060302 4500275 734733 11176927 28971237 27,819,805
At 31 December 2012 WoE-—#+-B=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 34748 H&E
Trade and other payables B REBERE - 3700476 - - - 3700476 3,700,476
Bllls payables ES - 874,954 - - - 874,954 874,954
Bank borrowings HiTfEE
- fixed rate -TE& 58 482,517 218,835 66,993 - 768,345 745,049
- variable rate -%8 1.9 2,547,533 2,650,074 4,877,900 7765899 17,741,406 17,014,031
7605480 2768900 4944803 7765899 23,085,181 22,334,510
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2013,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these
bank borrowings amounted to HK$1,119,724,000 (2012:
HK$1,301,679,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be fully repaid after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates ranging from two to nineteen (2012: two to twenty)
years as set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$1,211,289,000 (2012: HK$1,402,413,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued) 6.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

€M I A
(c) EBMIEATETE®E)

AEBEZAPELBELELER
BEHENUBEEZ A TVEE)

Fair value as at Valuation Significant
31 December  Fair value techniques unobservable
Financial assets 2013 hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
HN-T—=
+=ZA=t—H82 fRERMT R BEATAHE
MBEE AFE AFEER FTERABE BWABE BRE
HK$’000
FHET

(i) Listed equity 2,183,513 1 Quoted bid prices  n/a n/a
securities in active market
classified as
available-for-
sale financial
assets in the
consolidated
statement of
financial position

() PEEFBIRRE ERTISEARE TEA TE A
RO RF A
EMBEEL &
MR ES

(i) Listed bond 1,909,503 3 Reference to the The lack of A significant
securities fair value quoted marketability increase in
classified as in the over- the lack of
available-for- the-counter marketability
sale financial market with the would result
assets in the adjustments in a significant
consolidated for the lack of decrease in
statement of marketability the fair value
financial position and vice

versa

(i) PEEEFBHIRRE SLBSINTERE BRZTESREE TSRaMHRS
PR A - I EE MEERRE N
EMBEEL & RZmismEE SENNTE
MEHEH T LAFEEE BETR R

Z IR

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013.

BHE-_T——FRk-_ZT—=F
+-A=+—HILBRFE £
HEF TR MR EETTER -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

6. EMIHw

(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments (o) =SemMIBEQAFEIER

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial

FEFRAFPEHIRBKELER
BEFENHBEEZ DA TVEE)
E-HHBEEZ N FEAEZ

assets #ikR
Listed bond
securities
tHESFFES
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H 271,635
Addition NE 1,417,867
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive R Efth 2 EU 25 FER 2
income N ERE 54,790
Disposal k= (1,088,040)
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 RZZE——F+-_A=+—8BK
—E—=%—H—H 656,252
Addition %E 1,204,737
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive R Efh & B WS HEZR 2
income NEERE 48,514
At 31 December 2013 RN_E—=F+_-_F=+—H 1,909,503

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
HK$48,514,000 (2012: HK$54,790,000) relating to listed
bond securities held at the end of the reporting period and is
reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve for the

year ended 31 December 2013.
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7.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable by
the Group from the sales of goods and services rendered to outside
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes, and
rental income received and receivable, analysis of revenue for the year

is as follows:

LR

BEREEASERSERNEHINER
HEEMORITH - RERHEHER
H) -~ REIRG 2 P R R S BRF R
ARBEH R EEESEA - BFEHEE

O

2013
—=E—=

HK$°000

FET

Sales of laminates
Sales of chemicals
Sales of PCBs
Sales of properties
Rental income
Others (Note)

HHEE AR
HE(TER
585 BRI AR B AR
HEME
GEEALUN
HoA (P &)

10,994,401
16,375,102
7,155,270
532,488
626,196

35,683,457

Note:  Amount included service income of HK$41,722,000 (2012: HK$53,407,000)
and sales of LCDs and magnetic products of HK$584,474,000 (2012:
HK$554,272,000) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

2012
T fF
HK$’000
Tt

10,749,477
16,844,545
7,253,301
1,434,243
401,074
607,679

37,290,319

s BHE-_Z-—=ZF+-_A=+—H1t
FE - BIER % M A 41,722,000
7L (=% — — 4 : 53,407,000 7T )
UREERABETRREEEMK
A 584,474,000 T (ZF — Z4F

554,272,000/ 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ERa B RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to segments and
to assess their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 were organised into five
main operating divisions — (i) manufacture and sales of laminates,
(i) manufacture and sales of PCBs, (i) manufacture and sales of
chemicals, (iv) Properties and (v) others (including service income,
manufacture and sale of LCDs and magnetic products). No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements. The CODM
assess segment profit or loss using a measure of operating profit
whereby certain items are not included in arriving at the segment
results of the operating segments (share of results of associates,
impairment loss on available-for-sale investments, gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments/held-to-maturity investments, gain on
disposal of a subsidiary, gain on deemed disposal of an associate,
income tax expenses, finance costs, share-based payments and
unallocated corporate income and expenses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninued) 8. ZEER
(@ Segment revenues and results () DHEXBERHESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AT ARBRRSEEI D 2 ANEE
by reportable segments: AR Ty 2 4E S ST

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations Consolidated
BAER ORSER  (IER nx At Hi &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tén TR Tén Tin TR TR TR

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-E-ZE1Cf

=t-HILEE

Segment revenue NHEEE

External sales HMEED 10994401 7,155270 16,375,102 626,196 - 35683457

Inter-segment sales NEECHES 2,061,045 - 827,257 5414 (2,894,616) -
Total Ait 13,056,346  7,155270 17,202,359 631,610  (2,804,616) 35,683,457
Result E+

Segment result HHEE 1410875 302325 652,451 1,728,890 4,137,085

(Gain on disposal of HETHHERE

avalable-for-sale investments 144,901

Share-based payments P GREARE (44,756)

Unallocated corporate income FAEZATMA 185,249

Unallocated corporate expenses AL AN (277,194)
Finance costs BEKK (479,661)
Share of results of associates BIRBENAEE 234,349
Profit before taxation S iha 3,899,973
Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market DEE Z EEBI2EM BT
prices. o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z— =443 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninued) 8. THEE
(a) Segment revenues and results (continued) (@) PHEXBRELE&SD
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
ERER  DRSER  LIER i i Fafid )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL Thn AT Thn AT Thr TEL
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-E-—E+CR
ZT-HLFE
Segment revenue NHEEE
External sales IMEER 10,749477 7253301 16,844,545 1,835,317 607,679 - 37,290,319
Inter-seqment sales PPEIHER 2,191,865 - 713306 - 823 (2,913.407) -
Total Rit 12941342 7258301 17,557,851 1,835,317 615915 (2913407) 37,290,319
Result E3
Segment result HHEE 1,390,633 411,162 654,278 621,142 45,063 3,122,178
(Gain on disposal of a subsidiary N 9,822
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 8 {EH E—REE A2
& 30,317
Impairment loss on avalable-for-sale ~ RHERE HEER
investments (35,002)
Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale ~ FETEEERE M
investments 2,634
(Gain on disposal of held-to-maturtty ERFRIERE e
investments 83,138
Share-based payments WRGFANT (105,754)
Unallocated corporate income WAL ON 207,819
Unallocated corporate expenses O AN (266,559)
Finance costs HANK (349,451
Share of results of associates N 217,791
Profit before taxation BHaER 2,926,993
Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market DEE ZIHERIREMEST
prices. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninueq)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable segments:

8. EER

(b) DHEEREER
T RIREAEHDAE D 2 N%
BMEENABEZDN

At 31 December 2013 R=B-=F
TZA=t-H
Assets BB
Segment assets PHEE
Avallable-for-sale investments MRNMERE
Interests in associates REE AR 2 ER
Unallocated corporate assets Kol REEE
~Bank balances and cash - TR RS
- Deferred tax assets - BRWEEE
- Taxation recoverable - A ERIE
- Others -Hfy
Consolidated total assets GRAERE
Liabilities a8
Segment liabilties PHEE
Unallocated corporate liabilties FOEZRREE
- Bank borrowings - BITEE
- Taxation payable - BEHIE
- Deferred tax liabilties - EEREAR
- Others -Hfy
Consolidated total liabilties GRakeER

Laminates

BAER
HK$'000
TiEL

15,216,203

(1,783,586)

PCBs  Chemicals

EDhl B AR tIER
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT

10,478,528 13,074,705

(1,706,233)

(2,275,005)

Properties
LES
HK$'000
TET

26,208,848

(3,243,308)

Others Consolidated
Hfl &e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL ThRL

392,724 65,371,008
4,250,508

677,650

3,748,260
4,750
46,649
761,416

74,860,241

(15,500)  (9,023,641)
(23,679,600)
(603,661)
(521,196)
(172,184)

(34,000,282)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiEZ —ZT—=

FH-_A=t—HLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninueq) 8. DHMER=
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) b) APBEEREE®)
Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Others  Consolidated
BWER  HRISER CIER mE Eth e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAL Fhr T Fi5n T
At 31 December 2012 RN-8--&
TZA=t-H
Assets EE
Segment assets PHEE 15,779,140 10,204,288 12,014,713 16,832,945 412,467 55,243,553
Available-for-sale investments EHERE 3,166,084
Interests in associates REE R A 649,317
Unallocated corporate assets KRl ARAE
- Bank balances and cash - ROBEBRES 1,207,383
- Deferred tax assets - FEREEE 5,398
- Taxation recoverable pEE 59,643
- Others -Htt 603,154
Consolidated total assets GREESE 60,934,532
Liabilities Bk
Segment liabilties PHAE (1706,534)  (1,541,044)  (2,002264)  (771,425) (13,949 (6,035,216)
Unallocated corporate liabilties APEZAREE
- Bank borrowings - HITEE (17,759,080)
- Taxation payable - [ESiE (554,666)
- Deferred tax liabilties - ERWEER (258,118)
- Others -Hih (178,306)
Consolidated total iabilties GeREsE (24,785,386)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank
balances and cash and others assets used jointly by
operating segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation
payable and others liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinued) 8. DEER
(c)  Other information (c) HfEHR

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others Consolidated
BEER  ARSER tIER L Hfl &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL THET THT TER TARL ThRL

Year ended 31 December 2013  HZ-ZF-=f
tZR=+-HLEEE

Amounts included in the measure of  stE A EER A HEE

segment profit or loss or Bt AREE :

segment assets:
Capital additions BRIER 498,209 553,762 560,960 7,221,668 8,856,538
Depreciation ik 714,544 568,476 923,889 24,027 2,275,230
Impairment loss recognised HE S REM IR

in respect of trade and BRZAEBR

other receivables 176,411 2,535 15,084 194,030
Release of prepaid lease payments TR & VAR E 6,933 4,106 16,604 30,910
Impairment loss recognised REERERL

in respect of inventories HEER 1,788 2,005 3,793
Loss (gain) on disposal and wiite off & RiiEHE « BER

of properties, plant and equipment R B2 B 1R (M) (921) 1,798
Gain on fair value changes of REMELTE

investment properties 2825 1,406,679 1,406,679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninueq) 8. DEERM
(c)  Other information (continued) (c) HERG®SE
Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Others  Consolidated
EAER  EIRISER tIER LS Eth wa

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TR TETL TET TETL TEL

Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE=-F-=%
tZA=+-HLEEE

Amounts included in the measure of  StEH EIER S HEE

segment profit or loss or B ARNSE

segment assets:
Capital additions BRIER 556,367 621,465 1,002,705 4,633,236 10,543 6,824,816
Depreciation e 713,973 560,769 865,410 17,908 41,926 2,199,986
Impairment loss recognised in HE SR ARG

respect of trade and AREER

other receivables 11,556 14,844 431 - - 26,331
Release of prepaid lease payments T8/ & ZUERE 10,344 4,212 13,610 2,268 - 30,434
Impairment loss recognised HE - BERLERD

in respect of properties, plantand 2 HEEE

equipment - 12,847 - - - 12,847
Impairment loss recognised WFERR L RERE

in respect of inventories - 1,652 - - - 1,662
Loss on disposal and write off LERMENE  BER

of properties, plant and equipment & f& 7B 47,924 229 464 - - 48,617
Gain on fair value changes of REMELTE

investment properties 28 im - - - 28,915 - 28,915
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC (country of NEBMTEEBUNRPEH(FT
domicile) and Thailand. FER )RR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE —E—=F+_-A=+—HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinueq) 8.

(c)  Other information (continued)
The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location based on where
the goods sold and delivered and services are rendered, is as

7 EBE R )

(c)

follows:

The PRC (country of domicile) PR (FTERIS)

Other Asian countries (including EaDMER(BERR -
Thailand, Japan, Korea and Singapore) A7 - BEE TN )

Europe BN

America EP)

No single external customer of the Group contributed over
10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the years ended 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2013.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
other than non-current deposits (note 25), deferred tax assets
(note 32), other non-current assets (note 20) and available-for-
sale investments (note 23) by location of assets is presented as

follows:

The PRC (country of domicile) B (FEEIR)
Thailand ZeE

United Kingdom [

Hit& R (&)
REERBEMEREXER
PRt IR BB EIN TP
FiitilE - ABl D & EREMmE
DHTEAT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET

31,382,916 32,934,809

2,380,315 2,586,637
1,228,901 1,142,648
691,325 626,225

35,683,457 37,290,319

BE-T—F+tZA=1—
Ak=—F—=F+=ZA=+—
AIEEFE AREITEE—
ZONEEFAE AR E S X
iB10%

BRIEMB AT 2 (FiIaE25) ~ BT
MIREE (FFE32) ~ EM3ER
BEE(M720) R HHER
B (ME23) 40 - AEBEFERD
BERBAENHOTEINNT

At 31 December

R+=RA=+—H
2013 2012
—E2—= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THRT FHET
29,571,451 27,144,119
284,960 283,913
1,435,415 1,261,980
31,291,826 28,690,012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. H{hlg A » W R EE

2013 2012
—E-—=£F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Other income, gains and losses include: HEaBA - W REEeE
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AHHERE ZIRE 112,151 109,432
Interest income from bank balances and cash RITHIE U A 63,607 65,451
Interest income from held-to-maturity BEEEREHRE 2 F BULA
investments (Note) GES 78,655
Interest income from available-for-sale A ERE 2 FIERA
investments 177,350 48,122
Net exchange gain V& 5 U o 58 42,325 30,857

fizt: BE-—Z-——#+-A=t+—HALEE
FBIRABIES G BRI A IRy
5,605,000/ (=2 —=4 : )8F) °

Note:  Included in interest income for the year ended 31 December 2012 was the
amortisation of discount on held-to-maturity investments of HK$5,605,000
(2013: nil).

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments of HK$35,002,000 (2013: nil) was
recognised as a result of significant or prolonged decline in fair value
below the cost of certain of the Group’s listed equity investments.

10. TEEEREHE
)

REE-Z——F+-_F=+—HIF
EARN - ZERAEEHFENET LK
KRE 7 N EBAESRBERERAR
B HEBSrHEBEERE ZRERE
35,002,000 (= E—=4 : }8HF) °

11. FINANCE COSTS

2012
—E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFBE
— wholly repayable within five years —BRAFA %%5(1%52% 471,589 344,515
— not wholly repayable within five years —TNERRAFAZEEEREZ
==y 15,377 6,649
Interest paid in relation to the interest rate MR ERE DA 2 FIL&
swap contracts 5,803
486,966 356,967
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of W B EREEKRARER
qualifying assets +5 (7,305) (7,516)
479,661 349,451

FERZERAEERA TR —REES
EE  NAEREERI 2EXLEFR)
E16%(ZE—ZF : 1.2%)51E -

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate
of 1.6% (2012: 1.2%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12.

FrEBipx

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The amount comprises: HIEBE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EREFEH
Charge for the year AEFZHBELH 4,017
Underprovision in previous years BREFEREBTIR 496
4,513
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMEH
Charge for the year RERE ZHIESH 309,164 355,741
Overprovision in previous years BEFEEREEE (1,822) -
307,342 355,741
PRC LAT FE IR (E R
Charge for the year RFFEZRIBEZH 21,985
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HAh A AR 2 BR
Charge for the year REEZHIEZH 11,900
Withholding tax on distributed profits of FEEREAREDIEFEZ
PRC entities Fafmw 11,515
Deferred taxation (note 32) IR E (M7E32)
Charge for the year REEZHEZH 269,779 14,374
608,350 420,028

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

EBENER RS F 2 ERTUEF
Wi%E16.5% 2 TR RTE -

BRIPEARKMBEEMSHE]
(TREMBEE]D) RBEIES - A=F
TNF—A—HRE - BRARNT RN E
NRIZIERAEHB R R25%
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (ontinued)

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs. Prescribed
direct costs are defined to include costs of land, development and
construction costs, as well as certain costs relating to the property
development. According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally upon sales of
the properties, followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the
completion of the properties development.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

12.

e8> @

MR TS ER BE R IR BT REA
R ERMEE - Rt ESE
(RIBEMEHEEWRANEIETEERAE)
LA 23 B R 30% & 60% 2 FEEH T +
HIBEH - BT EBENARE AT
N BERREERAE  REMBEREE
BRONE - ERERBEBRBZE S
N HEE TR A IR ER
BFEFRTAE S RS

Hih B AR 2 RIRTYIRA B R EER
ZERRERFE -

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as REE 7 BIE BB B A S A 2 ¥ ER
follows: T
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FBT
Profit before taxation B A% B S A 3,899,973 2,926,993
Tax charge at the domestic income LABI A 1 3PS 1% %2 25%
tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) (Note a) (ZZF—=F : 25%):t&
Bk (fizta) 974,993 731,748
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR B A 2 BB 8
tax purpose 41,709 37,724
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose /B RFIINES 2 FiTE S 28 (274,324) (72,846)
Tax effect of share of results of associates i A NCIE S =2 (58,587) (54,448)
PRC LAT A 4 b IR (E R = 21,985
Tax effect of PRC LAT B IR ER RS2 = (5,496)
(Overprovision)/underprovision in respect of BEFE (BRI,
prior years BETR (1,822) 496
Tax effect of Tax Concession/Tax Holiday HEESR Rz Hse e
(Note b) (Mf5ED) (36,886) (22,576)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RTHERTEEB M2 78,329 19,713
Utilisation of tax losses previous not recognised &) LAfE R FER ~ BB 18 (3,589) (3,381)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BB A SRS BRI -
operating in other jurisdictions/areas other PRt B EME R Hb [ A
than the domestic income tax rate MBAE z NRBE 2 fr 2 (18,729) (46,711)
Tax exemption (Note c) BiaEe (itc) (104,020) (197,650)
Withholding tax (Note d) TR (M EEd) 11,326 11,615
Others EAtb (50) (45)
Tax expense for the year RFE 2 FiEH 608,350 420,028
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iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (ontinued)

Notes:

(@)

The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) represents the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax of which the Group’s operations are substantially
based.

Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC obtained official
endorsement as a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax Concession”).

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC were exempted from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for two years starting from their first profit-making year in which profits
exceed any carried forward tax losses followed by a 50% reduction in the
income tax rate in the following three years (“Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday
enjoyed by these subsidiaries expired in 2012.

Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are
exempted from profit tax.

The withholding tax represented the payment on the 5% withholding tax in
respect of the dividend income from PRC entities.

12. 5

BB )

BACEMEHRMEEL%(—ZF—=
F o 26%) RAEE RO EB LR
TEDEASH

RIBFCEMSRE  SHEMEEAH
EERRARERP=FN16%THEE
B ATHTRMBARERERER
BRI E(RBESR] -

REFERBERRER  ARRET
BB AR B & EEAFRE GRS
BEEMAE s RBEER) RITMEAR
ERRHRMTREM RGN - RR=F
PRSI R IR 250% ([ R ]) - %%
MEBRARZFA L RHEN -2 ——FF
e

ARAPRFIZETHBRARMEE &
R R RANTIEH

TEHB AR EEERRRSMASN
ZB5%IEHT
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fRE ISR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE
13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. AEE&EF
2013 2012
—E—= —E—CfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after AREFEEF B AR (10 L)
charging (crediting): LATIEE :
Auditor’'s remuneration T EREMEN & 13,050 13,050
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RABBY 2 FEKA 29,105,569 30,187,839
Cost of properties sold EEMEKAR = 951,907
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment  ¥12 « E MR EITE 2,275,230 2,199,986
Net exchange gain b 5 25 7 58
—included in cost of sales - BRFABER AR (14,245) (10,381)
—included in other income, gains and losses - BRtAEAMMA - Has &
B8 (42,325) (80,857)
(56,570) (41,238)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of LB 5 K E fih FEUBRFR
trade and other receivables (included in R ZIREEE
administrative expenses) (BT AITHER) 194,030 26,831
Impairment loss recognised in respect of WIFEEMER 2 REER
inventories (included in cost of sales) (Note) (FEASHERA) (M) 3,793 1,552
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HERMEEME - =&
plant and equipment i 2 EsiE 1,798 48,617
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments HEFERNTHETE 2 W (4,563) (653)
Release of prepaid lease payments FENHAERIE 2 D 30,910 30,434
Total staff costs, other than share-based 8 TN a5 (LARR D 2=
payments (including directors’ emoluments, HRERIN) - BIEESHS
see note 14) (RFIEE14) 2,265,523 2,015,117
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued) 13.

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s PCBs
manufacturing function had consolidated its production in Nanjing into
the newer Yangzhou plant. Certain inventories of the Nanjing plant were
transferred to the Yangzhou plant, and the Nangjing plant was closed
down. The inventory in Nanjing, which were not transferred to the
Yangzhou plant, amounting to HK$1,552,000 were fully impaired in 2012.

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14.
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows:

REEBRR @)

p

a

HE-_ZT——F+-A=Z+—HULHF
& AEESRE T ORISR ELER
g - BEREEHABTNENEE
ERMERNE T T ESREBMNEBE
ERBEBE c RZT——F » RER
ZFHMNEE 8 R 751,552,000/ 7T
2HRME o

EE THHERRES
<=

(@ EEME
BB ZBEnT

2013 2012
—2—= —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Fees e

Other emoluments: Hibfe :
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF]
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme 3R (K@ 5T 24 2k
Performance related incentive payment TYERIRIEEIFIAR
Share-based payments LARD S 3R

1,257 1,224

17,291 15,624

748 730
87,220 86,510
17,969 42,269

124,485 146,357
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2012:
twelve) Directors, including the Chief Executive, were as

14, - THEAZREES

CACD

EEME)
ENgENt=2(=F—=
Fr+r-R)ES(BRITHRA
B)zMEmT

(@)

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE-B-ZETAST-ALER

Mok Lai
Cham
Hung,

Cheng
Wai
King Chee,
Shing Christopher
BER  BES
HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén  TEn
(Note )

(Hii)

Chung Tang Tse
Chen
Chadwick Maosheng
Rk ReE
HK$'000  HK$'000

L R

Wing, Kam
Robert
2R

HK$'000

TR

Henry
Total
4t
HK$'000
TEn

Tan
RzA
HK$'000
TiEn
(Note i)
(Hy)

Hung
Ak
HK$'000
Tin

17,201

748

follows:
Cheung Chan  Cheung  Chang Ho  Cheung
Kwok Wing  Kwong Wing Wai Lin,
Wing Kwan Kwan Yiu Sang Stephanie
REE RAKE RRE KR R REE
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr THEn FER TR TEn  TER
Fees Lika
Other emoluments: Al
Salaries and other benefits  H£ R
EHiER 1,095
Contributons torefrement & {RiETIE 2
benefis scheme 5
Performance related IERRED
incentive payment 9B (Hi3Hi)
(Note i) 7,600
Share-based payments AT
S 2957
Total emoluments Heun 12,192
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

14. B - TREABREES

Stz (#8)

@ EsMEm)

Year ended 31 December 2012

HE-T-CFT-A=t-AILER
Mok Lai Cheng
Cheung Chan  Cheung Chang Ho  Cheung Cham Chung Wal Tse
Kwok Wing Kwong Wing Y Wailin, Hung, Chen Wing, Henry Chee, Kam

Wing Kwan Kwan Yiu Sang  Stephanie

Chadwick  Maosheng Robert

Tan  Christopher Hung Total

REE&  BkE  FEE O BNE mRE REE BEE RRE BR% 0 RSR g% s Bt
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
Tér A TAr TR TEn  TEr  TEr TR TAT AT AT AT TER
Fees #e - - - - - - - - 204 180 480 360 1,224
Other emoluments: Efthe -
Salaries and other benefis %4 REMEF 2503 1,010 2376 2376 2,249 1,406 2529 1,175 - - - - 15,624
Contributions to refirement & &5+
benefts scheme #3 126 - 19 119 112 70 126 59 - - - - 730
Performance related TIERER
incentive payment (k)
(Note 22,000 6,360 12,400 12,400 12,400 6,500 13,300 1,150 - - - - 86,510
Share-based payments  RATE R 7489 - 69% 696 696  6%6 696 - - - - - 409
Total emoluments Hesg 217 7310 21,851 21,851 21,17 14932 22911 2,384 204 180 480 360 146,367
Notes: s -
(i) Mr. Tang King Shing was appointed as independent non- (i) WEXEER_ZT—ZFN
executive director of the Company on 1 August 2013 and Mr. A—REZEAERRAREL
Henry Tan retired as independent non-executive director of the FPTES - RFAELEER
Company on 6 May 2013. —T—=FRANBEMER
NEVBILIERITES -
(ii) The performance related incentive payment is determined with (ii) THERREMERREZ

reference to the operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics during both years.

ERMEFRE 2 EEEE -
EARE KL BT 5 EiE
BT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)  Chief Executive’s emoluments
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had
waived any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.

(c) Employees’ emoluments
For the year ended 31 December 2013, four (2012: four) of
the five highest paid employees are Directors and the Chief
Executive.

The emoluments of the remaining one (2012: one) individual
was as follows:

14. E5 - THAZREER

(b)

()

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R4k ig FIEHEI 2k
Performance related incentive payment TERIFEENETE
Share-based payments LARR R FE AT 5k
Total emoluments < 4B 58

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid to or receivable by the Directors or
the Group’s five highest paid individuals, including Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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(%)

THARMS
REREETA/ARBITHE
BoEMERN EXXRE - B
ARETRITHAMRERZ
R

TR ERESHENE
EET-——FRZFE—ZF
+-A=+—HILLFERET
A< -

EEME
HE_Z—=F+=-A=+—
BIEFE W& (ZE2—=F -
MEZ ) EmGALEHYAEES
RMATHHRE, ©

BImEaTAT—REE(ZE
——F —R)&EIWT :

2013 2012
—ZE—=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT 7T

2,682 2,440
124 122
15,700 15,900
1,615 3,856

20,121 22,318

HE-T-=F#R-T--F
ToR=t-BIFE - EE
SAKE A EEBFAL(RIE
EF) A 2 U A
© - {EAREI BRENALME
B3 2 SR o A AR 2

=y
g o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE —E—=F+_-A=+—HILFE
15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2013 2012
—2—= —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Dividends declared and paid EERRIKERE
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December HZ - —=9+_H
2013 of HK10 cents (for the year ended =t+—HIFEzHEHRE
31 December 2012: HK10 cents or HK8.3 i%mﬁﬁﬁ1 0711l
cents after adjusting for the bonus share (B=z —F+=A
issue in 2013) per ordinary share =+— EIJtEJ; S 108l
KRBT —=%F
ﬁlmaﬁééﬁs 374 102,560 85,467
Special dividend for the year ended 31 December H{Z —Z—=F+_A
2013 of HK20 cents (for the year ended =+ —HIEFEZEFRRE
31 December 2012: nil) per ordinary share G B0
(BEZZ——F+=A
=+—HIFE :8E) 205,120 -
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December HZ_-_ZFT——F+_H
2012 of HK42 cents or HK35 cents after =+ —HIEFE 2 RARE
adjusting for the bonus share issue in 2013 BRI BRI
(for the year ended 31 December 2012: final KRR T — = FARRE R

dividend for 2011 of HK25 cents or HK20.83 7,%35/%%( HE-Z——F+=
cents after adjusting for the bonus share issue ﬂ =+—HILFE:

in 2013) per ordinary share **iﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁ 82571
Yﬁ‘« PHE T - FARECE
18 /320.8378 1) 358,960 213,667
666,640 299,134
Dividend proposed BERE
Proposed final dividend for the year ended e —E—=F+=A
31 December 2013 of HK20 cents (for the _+ HiEFEREARE
year ended 31 December 2012: HK42 cents or iﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁzo;ﬁﬂh
HK35 cents after adjusting for the bonus (= —F4=
share issue in 2013) per ordinary share A _+ Ei IEEEFE - 42588k
KA T = FORAE %
7#357811) 205,120 358,960
The final dividend of HK20 cents (2012: HK42 cents or HK35 cents EEgERnEBE-_T—=F1+=A
after adjusting for the bonus share issue in 2013) per ordinary share =+ —HIEFEIK ?755 REARKREER
amounting to HK$205,120,000 (2012: HK$358,960,000) in respect TEKR20BMW(ZE—ZF : 428
of the year ended 31 December 2013 has been proposed by the ek HE-_F —= ¢ AT RR B 2 12
Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders of the A3581l) - & $£205,120,000% T (=
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting. T — 1 : 358,960,000/ L) HARF A
NEIRRREERRBFERGHE - 7
A{ER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE —E—=F+_-A=+—HILFE
16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the following
data:

16. BRER

AREHEABEEREAREERN
BT BIEE

2013 2012
—g-= s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR FHT

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic and &
diluted earnings per share

HEBREAREERTZ AN

2,961,409 2,097,031

Number of shares

R EE

(Restated)
(£&575)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share

SAESRERNEERN
BRI 2R

1,025,600,236

1,025,600,236

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating the basic and diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2012 has been adjusted for the bonus share
issue of the Company issued during the year ended 31 December
2018, as detailed in note 33.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 did not take into account the effects of
share options of the Company and Kingboard Laminates Holdings
Limited (“KLHL”") as the exercise prices of the outstanding share
options were higher than the average market prices of the Company’s
and KLHL’s shares during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 did not take into account the effects of warrants of
the Company as the exercise price of the warrants was higher than
the average market prices of the Company before the warrants were
expired. No new warrant is granted at 31 December 2013 and during
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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AR EEE—E——F+=-A=+—HLF
EERERREERF 2 L@ MEFIIETY
BR-_T—=F+-A=+—BERNRZELRK
BB AR - FHIEEMNMIFESS ©

F@i:x*—iﬁ T _F+A=+—
Etiﬁm BT E AR A R B I A B R
T&%EE%WH%ﬁE‘TEﬁEEWJ
ZIMARITEZELAERE  BHE_T—=F
F—ZT——F+-A=+—HILEFEE &AQ7A
REBBERZ MARITEELEREZITEE
HREBHHTISFIIERR °

F@i::f:¢+:ﬂz+*ﬁtiﬁm

HEREERNEYEEEAQRZRBE
ﬁ Z%ﬁ% .Ewuﬁﬁ*éua u/ﬁﬁﬁ wuHﬁ*E
ﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁm%$ﬁﬁ%m°\ B—=F
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. BEYE

HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE ~NE
At 1 January 2012 R-ZT——F—H—H 3,505,610
Exchange adjustments DEE 5, 5 X (903)
Additions NE 703,808
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) s BB BB X B i EER (B 5E37) 1,452,900
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment (Note (b)) EEAYE - BE RS (FED) 335
Transfer from completed properties held for development 8 BiF/EE AL T3
(Note (a)) (K3E(@)) 52,998
Increase in fair value NEEE 28,915
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+_-_A=+—H 5,743,663
Exchange adjustments PE H A 154,959
Additions NE 271,376
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment (Note (b)) &R B - BE & &E (FisE (b)) 121,010
Transfer from prepaid lease payments (Note (b)) s e R ERE (M b)) 2,342
Increase in fair value NFEEM 1,406,679
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H 7,700,029
Notes: et -
(@ During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain completed properties (@ HE_T-_F+_A=+HAILF

held for development were reclassified to investment properties upon
change in use as evidenced by commencement of operating leases with
independent third parties.

(b) During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
Group changed the use of certain of its leasehold properties and rented
them out to independent third parties for rental income. Upon the transfer
from properties, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments to
investment properties, these properties were revalued at fair value with a
gain on revaluation of approximately HK$5,142,000 (2012: HK$163,000),
which has been credited to the property revaluation reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recognised
gain on fair value changes of investment properties amounted to
HK$1,406,679,000 (2012: HK$28,915,000).

[Z - BT E =7 R ST AER
EXEMOEERENE -

(0) HE-_T—=F1+-A=+—RAKR=F
—ZH+ZA=+—HILFE  F£E
HEETFROMERS - WHAFBL
F=F 0 ESHESRA - fER-ME -
BB REEARFANEEREREEE
REYER - ZEYFERAFEERS
B L 55,142,000 TT(—F——
£ : 163,000/ 7T) * BT AMESH
&t -

HE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HILEFE
N AEEEREEMERNTFELEHK
% 41,406,679,0008 7L ( —ZF— =4 :
28,915,000/8 7L ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinueq)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at the date
of transfer from properties, plant and equipment to investment
properties and as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 had been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was
determined based on direct comparison method by reference to the
market observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted to
reflect conditions and locations of subject properties.

The Group’s investment properties were classified as level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013. There were no transfers
within the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

17.

BEWE )

REBZIREMEBRYE - BEREE
EERSREMENARER T —=F
M—E——F+-_A=+—HB2ZRFE
Thiz R S @ SR RS 2 BN A B ARG
EMZESEETGEERAR - RZzA#E
THEZEEER - BSEEFGHER
ARABBIEMESEE - BXGE
DSEBRUYEZTBEMERISUNE
B SOAE T WA AR AT S M ER
EIERALE ©

R-E—=F+-A=+—08 K&EE
CEREBMENBEREZFNFESH -
FRTEQNFESH B2 ER -

TRENZEFREMEZAFEETE
77 L E = A A el (B 5l K A 28
B ARBRAFESAEHABIENA
NBEBEERERNDTEAEDR
(F—E=R)AFESEHK -

Significant

unobservable inputs Sensitivity
EARAHE

T A\ BUE BRE

consolidated statement of Fair value Valuation techniques

financial position hierarchy and key inputs

e BT R (AT &

REBERBE O REME NHESER  FERAZR

Industrial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison

Hong Kong method with price per

square metre

REBE TIRYE F=8 BEELBERGTF K
=B
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Price per square metre,
using market direct

A significant increase
in the price per square
metre used would

comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of property
etc., which is ranged
from HK$36,371 to
HK$38,750 per square
metre
KATSEZEA LR R
ZRALE DA KR E At (E R
EE&(EEEE Y
ERNE)VNFFHKE
& NT36,371BLE
38,7508 7T

result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties,
and vice versa

PR ST RE AR
EEEBIR AN R
AF{EHEAREEN
RZ %
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinueq)

17.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

17. REWE )

consolidated statement of Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
financial position hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
fRE B HRE T HERM & BARNAEE
REBERBE 2 IRENE NEEEFR FEHAERE WA BUE BURE
Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
Hong Kong method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking  metre used would
into account of location  result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa
from HK$45,295 to
HK$51,042 per square
metre
REBNEAME =8 BELEEREBER R HAMSEEALERE MABFEIRKEEXNE
B8 ZERMBEAREMER Mg EmED
F&% (MEREEK - AFESEXEEM
EXRNE)VNBFERARE RZITA
8 - /145,295 0%
51,0427 7T
Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
Hong Kong method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking  metre used would
into account of location  result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa
from HK$121,352 to
HK$131,632 per square
metre
REBNEAME =8 BELEEREBERR HAMSEEALERE MABFEIRKEEXNE
EE ZRMBAREMER ENggsucEmED

EH&% (EREBEE - !
EXNPF)NGETAKE
B NF121,3528 T E
131,632/ 7T

DT EAIEEN -
R2 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinueq)

17.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
fRe B HRE T
REBERBE 2 IRENE

Fair value
hierarchy

ATESH

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERM &
BTN 6

17. BEWHE )

Significant
unobservable inputs
BEANAEE

o A B

Sensitivity

Commercial properties in
Shanghai

R EBRNERYmE

Commercial properties in
Guangzhou

REMEERTE

Level 3

Level 3

[
=38

H
|

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLEBEREFIIK
B

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBEREFIIK
B
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Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of property
etc., which is ranged
from RMB28,400 to
RMB30,000 per square
metre

KRS EEATLER R
ZBALE A KR E A E R
EE%& (B -7
ERNE)NFTTRE
B - T F AR#28,400
JTE ARE30,0007T

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of property
etc., which is ranged
from RMB16,500 to
RMB22,500 per square
metre

KRS EEATLER R
Z BALE A K E AL E R
EE% (RSB -7
EXRNE)NFFITRE
B - T F AR#16,500
TTEARE22,5007T

A significant increase

in the price per square
metre used would
result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties,
and vice versa

FR ST K EAE
B EBR AR
AFAERHB AN -
R2 A

A significant increase

in the price per square
metre used would
result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties,
and vice versa

FTR ST K B
EEEBR AR
AFAERH R AN -
R2 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinueq)

17.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

17. BEWE »

consolidated statement of Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
financial position hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
fRE B HRE T HERM & BARNAEE
REBERBE 2 IRENE NEEEFR FEHAERE WA BUE BURE
Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
Shenzhen method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking  metre used would
into account of location  result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa
from RMB14,500 to
RMB14,800 per square
metre
ORI A W E =8 BELEEREBER R HAMSEEALERE MABFEIRKEEXNE
B8 ZERMBEAREMER Mg EmED
F&% (MEREEK - AFESEXEEM
EXRNE)VNBFERARE RZITA
& - N FAR14,500
TTEARHE14,8007T
Commercial shops in Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
Qingyuan method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking  metre used would
into account of location  result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa
from RMB10,000 to
RMB10,260 per square
metre
B R A R A SRAL E=4 BELEEREBERR HAMSEEALERE MABFEIRKEEXNE
EE ZRMEBAREMER ENggsucEmED

E=% (R EEE - !
EXNPF)NGETAKE
& N F ARE10,000
TTEAR10,2607T

DB EAEEN -
RZ A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of Fair value Valuation techniques
financial position hierarchy and key inputs

fRe B HRE T HERM &
REBERBE 2 IRENE NEEEFR FEHAERE

17. BEWE )

Significant
unobservable inputs
BEANAEE

o A B

Sensitivity

Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison
London method with price per
square metre
ISGEETEIEEIES E=8 BEELBUEREGT AR

B

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of property
etc., which is ranged
from GBP5,719 to
GBP8,956 per square
metre
RAMSEEALRR
ZBALE A KR E A E R
EE%& (B -7
ERNE)NFTTRE

A significant increase

in the price per square
metre used would
result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties,
and vice versa

FR ST K EAE
B EBR AR
AFAERHB AN -
R2 A

B NP5, 719HESE
8,956 8%

AEERRIVE S E ANEETRIFL
EHROBEZEMEMED - BFARQ
FEEAFE  XHBERIMEREY
¥ o FMENRTER - RS &RE
MERERERBERE - FAMEME
Bffrz HRE -

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There
has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

AREBEHRHES —BEBEME
1,560,000,0008 Tc 2 I EME (=T
— —4F :1,314,800,000/8 7T ) © LAKER
RITRE -

One of the Group’s investment properties of HK$1,560,000,000
(2012: HK$1,314,800,000) has been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinued) 17. BEWHE @)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises: L ERTRIEEMEREERRE

2013 2012
—E2—= —ET——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET

Property interests situated in Hong Kong under: & N3N EBIHE

pa/EXL- Tl
Medium-term lease FRERFR 4 1,599,410 1,303,484
Long lease RHEEL 274,385 38,836

1,873,795 1,342,320

Property interests situated outside Hong Kong  #& F5I| T4 &4 LASK

under: BhH 2 MEER
Medium-term lease AR ERFR 4 4,326,295 3,105,563
Long lease RHIAEY 1,499,939 1,295,780

5,826,234 4,401,343

7,700,029 5,743,663
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - i ER&1HE

Properties,

plant and

Furniture, equipment

Freehold Leasehold Plant and Licenced  fixturesand Transportation under
lands Buildings  improvements machinery assets equipment equipment  construction Total

KA L HER RE fh iz e 3
B |53 b1 B BREE  RERRG EaRE  ERERRE &if

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TERL Fin Tin TERL TERL Tin Tin TERL

Noteii)
(M)
CosT A
At1 January 2012 W-E-—5-f-B 60,754 2,651,794 560,139 21,109,086 2442256 1,236,991 312219 2,097,319 30,470,558
Exchange adjusiments EH % (39 2% 2,070 43,991 (602) 3,094 23 (1,446) 48229
Addtions RE - 41,246 130,039 880879 - 63,427 12,978 1,054,472 2,183,041
Acquired from acquision of subsidiaries  WEHBEATHER

(Note 37) (Hsta7) - 150422 - 2300 - 40400 1400 - 514,522
Disposals and wite of HERHE - (23,409 pa2t) 1220 - (6,951) 6717) (2546 (508059
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HEMBAF(K:ES) (6:419) (16,845) (12,628) (36,908) - - - (21,055) (93,855)
Reclassifications S - - 214232 1,360,154 - 15,399 - (1,649,785) -
Transferred to investment properties (Note (j) EBZ%EME(M() - 296) - - - - - - 296)
Transferred from properties held for ERERRENE

development - 3,906 - - - - - - 3,906
At 31 December 2012 WoE-—F+-A=1+-H 54,29 3,106,845 929,641 22,968,282 2,441,654 1,365,260 320,115 1,446,959 32,623,062
Exchange adjustments 3 21 18,864 4507 626,796 76,613 44520 3613 40,730 815,064
Additions HE - 5,665 34,448 904,574 - 147,550 12,299 476,819 1,581,365
Disposels end wite of HE B - (1,400 (073  (178760) - (22139 (26,632 (3460 (98121)
Reclassifications EEiv] - 97,660 104,490 931,422 - 6,640 182 (1,140,394) -
Transferred to investment properties (Note () EBZ% &) - (120,969) - - - - - - (120,969
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+ZfA=1-8 54,317 3,106,665 1,042,350 26,252,314 2518267 1,531,837 309577 790,654 34,605,981
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERAE
At 1 January 2012 W=E-—F-f-H - 504,323 299,909 9,186,157 1,498,038 464919 159,228 - 12,112,574
Exchange adjusiments ER®E - 50 1,119 6,139 127 1687 210 - 9,30
Provided for the year TFERE - 93102 57,065 1,759,980 143,909 14,914 3102 - 2199986
Eiminated on cisposls and wrte off HEB TR - (1201 P40y (331,541) - (4,951) (5,394 - (378,000
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HENBLAREE

(Note 38) (Hfzk38) - (11,938) (11,992) (36,529 - - - - (60,459)
Eliminated on transfer to investment BRELENER

properties (Note {) () - (124) - - - - - - (124)
Impaiiment loss recognised in profit orloss  FMEEHD 2 REBE(HEE)

Note i) - - - 12847 - - - - 12847
At 31 December 2012 RZF-ZF+ZA=1-R - 573,401 321,989 10,597,053 1,642,074 576,569 185,130 - 13,896,216
Exchange adjustments B AR - 4994 2589 304,317 53,691 16,641 2942 - 405,174
Provided for the year TEERE - 9,980 060 1812378 136,705 123,303 28804 - 20750%0
Eiminated on cisposals and wrte off HEB TR - (t10) P09 (104969) - (1953) (1409 - (167419
Eliminated on transfer o investment EESRENER

properties (Note ) B{UiE) - (4.961) - - - - - - 4.961)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+ZfA=1-8 - 670,304 380229 12,628,785 1,832,470 696,978 195474 - 16,404,240
CARRYING VALUES e
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+ZfA=1-8 54317 2,436,361 662,121 12,623,529 685,797 834,859 114,103 790,654 18,201,741
At 31 December 2012 RZF-ZF+ZA=1-8 54,29 2633444 607,652 12,371,229 799,580 778,691 134,985 1,446,959 18,726,836
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. % - BERZ#E

(continued)

The above items of properties, plant and equipment other than those BREZWE  BEM&EN - Lty

under construction are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the ¥ BEKEREBB ABSRELER T

following rates per annum: FELLEFHRITE -

Freehold lands Nil KABEREL I RE

Buildings* Over the remaining unexpired gy HBHEORNEIS A

terms of leases from twenty to TRFEIR205F
fifty years E50FNE

Leasehold improvements 10 -20% B mERE 10-20%

Plant and machinery* 10 -20% R Rt as 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 — 331/,% XA~ EEREE 10- 33"/, %

Transportation equipment* 10 -20% B 10 - 20%

* Included those grouped under licenced assets. . B ARREREE A

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s freehold lands of HK$54,317,000 R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—8 K&

(2012: HK$54,296,000) are situated outside Hong Kong. #B54,317,0008 L (=T — 4 :

54,296,000/ 7T ) K A E R T AL &
RN o

Notes: MEEE

i) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group changed the use 0] HE_Z—=F+-_A=+—8H1L#HF
of certain of its leasehold properties and rented them out to independent B REBNEETHOMERS I
third parties for rental income. Upon the transfer from properties, plant and HHEFEIE=F - LESESKA -
equipment to investment properties, these properties were revalued at fair MAGBEE  ENRYE  BENERETR
value with a gain on revaluation of approximately HK$5,002,000 (2012: BREICEVER  ZEVERATE
HK$163,000), which has been credited to the property revaluation reserve. Eh - EfWEL A5,002,000/87T( =

T — 4 : 163,000 T)  BEFAY
EEMEE -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s PCBs (i BE-T-——F+-A=t—HLHF
manufacturing function had consolidated its production in Nanjing into B ANEEFE T HERIARIER 2SR
the newer Yangzhou plant. Certain properties, plant and equipment 82 BRI RAEEHABIBNBNBE
of the Nanjing plant were transferred to the Yangzhou plant, and the BRBEANETYE BEREHE
Nangjing plant was closed down. The properties, plant and equipment in BEHMNKE  mRBEBE - R=
Nanjing, which were not transferred to the Yangzhou plant, amounting to T—F  REBREHNBENERY
HK$12,847,000 were fully impaired in 2012, ¥ . BE K& 12,847,000 7T 2 BUR

IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥¥ - BER%RE =«

(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt « (8)
(i) Details of licenced assets: (i) RIEEREERS -
Plant and Transportation
Buildings machinery equipment Total
1gF R K mkas BB ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FATT
cosT R
At 1 January 2012 R-Z——F—HF—H 360,433 2,072,245 9,578 2,442,256
Exchange adjustments Rz (89) (511) (] (602)
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——F+_-A1
=t+—H 360,344 2,071,734 9,576 2,441,654
Exchange adjustments FE & 11,307 65,006 300 76,613
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F+_A8
=+—H 371,651 2,136,740 9,876 2,618,267
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT T8 RiR{E
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE—=—F—HF—H 125,621 1,363,150 9,267 1,498,038
Depreciation during the year REFFE 7,247 136,454 208 143,909
Exchange adjustments b i R 6) 135 ©) 127
At 31 December 2012 RoZ——F+—f
=+—H 132,862 1,499,739 9,473 1,642,074
Depreciation during the year FRIE 7,331 129,271 103 136,705
Exchange adjustments 5+ A% 4,285 49,106 300 53,691
At 31 December 2013 WZE—=F1+=A
=+—H 144,478 1,678,116 9,876 1,832,470
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2013 RoZ—=F+—_#
=+—H 227,173 458,624 - 685,797
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——F+_A8
=+—H 227,482 571,995 103 799,580
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii) Details of licenced assets (continued)
On 3 August 2011, a subsidiary of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited
(“KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is a listed subsidiary of the Group),
entered into a licence agreement with Harvest Resource Management
Limited (the “Licencee”), which is an independent third party, to licence
KBCF’s copper foil manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou
to the Licencee for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2013.
On 30 August 2013, the Licensor entered into a letter of extension and
amendments with Licencee and extended the licence period for a further
2 years to 31 August 2015. The details of the licence arrangement which
remained unchanged, are as follows:

(@) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings in
Fogang and Lianzhou;

(b) to use, consume and dispose of the inventory which shall include
consumables and stocks in trade; and

(c) to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in Fogang
and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in note 20 were licenced for licence income of
HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of each
and every calendar month, as a short-term measure by KBCF to generate
income from the manufacturing facilities, pending the resolution of the
interested party transactions issue, relating to the manufacturing and
trading of copper foil, with the non-controlling shareholder of KBCF (note
40) and the approval of the interested party transactions mandate by the
shareholders and/or when KBCF clinched new third parties customers for
the sales of copper foil. Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and
equipment have been reclassified as licenced assets under properties,
plant and equipment.

The Group conducted a review of the recoverable amount of its licenced
properties, plant and equipment based on valuation carried out by
independent professional valuer, Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited. The
valuation is determined based on the value in use calculated using the
income approach. The discount rate used in measuring value in use was 7%
(2012: 7%). Based on the review, no impairment loss is recognised.

18. ¥ - BMERRE =

B ()

(i)

BEGEREESS  (B)
RZZ——%F/\A=H ' Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited ([ KBCF |
[ EIEA ) (KBCFAREE—F LM
M AR/ — RN E R B R ERE
BRARBE=7) ([BEEADGT
SEREERGE  NABERR =T ——
FRA—RAE=Z—=FN\A=+—H
IEEARS - A A A fE FRKBCFAL R
B KB M A SRS BLER M - RZF
—=FN\A=1+H W ZEAREREA
FINIEEARIERTE - HEEERTRM
FEZZT—RAFNA=+—H - B#EEF
RiRFBEFTZNAT

(@ EREOME  BELRE
i S s M 2 B

(o) ®H - FEARNERFE &
EHRMAESFE &k

©  (EREE ERTELNG
R RN W% 2 B B3R
B RaRG -

ERIIREEERYE  BEREER
B 20 AT IR R (E R TF B I
WA &5 A10,000,000/8 7T © BREE
FRBESEASREN - fEAKBCF
WEOERMEE LA R G ERENE - AT
iR EAKBCFIE IR AR R TRIE R B
BERENAMNZEERES RS EE (M
40) - ARBRRIEBFRBESIRS
BHER/SKBCFREHE=HEFH
BN - At BREAME  BEX
BHRETHEAME  BEREEEAET
RIEEREE -

AR BRI R MBS RIRGT
BERRRRE AL ENEAEER
AERWEE  BHEEERDE K
BEREHENTTIREERE - FF2ERE
BERTANITIRERT%(ZT——4F :
7%) ° RIFERAER - WERERRES

B
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

19.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid for medium

term leasehold land outside Hong Kong.

19.

BANHEERE

AEE2FHRNEERBHR/E BRI

REIRAY T 2 TR IR -

2013 2012
—E—= —ET——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBELTTUOT -
Current assets REVEE 28,135 30,329
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,018,926 1,023,789
1,047,061 1,054,118
Movements of prepaid lease payments are as follows: FENHAEREZ2EHIT
HK$'000
FAEL
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—H—H 973,841
Exchange adjustments bE 5 A% (868)
Additions NE 14,092
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) U BE BB 2 &) M ER (P 5E37) 112,000
Disposals k= (14,613)
Charge for the year REEZH (30,434)
At 31 December 2012 R-_E——F+-A=+—H 1,054,118
Exchange adjustments b 3 31,346
Additions INE 62,680
Transferred to investment properties (Note) R I B E (FH5E) (2,202)
Disposals & (67,971)
Charge for the year REEZH (30,910)
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+_A=+—H 1,047,061

The lease terms over which the prepaid lease payments are amortised

ranged from 35 years to 50 years.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group changed the use

B 35

of certain of its leasehold properties and rented them out to independent
third parties for rental income. When there was a change in use, upon
the transfer from prepaid lease payments to investment properties,
these properties were revalued at fair value with a gain on revaluation
of approximately HK$140,000, which has been credited to the property

revaluation reserve.
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iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ =%

20.

21.

—=Ft=A=t—ALFE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/ 20. HiERBEE H
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS REEE
This represents inventory licenced to the Licencee (see note 18) for WIyn—E——FNA—HZE2_E—=
the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2013, which was FNA=Z+—HEEEZEA(RHTE
extended for a further 2 years to 31 August 2015 during the year. 18)EFRAMEFEE - ENFADEEZEIN
Under the licencing agreement, the Licencee may use, consume and MFE_ZE-—RF/\A=+—H - 1R
dispose of the licenced inventories which include consumables and RIEE R - BERBAER - A
stocks in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and REEREFREFESE  E4TE8EIER
return, the quantities of the licenced inventories used, consumed or NESTFE - Al REEERER
disposed during the licence period to the Group at the end of the A EREABAANEEESNRER
licence period. REFRBEEER  ERIEENRE
BERTFEHE -
The licenced inventory has been reclassified from other current assets EREREFERSHEH - —=FN\A
to other non-current assets as the licence period has been extended =+—HBEBBEIRFEZT—RAFN
for a further 2 years from 31 August 2013 to 31 August 2015. A=+—0 BECHRFEEHEMR
PEEENBEAHMIERBEE -
The licensed inventory used, consumed or disposed during the RIEEEREMER  EAKHE 2B
licence period is secured by cash and bills receivables of a related FHRFEREREA —ZEATHIR
party of the Licensee, with a total receivable value of not less than the © REWEHBRERA - AJLaE D
value of the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed as at the RS RE BEFER - AL
end of the reporting period. EZREFERTEZEE-
GOODWILL 21. BB
HK$'000
FAT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and RnZZT—=—F—H—AQ8-
31 December 2013 —T—_HFt+_A=t—HRK
—E—=F+-A=1+—H 2,288,149
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE
GOO DWILL (continued)

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed as follows:

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to groups of CGU of laminates, PCBs and chemicals
business segments. At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying
amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs of laminates, PCBs and
chemicals business segments were approximately HK$390,781,000,
HK$1,717,519,000 and HK$179,849,000, respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the laminates’, PCBs’ and chemicals’
CGUs have been determined based on a value in use calculation.
Goodwill is expected to generate cash flow for 50 years of remaining
useful life. To calculate this, cash flow projections are based on five
year periods financial budgets approved by the Group.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations for the CGUs of
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments are as follows:

Laminates

ERER

Discount rate R
Growth rate (for year 1 to 5) BRER(1Z55)

The key assumptions are determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industries. The cash flow beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using zero growth rate.

Since the recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its carrying
amount, the Directors consider that the carrying amount of goodwill
at the end of the reporting period is not impaired.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of

these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of goodwill to exceed their aggregate recoverable amount.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

o= A

22.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

—g—=

HK$’000
TR

Cost of investments in associates

Unlisted in the PRC

Share of post-acquisition profits and

other comprehensive income, net of

dividends received

KB QR ZIRERKA

PRI 211,230
JEAR U 18 5 I &

Hp 2wk

(BB AR E) 466,420

677,650

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had interests in the

following associates:

RZE—ZFR

22, REE N T2 xS

2013

2012

HK$'000
TAT

211,230

438,087

649,317

= —2——-F+=A
=+—8  AEBEHEAUATEZQR)E

Principal activities

TEER

fm
Place of
registration/ Principal place of Equity interest held by Proportion of voting
Name of associate incorporation operation the Group rights held by the Group
i/ REERE
BENAAHRE BaliAvE: TESEHE REERE REELG)
2012
—F-CF
CNOOC Kingboard PRC PRC 40%
Chemical Limited? q: &
PERRREL IERAF
LASEEEREBRAR) PRC PRC 49%
HE el
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Sino-Foreign #

Equity Joint Ventures.

REIKIL

Manufacture and distribution
of methanol
HERHEFE

Coal mining and distribution
of coals
BRARRAH

WEATTURIAE L B LR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (ontinueq) 22. NEFE QB 2=
In the opinion of the Directors, none of its associates are material EE2RA AEEZHEARHIEHK
to the Group. The aggregate information of the associates that are EBEKX - BUREXBENRZEE
individually immaterial is set out below. The summarised financial BRIENT o NH|B &R ERE
information below represents amounts shown in the associates’ BN AR BB S ERRER RS
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. WRZEHE -
The investments in CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited and |LIfg4 R EEmES T ERATRILES
8L BT B BR AR are solely for share of results and no strategic BEREIREBRATMEEEAD(NE
purpose is involved. The associates are accounted for using the BMEL - WEPREKEEH - RZE
equity method in these consolidated financial statements. FEMBHE  BEARRAERE
TEDIRR
2013 2012
== —E-4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
The Group’s share of profits for the year AN B AR FEE R A 234,349 217,791
The Group’s share of other AEEARFEREGEA
comprehensive income (expense) for the year 2EME(FES)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive REFEARFE R
income for the year Z2HEWN BT 254,847
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBERZEHERRZ
interests in these associates HERIRMAAE 677,650 649,317
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 23. A[{iHH&ERE EEZE

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS FHKRE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AEEERE R
2013 2012
—E—=fF —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Listed equity investments, at fair value: ERRAIRE - RATE
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB T2 BARFES 2,156,165 2,327,252
— equity securities listed in the United States —ER T2 RAES - 4,377
— equity securities listed in Singapore —RAFTINE _E 2 IR E S 27,348 20,186
2,183,513 2,351,815
Listed bond securities at fair value: EHESFES  RATHE
— listed on the Stock Exchange and — BB LEMEITARITIER
issued by listed issuers in Hong Kong with Bt b BEBFEN
a fixed coupon interests ranging from F8.625E%E13.875F 2
8.625% to 13.875% per annum and BERE - W
maturity dates from 23 November 2017 to —E—+F+—A
5 February 2020 Zt=BEZT-FTF
—AARBEIH 1,239,839 656,252
— listed on SGX and issued by listed issuers in =~ — &#_ETHEIT A BTN
Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interests ML BEBER
ranging from 6.625% to 10.25% per N F6.625/E2F10.25F
annum and maturity dates from 16 January ZEERE - ¥R
2018 to 29 January 2023 —Z-N\F—-A+RH
E-T-=F
—AZ+hHEH 669,664 -
1,909,503 656,252
Unlisted equity investments, at cost EETRARE » RAAE -
— private equity investment in the PRC (Note a) — £ Bl 2 FLERR IR E
(FffiEa) 525
— private equity investment in Hong Kong ~EBBZLBERAKRE
(Note b) (FF3ED) 157,492 157,492
157,492 158,017
Total it 4,250,508 3,166,084

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=4F%F#® 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

(continued)

At the end of reporting period, all listed available-for-sale investments
are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond securities are
determined by reference to the valuation provided by the counterparty
financial institutions based on their own valuation techniques because
of lack of active market. The unlisted equity investments are stated at
cost less impairment as their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

() The investment represents a 5% (2012: 5%) equity interest in an unlisted
private entity established in the PRC which is engaged in property
development. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the investment
was disposed.

(b) The amount represents the 19.67% (2012: 19.67%) interest in a private

entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the
property development business in Hong Kong. The investee together
with other investment funds currently holds a number of properties in a
building situated in Hong Kong which is intended for redevelopment (the
“Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the Redevelopment
Project is 9.8% (2012: 9.8%) and the amount committed by the Group
amounts to US$21,000,000 (approximately HK$163,800,000) and for the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has contributed approximately
HK$6,150,000 (2013: nil). At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the investment is measured at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

Included in available-for-sale investments are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

23.

ARHERE BFEE
FHIRE )

RmEHRAERER > IEAIHLE L
MEREDRAFEIIR - ARNRZIER
W5 MZELTEREFZAFETD
R2EZXH T ERBBARESEM/E
BT HERETE - BRIFELEMARA
BREMRHENRER SEaTHE - #UZA
ERRESIR -

e

(@) HREENPBEKLZIEEMALEE
B826%(=F— 4 : 5%) A - &%
ERULEVEER -BE_T—=
ToZA=T—HLFER ZRED
HE o

() ZeEE RN EBRE LS MK
2R EEEZ19.67%( T ——F :
19.67% )i - AL BRENEBNS
MEBREER - ZIREHREHE MK
BEESHRES RURBEEZET
LEYESN  ZRERTER(E
#ErE ) - AEER U ERNEZL
B R B9.8% (=T ——4F : 9.8%)
A EEFYE S FE 521,000,000 7T (49
163,800,000 7T) - RHZEZ-T—=
F+-A=Z+-—BLEE A£E
55 496,150,000 L (Z T — =4 :
| RZTE—=F+ZA=+—HBK
—E--F+-A=1+—H BRA
FEZAEGEERERA  BEES
RAEREIFAEEATE  BIRE
R AR ERTE -

AHHERERETIIASEEREHERE
ZBEEB AN E R EHEZ R

2013 2012
—ZE—=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT 7T

us$
HK$

ET

BT

2,066,995
2,156,165

818,121
2,327,777
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/

24.

23.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, listed bond securities
intended to be held-to-maturity with an amortised cost of
HK$978,487,000 were disposed of prior to maturity. The related
profit recognised amounted to HK$83,138,000. Such disposals were
generally made to improve liquidity and to modify the risk profile of
investments portfolios. As such, the Group cannot classify financial
assets into the held-to-maturity investments due to tainting rules until

31 December 2014.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24,

A %Eﬁ/?ﬁ:
FHRE @

HEz_2——-—Ff+-A=+—HL
FE - RIBBEEEERBEER
FEOETESRES  BHEKREA
978,487,000 7% 7T ° T HE 2 48 8 % A
83,138,000 87T - 2 FHEEER LE
EREREE MRS EAENERAA
o WU - BRI BCRIRAIER - AR
BE_Z—NFE+-A=1+—Ha Kb
BHEEESHHEABERR R
iéo

REgbE o ER

Cost of unlisted investment in joint ventures

Share of post-acquisition losses

BEMRZIFLEMRERAK
FEIH WAL 18

Amounts due from joint ventures (Note)

U & & EFIA ()

‘IJJH

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FT
15,953 15,953
(34,175) (34,175)
(18,222) (18,222)
18,222 18,222

Note: The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free, with no
fixed repayment terms and are not repayable in the foreseeable future.

MiaE: RkAECEIEARBER 28 8
EEEERY - BERA R RREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (oninesy  24. REEDEIRER o

Included in the cost of investment in joint ventures is goodwill of REBDPERER A BFEEWE
approximately HK$10,943,000 (2012: HK$10,943,000) arising on the Q%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@iﬁ%%’m0,943,0005%773
acquisition of joint ventures in prior years. The movement of goodwill is (Z=Z— — 4 :10,943,000/8 7T ) 2 &
set out below: 2o mELBHEINNT
Goodwill
L
HK$'000
T8
CARRYING VALUE SREE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and WZE——F—H—H8-
31 December 2013 R Ht-A=1+—8BRK
T =F+-A=+—H 10,943
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had interests in the RE—=FK_ZTE——_F+=A1
following significant joint ventures: =+—H AEERTIEREERE
AR
Place of
registration/ Proportion of nominal value of
Form of incorporation and registered/issued capital Proportion of
Name of joint ventures business structure  operation held by the Group voting power Principal activity
Gl Psaiiiodnd AEEFREERES/
AaRtELE FBREVA REZDE BETRAREL]) FARLYI IREH
2012
“2—F
Concord Modern Technology Incorporated Hong Kong 50%  Inactive
Limited (“Concord) Baiij A 55 TEBHEE
BERRARDA(RE])
Full Summit Development Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong 50%  Inactive
(*Full Summit’) alijzavi Bl NEEEE
REERARNA(NRE])
During the year ended 31 December 2013, Concord and Full Summit HE-_Z—=®+_A=+—HIFE
commenced deregistration process. At the date of the issuance of N BERGIERGBEEERER - R
these consolidated financial statements, the deregistration process is SR AMERREMAE - BEEE R
completed. No other material obligations or commitments in respect FESK c REBWES LD EREE
of the deregistration of the joint ventures would require significant TG AMKRRRES KHBREME

adjustments to the consolidated financial statements. KE TSR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (onine)) = 24. REEE RS o

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually ERITREA T AL EsSEHET M
material is set out as below: T

2012

== —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Group’s share of loss of joint ventures AEBELEERE
for the year REE 258

Group’s share of other comprehensive income of RNEBEEA S
joint ventures for the year REE 2 2 ERE

Group’s share of total comprehensive expense A% B &5 2 M 5 St 4258

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBRZEEEDEY
interests in these joint ventures R RIREE
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of joint REBRIFTERELS S DEEE - B
ventures. The amount of unrecognised share of losses, both for the SRS EELEN A EE R 2
year and cumulatively, are as follows: T
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
At 1 January w—A—H (6,376)
Unrecognised share of results of BUSTERIEMh A &
joint ventures for the year REEZHEE
At 31 December R+—A=+—H (6,376)
25. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 25. FEMEFTE
The amount represents deposits paid for acquisition of properties, HEERBEYE BEAKREE I
plant and equipment. ZE® e

26. INTANGIBLE ASSET 26. BLEE

Know-how fee of HK$1,445,000, had finite useful life and was HE A 1,445,00078 T A B T Al

amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years. The asset was fully RAFEH  WEESEERAFREE -

amortised since 31 December 2011, BEBZZ—F+ZA=+—HHUXK
R -
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27.

28.

INVENTORIES 27. 7&
2013 2012
—EB—-=fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Raw materials B 2,187,872 2,455,520
Work in progress paat Tar 582,562 674,521
Finished goods BIRK @ 374,759 318,568
3,145,193 3,448,609
/i Ay 173
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FREYE
Movements of properties held for development are as follows: FRRYEZSHOT
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2012 P 9,227,363
Exchange adjustments B 5, 610
Additions NE 1,844,453
Transfer to properties, plant and equipment HEBEYE - BB MEE (3,906)
Transfer to cost of sales HEE S SHE RN (951,907)
Transfer to investment properties (note 17) BT EYE (HE17) (52,998)
At 31 December 2012 WRZE——F+_A=+—H 10,063,615
Exchange adjustments EE‘LEH% 382,789
Additions INE 6,941,127
At 31 December 2013 WR-_ZE—=F+-"HA=+—H 17,387,531

Properties held for development are situated in the PRC with medium-
term leases and are stated at cost at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$951,907,000 (2013: nil) were completed
and sold to third parties. The balance as at 31 December 2013 was
related to properties that were still under development.

Properties held for development with carrying amount of
approximately HK$14,925,157,000 (2012: HK$7,901,876,000)
that are expected to be realised after one year from the end of the
reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain completed
properties amounting to HK$3,906,000 (2013: nil) were reclassified
to properties, plant and equipment upon completion of properties
development project, because the Group retained certain portions of
the development project for the Group’s own administrative purpose.
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RZF-—=ZFR_F—Z_F+_H
=T—B  GERYRLNFE - ZF
BMRARA - WA -

HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HLLF
r BR T {8 49 951,907,00078 71 ( = &

E MI)ZMEERETE=7 -
N-TZ—=F+_-_F=+—H&HEE
@Pi@%ﬁﬁa

BRI E %) 5 14,925,157,0008 T ( =&
——4F : 7,901,876,000/% 70 ) iF & R 1)
BRI SR B AE SRR R — 1R
I o

BE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HItE
B RYEREBEBEEXNE  BH
3,906,000 T2 & T ERMEEFT
HMEYE BEEIEHE(ZZE—=F:
=) - EIEK%@EJ’“ D RIEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@

29.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans

HtwHBEE

(@ EBEZREMEWERERRRE
NRERZRRER

Trade receivables

Advance to suppliers

Deposits paid for acquisition of land use
rights of development of properties

B 5 RURR
AN AR IR

BERFERARIEZFERRE
WMEZ THEREMNRT S

held for sale (Note i) (35D
Entrusted loans (Note i) LR E R (M)
Prepayment and deposits TENFIERIES
Value added tax (“VAT”) recoverables AR EIBER ([EER])
LAT on pre-sale properties TEEWR 2 LHILER

Amounts due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (Note iii)
Other receivables

JE U — FE3 B B 2 B SR
% 3R R 8 (B =)
Hib pEUrER R

Less:

Non-current portion of entrusted loans 3 : Z £ & K IERED

B

Bills receivables

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

Amount represents deposits paid for acquisition of land use
rights in PRC which are to be acquired for the purpose of future
development for sale.

The entrusted loans of HK$1,486,277,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,158,555,000) are due from certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties in the PRC through three
commercial banks in the PRC (the “Lending Agents”). The
entrusted loans are interest bearing ranging from 4.595% to
7.50% per annum payable on monthly basis and the principal will
be payable on or before 2033. The purchasers of the Group’s
properties has pledged to the Lending Agents the respective
properties purchased. These properties are located in Kunshan.

The amount represents consideration receivables from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary in relation to the capital
injection of a property development project in PRC. The amount is
expected to be settled within one year.

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT 5T
5,763,394 5,214,158
790,279 761,958
237,586 558,858
1,486,277 272,299
644,736 580,002
797,875 879,225
53,859 9,951
237,125 -
193,341 211,464
10,204,472 8,487,915
(1,405,331) (258,258)
8,799,141 8,229,657
2,302,770 2,209,153
FifaE
(i) SEVEERANRRERIA
K46 2 B £ 3 5 FA AT
EER

(i) FERPFBE=ZREERT(ME
HREBADBERETASE
Y% B % 1,486,277,0007 7T
ZERER(BERARE
1,158,555,0007T) ° ZFEE
BN T4505EE750E 2 F
MEFE - BRAGHR K
SBER T ZFHURIH
o AEBEMEERD AT
IS E Y EEIR TS LR
A o ZEMEMREL -

(i) ZeBEBERTRMEER
Z IR B R T A E iU —
M8 B FE AR AR SRR AE -
ZERBERR—FABE -
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)
The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days, depending
on the products sold, to its trade customers. The following is
an aged analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date
at the end of the reporting period which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates:

HBHEE @«

(a)

0 -90 days 0£90H

91 - 120 days 91&120H
121 - 150 days 121£E150H
151 - 180 days 151£180H
Over 180 days 180H A E

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the Directors has delegated the
management to be responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals for any customers. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year. 87%
(2012: 87%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable under
the credit grading system used by the Group.

As at 31 December 2013, entrusted loans amounting to
HK$1,405,331,000 in respect of repayment due after 12
months from the end of the reporting period are classified as
non-current assets. In addition, entrusted loans amounted
to HK$258,258,000 as at 31 December 2012 had been
reclassified from current assets to non-current assets.
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B2 REMERERR Kii‘E

NRERERER(E
$%l%%ﬁ%%ﬁ2%%%
H&ERA1208 - RTAHERN
Euuﬁﬁ){ E/\iﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ% ”“"
(B AFERR B BlMEE )ﬁ%@
IR 2 BRERE N B Z B EA AT
FUNNE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT 5T
4,332,227 3,862,697
770,032 746,373
423,567 383,927
165,251 159,011
72,317 62,150
5,763,394 5,214,158

EEMNTAHEER - NEER
s ARG EEHHBERP
ZEREE EECADERRE
BEAANEFECEEREN
EE#E - BEZRERTS

FEFEERM - 87T%(ZT——F

87%) 2 & 5 i Ut R 3K 4 360 B =
A - WEAEEFRBZEH

HEFEz mERERTS

RZE—=F+ZZF=+—
A RIEHRBERE =
BRABIHERZERER
1,405,331,000 7 75 o R IE
MEVEE ° LA - —E—=
Ft+ZF=+— EZ%%EM
258,258,000/ 7L 2 B E) & B
EFDEEERDEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$751,559,000
(2012: HK$683,040,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as the Group considers that these debtors are financially
stable and the management has taken action to recover the
outstanding balances. The Directors are confident that these
amounts are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 136 days (2012: 125 days).

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired at the reporting date:

(a)

Overdue: AER -

0 - 30 days 0£30H
31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 - 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days Q0B E

HtMBEE®

BEZRAEMBUERERKRE

NRERZRRER )
AEBEEHEEERBREE

HOREWER  AEREAS
751,559,000 L (=T —— 4 :
683 040,000 7T ) * R IRE

[=EcEp $¢ljtﬂﬁdczz
“*hlﬁ{’ﬁﬂjmﬁiéﬁaﬁé% R
AAASERA ZEBEBHA
PSR BEEEDHFERW
Bl REELEHNTE - LA
12 ZEFRBEDARAAYKE o
AEERZERBIEFHI
ARG - ZERRR 2 F
HEREK A186H (=T — 4 ¢
1258) °

RBER  BREERECE
SRR 2 BRE DTN T -

2012

—E——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
275,569 174,630
238,422 287,250
165,251 159,010
72,317 62,150
751,559 683,040
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
overdue over 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables between 120 and 240 days
are made based on estimated irrecoverable amounts by
reference to past default experience and objective evidences
of impairment determined by the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of the estimate future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the end of
the reporting period. The Directors considered that the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The following is a movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts:

29. HttBMKEE

(a)

FHHEER

Balance at beginning of the year
Written off as uncollectible

HEH AU B 2 IR
Impairment losses recognised on receivables #RREUBER 2 R EEE

FRAE

Balance at end of the year

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$758,650,000 (2012: HK$572,319,000) which have been
placed either under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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ESRHEMERKRRRTE
NREREZERERSE)
WA ERBRAEREH240A A £ 2
JE U BR 3R — AR SR IR - AR
EEHZERBRERZEE L&
% o BREEN F120F 2408 2 &
FRERWEIRR 48 - Hh2ERET
REEGEEETT 2 et Ak E S
B ER] - BEZREEERIE
BRI (B BLLA R A B AR AT IR
FAREERERERZE8
%:o

HEEE 5 R 2 ATUE 1
B BEFAROEEEE®RS
HEERRL  AEEERES
FEUMBRREME R 2 EAES -
EEZRR - AREYESAES

EERE  BRAZERSH R
BEOH -
RERERZEHOT
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT 5T
572,319 559,306
(7,699) (13,818)
194,030 26,831
758,650 572,319

REZEREEBEMERCE RE
ZESRERWER  BEHRAR
758,650,000 (=& — =4 :
572,319,000/ 7T ) * % & H B
BB IS NEIE T 2 508 ©
AEE L S AR EFE T
A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(©

Bills receivables
Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2012:
90 days) at the end of the reporting period.

Included in trade and other receivables and bills receivables
are the following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the group entities to which
they relate:

29. EMBBEE»

(b)

Us$ ETT
HK$ BT
Euro BT

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. At 31 December 2013, the bank balances
and deposits carry interest at the prevailing market interest
rate which range from 0.01% to 3.8% (2012: 0.01% to 4.4%)
per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are pledged bank
deposits of HK$126,002,000 (2012: HK$162,891,000) at 31
December 2013 which are pledged to banks to secure short-
term banking facilities of the Group.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had bank balances and
cash that were either not freely convertible or were subject to
exchange controls in the PRC, amounting to approximately
HK$3,529,591,000 (2012: HK$2,271,093,000).

(c)

W ERE
REBEREERRS ARE
& RZEMNOB(ZE—=
fF:908)ZA e

B MEMERERRERR
BEETINEEERBREY

BEEBUINEREHEZ AR ¢
2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
1,906,908 1,855,862
874,910 827,550
45,568 27,575

RITHEBRREE

BITHBERBESPERAEER R
EzBEREIHMA A=A
FUATZEBRITER - K=
T—=—F+-F=+—8"
RSB RIFHRIZBITH S F R
ZNT0.01EEI8E(ZT—=
F:NFO0NEE44E)FTE -

RZE—=F+=-A=+—
B RITEHEBRSBERE
1 $8 17 77 3 126,002,000 8 JT
—Z— T4 @ 162,891,00078
TL) RS ERRITERTYE
RITER - ERAEEE AR
TTREREERR -

RZE—=F+=-A=+—
H A& ETABEHHAKR
BT B IEE G AR
RzBETHEBERESO A
3,529,591,000 8 T (=& — =
£ 2,271,093,00056 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE
29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 29. HitBBEE
(c) Bank balances and cash (continued) (c) RMITHEBRRAS(E)
Included in the bank balances and cash are the following RITHB RIS BIETIINEE
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional HEEIARE 2 ThRE B AN E e
currency of the group entities to which they relate: B2
2013 2012
—EB-—=£F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Us$ £ 682,154 564,697
HK$ BT 1,961,396 816,344
Euro = 7,781 11,341
JPY H 78 32

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 30. EZRHEMENERRKR
BILLS PAYABLES AR

2013 2012

—E—=5F —EF—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

Trade payables EE Y ANE 2,726,572 2,738,658

Accrued expenses JEIRE A 595,178 577,905

Payables for acquisition of properties, BEWE - BELREBDH

plant and equipment FETTRIE 568,500 791,046

Receipt in advance TR A 314,596 343,389

Other tax payables HhENFIE 161,408 206,659

VAT payables FERTIZ(ERS 127,133 130,983

Other payables H BRI 129,721 170,772

4,623,108 4,959,412

Bills payables ERE& 715,412 874,954

5,338,520 5,834,366
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

ﬁ% RE ﬂﬂ@'ﬁ' EEZI’A
BNEE -
25

SHRERRLE - EREZAHN
EN R REEAITIAT -

2013 2012
—E—=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT 7T

0 - 90 days 0—90H
91 - 180 days 91—180H
Over 180 days 180H A E

2,083,147 2,077,403
466,563 503,700
176,862 157,555

2,726,572 2,738,658

All bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days at the end of
the reporting period.

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

REEPTA RN RERES SRS HRE
BRIZMIOAZA °

B REMENERRENRERET
FINGEEER 2 AR UING T
AHEZEE

2013 2012
—E—= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT THT

us$ e
HK$ BT
JPY H
Euro BT

1,156,818 1,133,254
239,410 163,305
3,864 21,459
1,490 3,124
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iR ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE
—
31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. WITHEE
2013 2012
—2—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Bank loans RITER 23,123,857 17,255,698
Trust receipt loans ERkEER 555,743 503,382
23,679,600 17,759,080
Secured BER 566,524 590,480
Unsecured (R 23,113,076 17,168,600
23,679,600 17,759,080
Carrying amounts repayable*: AEBZREE
On demand or within one year FEERS N —FR 6,052,666 4,432,602
More than one year but not more than two years —4FLA_HB BB E 7,221,364 5,111,766
More than two years but not more than MELAEETBB=F
three years 6,942,429 4,384,292
More than three years but not more than =FETBBRT
five years 2,968,116 3,353,941
More than five years BART 495,025 476,479
23,679,600 17,759,080
On demand or within one year JEERKEN—FA 6,052,666 4,432,602
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that are AN IS B4 RS B BRT
not repayable within one year from the end of —FREEEFHFEREK
the reporting period but contain a repayment BRER(PIEREARE)
on demand clause (shown under current ZIRITIEEREE
liabilities) 1,119,724 1,301,679
Amounts due within one year shown under TAERBBEEZ BN —FA
current liabilities BEIg 7,172,390 5,734,281
Add: Amounts under non-current liabilities o SEREaE A 16,507,210 12,024,799
23,679,600 17,759,080
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * JER @ FIRE R B AN EE BRI
loan agreements. e
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4= /&
31 . BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31 . ﬁE(‘fT{E E(%E)
Included in the above bank borrowings are the fixed-rate bank R-ZE—=F+_-_A=+—8 LR
borrowings of HK$14,245,000 (2012: HK$745,049,000) at 31 TIEEEEAENREMEARE Best
December 2013 which are repayable within five years from the end of AFREREZTEBIRITEE14,245,000
the reporting period. FIT (ZF—4F :745,049,000/7T) °
The rest of the bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which B TBRITEEATIBLEE  FEXRNT
carry interest ranging from HIBOR +1% to PBOC interest rate (2012: RITEEFEIMEZFBIAREITF
HIBOR +0.54% to PBOC interest rate) per annum. R(ZZT——F : RTREEREMN0.54

EEREARBITHE)TE -

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, certain bank loans and trust receipt RZE—=FExk-_FT—=—F+=8
loans of the Group are covered by corporate guarantees given by —t+—H AEEETFHRITERRET
Kingboard Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the WIEEREAEE —R2EHENBER
Group. AR EER A FRBEARIER -
The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to REFRTEEZEBRMNE(HERAS
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as TR )EENT ¢
follows:
2012
T
Effective interest rates BIRA=
Fixed-rate borrowings TEEE GO GRS 5.05% 10 6.16%
6.00/Z £6.48/E 5.05/2%6.162
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE G 0.88% to 6.03%
1.1EZ6E 0.88/£%6.03E
Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated RITEEBETINEEEE 2 HEN
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities BEEEIINEE T E 25

to which they relate:

2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET

us$ eV 2,129,965 1,074,770
HKS$ BT 21,368,301 15,564,379
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. ELERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised TRARNREAE R AR FREEHEAD
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting MRAZITERELERBEGR(BE)ULE
periods: > #E)
Fair value
Accelerated Write-down ~ changeof  Revaluation Undistributed
tax Tax of  investment of Hedging profits of
Oepreciation losses inventories  properties  properties  instruments  an associate Total
REN% —lERT

MEREAE  REEE  HEME OTERE®  WREE WATR ZAOREA aif
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0O  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKS000
TAL TAL AL TEL AL TEL TAL TEL

At1 January 2012 W-E2--£-f-A 41,343 (12,522) (19,933) 146,234 - (2,210 - 152,852
Exchange adjustments Eq R “ - - (35) - - - (39)
Acquired from acquistion of WE-FHBLAAMER

a subsidiary (Note 37) (Rit3tar) - - - - 94,778 - - 94,778
(Creatt) cherge to consolidated (;tA) /TR aRER

statement of proft or loss maEax(ED)

for the year (Note 12) (1,941) - 4,621 179 - - 11,515 14,374
Charge to equity for the year NEREERR - - - - - 2,210 - 2,210
Utlised during the year FEECHA - - - - - - (11,519) (11,515)
At 31 December 2012 RE-—E+-f=1-H 39,398 (12,522) (15,312) 146,378 94,778 - - 252,720
Exchange adjustments B % 1182 - - 4001 - - - 5273
(Credi] charge to consoldated (GTA)/MBEREE

statement of proft or loss paBRR(NH1?)

for the year (Note 12) (3,101) - 476 264,135 (3,057) - 11,326 269,779
Utlised during the year AEEEHA - - - - - - (11,326) (11,326)
At 31 December 2013 W-E-=F+-A=1-H 37479 (12,522) (14,836) 414,604 91,721 - - 516,446
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continueq)

For the purposes of the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

R IE )

ETRERBREENBEREGA M
RRK 2 TRABEMIELIEE - AT RZ
FR TR IR AL AR (R R 7 B 3R A0 IR B
TEHEI AT -

2013 2012
—E——fF —ZF—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET TETT

Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIEAE
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E

521,196 258,118
(4,750) (5,398)

516,446 252,720

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 amounting to HK$9,850,242,000
(2012: HK$8,347,663,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2013, deferred tax assets of (i) approximately
HK$12,522,000 (2012: HK$12,522,000) in relation to unused tax
losses and (i) approximately HK$14,836,000 (2012: HK$15,312,000)
in relation to write-down of inventories have been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has unused tax losses amounting
to approximately HK$733,318,000 (2012: HK$434,357,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability
of the future profit streams. All tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

FECEMSRERTE  BZTTNF
—A—Bi HRRRBENHERRR
HATHRELZ 5 A1l SR 2 B S BUE 30
o RRAIZHABEMBARIEZZZTN
F—A—BRERRZ RHE RS 2B
RF 2 %8 /59,850,242,0008 70 (=& ——
4 1 8,347,663,000/70) © ANEEI K
MR BEER BN A SRR A LB
- RARAEEGLT B O =58
ZEfE - BAMREEBTETSR
A R g kB o

RZE—=F+ZA=+—8 ")
ERAXRDATEBBZECHESE
E#912,522,0008 L (=& — = 4F :
12,522,000/ 70) : K (i) BT E
ZIEER B E E %914,836,0008 T (=
T——4F : 15,312,000/8 7T ) B A A&
BE4RE AR R IR o

NZZE—=F+=-_A=+—H0 ~&H
KB IEE1847733,318,000/8 (=
T— 4 1 434,357,000/ 7C) o HIAE
SETERT AR R R OB - B T R AT AR
RIERIEEE - 2 EPRIEE BT ER
e o
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

33. k&

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEI10BTZEBR
Number of
shares Share capital
R EE IR
HK$’000
FET

Authorised

SETE

At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and W-_ZT——F—HF—H -

31 December 2013

—E——F+ZA=+—HRK
—E—=F+-A=+—H

1,200,000,000 120,000

Number of shares
BRHEE

Issued and fully paid
At beginning of the year
Exercise of warrants (see Note 34)

Bonus issue of shares

BRIRMARE
REH 854,666,764
110 R REE

(RPIE34) -
FIRREAT 170,933,472

At end of the year

REL LPEPER 854,666,864

On 29 May 20183, the Company issued 170,933,472 bonus shares on
the basis of two bonus shares for every ten existing ordinary shares.
The bonus shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2013
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares in issue.

166 KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #E{c T5EE

Share capital
IR
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET

854,666,764 85,467

17,093

102,560

R-ZB—=FRA=-+HRB  KAF
BTREEEBERBETRBRAKAE
f5£47170,933, 472841 f% - BE_-F
—=F+-A=t+—HILFERN - T
THBRRBE A EHEBEEEBETRN=Z
BREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =%

34.

35.

—=E+ASt+—BIEE
WARRANTS

On 2 March 2010, a bonus issue of warrants (“Warrants”) to the
shareholders of the Company on the basis of 1 warrant for every 10
shares held by shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 26 April 2010,
was proposed. Consequently, 84,473,904 Warrants were issued,
conferring rights to the holders of the Warrants from any time on 5
May 2010 up to 31 October 2012 (both days inclusive) to subscribe
for up to an aggregate of 84,473,904 shares of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$40 per share (subject to adjustment),
representing an aggregate subscription price of approximately
HK$3,378,956,000.

The fair value of equity component of the Warrants was amounted to
HK$675,791,000 based on the quoted price of the Warrants at the
first day of their trading on the Stock Exchange and the amount was
transferred from retained profits to warrant reserve as a bonus issue
of warrants.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 100 new shares of the
Company were issued on exercise of the Warrants. The remaining
outstanding 83,690,086 Warrants were expired on 31 October 2012.
The balance of warrant reserve was transferred to retained profit.

No new warrant is granted at 31 December 2013 and during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

SHARE OPTIONS

(@ Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company
The Company adopted its first share option scheme on 11
May 1998, and such share option scheme was terminated
upon the adoption of its second share option scheme (“2002
Scheme”) on 2 July 2002 for the duration of 10 years. In
view of the changes to the Listing Rules, a new share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 23 March 2009. The 2002 Scheme was
accordingly terminated on the same day without affecting
the rights of holders of any options granted and outstanding
under the 2002 Scheme.

34.

35.

R ERE

m*”f%iiﬁfa AAFIERE
AR-ZZE—ZTFNA -+ SBZIEAR
Thi%ﬁZhﬁﬁﬁqﬂmh%L
(wh%ﬁn EELEREHRRG
TER— 1D RN HEE - H1% © 84,473,904

hﬂh%ﬁﬁ% &%ﬁ&%‘ﬁ%
HEFH AHER —ZET-TFRAR

AEE— ff_¢+ﬂf+ A(B#E
BEMA) ABERIZVZRBEETRR
hm@m(T%uﬁﬁy?%fﬁmﬂ
84,473,904 AN A KD - A HLRBE
SR 493,378,956,000/8 7T °

wh%‘Z%E%%2“$ﬁ%
675,791,00078 7T+ FABE A BT B {E X
E&ph%ﬁZﬁFfm %@ﬁm%

Bm M ERERREE RS - (ERAF
RARPEF BT -

HE-Z——F+=-A=+—HLLF
E AR RREISETEMDS ET
100 B A8 2 &) 5 A% 19 ﬁTﬁ*ﬂ@
83,690,086 BB IEEN T ——F+
A=+—H%H- wh%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%
B RBIEF o

R-F—ZF+-A=+—AREE
BoSE Ao B LA
BRI

BriERE
(@) ADTEEE LB

g

RRARR—NANEFRA+—
BB H A A & T RO A
g HRZELBEEER

“EZFHEABERRE
—ESEtTEZEEBRE

ﬂﬂﬂ_gi_iﬂﬂb 1M 4%
t MR EMRAZRE - K
RAREER=ZZEZNF=A
—tT=ZRARZARARRE
AIRE LHE—BHBEER
B ([ZeT8l]) - —FF
FEEITE L MREF A& LE
H—_FT_FHERETEMND
B R ARITEZ BB RE
FAAZENEIZZE -
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35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

Under the Scheme which is valid for a period of ten years,
the board of directors of the Company may, at its discretion,
grant options to subscribe for shares in the Company to
eligible participants (“Eligible Participants”) who contribute to
the long term growth and profitability of the Company. Eligible
Participants include (i) any employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity in
which the Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”),
including any executive director of the Company, any of such
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (ii) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (i) any
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (vi) any person or entity who from time to time determined
by the Board as having contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group based on his or
its performance and/or years of service, or is regarded as
valuable resources of the Group based on his/its working
experience, knowledge in the industry and other relevant
factors. The subscription price for the Company’s shares shall
be a price at least equal to the highest of the nominal value
of the Company’s shares, the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of an
offer of the grant of the options and the closing price of the
Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
date of an offer of the grant of the options. The options must
be taken up within 28 business days from the date of grant
upon payment of HK$1 and are exercisable over a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence from the date of acceptance
of the offer of the grant of the options but shall end in any
event not later than ten years from the date of adoption of the
Scheme.
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35. BEEERE

(@
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RIEBREAATF2Zt8 0 K
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35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group (excluding
options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Scheme. The limit on the number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Group must not
exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of the Company’s shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
under the Scheme or other schemes of the Group in any
12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1%
of the Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant unless
approved by the Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

On 21 March 2011, the share options under the Scheme
were granted with estimate fair values of approximately
HK$279,054,000. 25% of total share options were vested
immediately at the date of grant and the 75% will be split
evenly into three lots, which are vested at 21 March 2012,
2013 and 2014.

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 33,600,000 (2012: 28,000,000)
shares, representing approximately 3.28% (2012: 3.28%) of
the issued share capital of the Company.

35. BRBRE

(@

AAFEEEBLEREST
B(®

IR EZT 8 R A S E T E
B EE FIRE ZELE
Bk (F R IE R R L AT 8 AR
SEEEMEAME 2 HERE X
Wz B R ) 1T Em A
BT 2 ARNRIRGBE - &
TEBBARN BRI EZTE
HEIE Z1TRH10% - ERIE
Zrt I R A EE T AR B
FTA B %L M ARITERE R
2 BT AR M ME 7T {5 T v 2%
TZARRABRHEBERE T
SHBARD T TED BTG
30% ° REEH L B AR IEEM
+ @A 8 - AR EZE
SAREFAEMEETE
ERAZEBEBRE(REDT
FERERITEZBIEIE) &
TEMBITREFREITZAR
AIRNBE  THEBRARAR
REL BB ETRM1% - B
ERARBBRERBRASH
& BPERIES ©

RZE——F=A_+—8
ZrtEIIE TR B RE 2 (5T
AL 5279,054,000 T ©
BEBREBE Z225%NEE
HEENEE SR8 o 82 T 75% % F
BHHrRE=ZH DR —=
FE-=FR-_FT-0OF
ZHZt—BBE-

R_ZE—=F+_-_A=+—
B % EITE T A FEITHR
) #8 B = 33,600,000 fg ( = =&
— — % : 28,000,000%) * =
RAR T B EITRAL3.28%
(ZE—ZF :3.28%) °
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35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

35. BEEERE

(@@ Employees’ share option scheme of the (@ A2TEEELBERES
Company (continued) £-[6))
A summary of the movements of the number of share options FER - HERIE N 2B ERRRE
under the Scheme for the year is as follows: SEEn T
Balance at Exercise price
1 January 2012 per share
and  Adjusted after Balance at Exercise (adjusted after
31 December bonusissue 31 December price bonus issue
Date of grant 2012 of shares 2013 per share of shares)  Exercisable period
R-B--F
-A-A
R=E-ZF R=B-Z%
+=R=t+-H +=A=t+-H BRITERE
RitiAH NEs  ARBTERE e BRITEE (ARRTERZ) FEH
(Note i (Note i)
(PfFi) (PfyFi)
Under the Scheme
Zatdl
Granted to Directors
KTEE
21 March 2011 15,800,000 3,160,000 18,960,000 HK$40.70 HK$33.92 21 March 2011 to
407057 339287 22 March 2019 (Note i)
“F-—%=A=t-H “F-—%=A-t-BE
“F-AF=AZtZA
UiED)
Granted to employees
RTES
21 March 2011 12,200,000 2,440,000 14,640,000 HK$40.70 HK$33.92 21 March 2011 to
40.70%TT 38928 22 March 2019 (Note i)
“E—%=f-f-H B =
ZZ-NE=A=tZH
(Brfss)
28,000,000 5,600,000 33,600,000
Exercisable at
RUT RS T8
1 January 2012
“Z-Z%-A-H 7,000,000

31 December 2012
“E-—#+t-A=t-H 14,000,000

31 December 2013
“E-ZFtZA=t-H 25,200,000
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35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a) Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)
Notes:

(i) The share options under the Scheme were granted on 21 March
2011 at an exercise price of HK$40.70 per share. 25% of the
total share options are vested immediately at the date of grant.
The remaining 75% will be split evenly into three lots and will be
vested at 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing price of
the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$39.55.

(ii) Pursuant to the bonus shares issued on 29 May 2013 (note 33),
the share option granted prior to the bonus issue was adjusted for
the dilutive effect on the same basis of the bonus issue, which is
two bonus shares for every ten existing ordinary shares.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$31,840,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$74,907,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company under the Scheme.

(o) Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
The 2002 Elec & Eltek Employees’ Share Option Scheme
(the “2002 EEIC Scheme”) had been terminated in November
2011 without affecting the rights of holders of any options
granted and outstanding under the 2002 EEIC Scheme.

The 2008 Elec & Eltek Employees’ Share Option Scheme (the
“2008 EEIC Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of
EEIC at the extraordinary general meeting of EEIC held on 21
April 2008 and was adopted and took effect from 9 May 2008
upon approval by the shareholders of the Company.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme which shall be administered by
the committee of directors of EEIC as authorised by EEIC’s
directors, is open to full-time employees and directors of any
company within EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent group
and of an associated company of EEIC, subject to certain
conditions being satisfied.

35. BRBRE
(@ AAFEEEBLEERES

2l
i -

(i) ZE BB T ELEBRER =
TE-——F=-A-+—-8BF
i 1TEE A E L0705
T o B IEREREE 2 25%
RELBHAEEE - 4T
5% R=4H D5l
RZTE—=—F - ZFT—=
EZZ—MF=A=+—H
BB ZERHAMSN A
R RIR A B U T {E 539.55

BT °

(i) BRER=ZFT—=FHA
T A ETRAAR (P
33) ' MHEITRIR FEOEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

(continued)

The 2008 EEIC Scheme entitles the option holders to exercise
their options and subscribe for new ordinary shares in EEIC
either at an “Exercise Price”, which equals to the average
of the last dealt prices for EEIC shares for a period of 5
consecutive market days immediately preceding the relevant
date of grant, or at a discount to the Exercise Price as defined
earlier, whereby the discount shall not exceed 20% of the
Exercise Price.

Options granted at the Exercise Price or at a discount to the
Exercise Price may be exercisable after the first or second
anniversary respectively of the date of grant and expiring on
the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

The duration of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is 10 years and the
total number of shares in EEIC that may be issued shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of EEIC shares in issue as
at the adoption date or subject to certain conditions being
satisfied, 15% of the total issued shares of EEIC excluding
treasury shares from time to time. The total number of EEIC
shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the total number of EEIC shares in issue from
time to time.

Share options may be accepted within 30 days after the
relevant date of grant accompanied by payment of S$1.00
(or its equivalent) as consideration by the participants,
but the grant of share options do not confer rights on the
option holders to any dividend entitlement or to vote at any
shareholders’ meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(©)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
(continued)

In accordance with the terms of the 2002 EEIC Scheme and
the 2008 EEIC Scheme, share options issued by EEIC vest
over five years from the date of grant.

There was no share options granted under the 2008 EEIC
Scheme since its adoption.

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

The share option scheme of KLHL (the “KLHL Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
shareholders of the Company on 18 May 2007 and 25 June
2007 respectively. The KLHL Scheme has taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The KLHL Scheme would be valid for a period of 10 years.
The directors of KLHL may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in KLHL to eligible participants who
contribute to the long-term growth and profitability of KLHL
and include (i) any employee or proposed employee (whether
full-time or part-time and including any executive director),
consultants or advisers of or to KLHL, any of its subsidiaries
or any entity (“KLHL'’s Invested Entity”) in which KLHL and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “KLHL Group”) hold
an equity interest; (i) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of KLHL, any of its
subsidiaries or any KLHL's Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier
of goods or services to any member of the KLHL Group or
any KLHL’s Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the KLHL
Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological
support to the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity;
and (vi) any shareholder of any member of the KLHL Group
or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s
Invested Entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The subscription price of KLHL’s share in respect of any
option granted under the KLHL Scheme must be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon
the payment of a consideration of HK$1. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date upon which the
offer for the grant of the option is accepted but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The directors of KLHL may, at their absolute discretion, fix
any minimum period for which an option must be held, any
performance targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the KLHL
Scheme and any other share option scheme of KLHL
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of KLHL in issue as at the date
of approval of the KLHL Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of KLHL from time to time.

The total number of shares of KLHL issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
Company in general meetings.

On 21 March 2011, the share options were granted with
estimate fair values of share options are approximately
HK$114,945,000. 25% of total share options were vested
immediately at the date of grant and the 75% will be split
evenly into three lots, which are vested at 21 March 2012,
2013 and 2014.

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of shares of KLHL
available for issue under the KLHL Scheme is 100,000,000
(2012: 100,000,000) shares, representing approximately
3.33% (2012: 3.33%) of the issued share capital of KLHL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

35- SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

35. BEBERE®

(c) Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL (c) BEEENEEEXER
(continued) FESTEI(8)
A summary of the movements of the number of share options FR - EEEBIRELERREST
under the KLHL Scheme for the year is as follows: 2B 2 BB E S EHL
T
Balance at
31 December 2012,
Balance Transferred 1 January 2013 Exercise
at during and price
Date of grant 1 January 2012 the year 31 December 2013 pershare  Exercisable period
3
+ZA=+-8"
—§-z£-3-8
RZB-ZF k-E-ZF
BLiAH —-A—-BM&ER RERER T-A=t-ANEH BRTEE TED
Granted to directors of KLHL
RFEEEEREE
21 March 2011 64,000,000 (10,000,000) 54,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
17 May 2017 (note)
“E——%ZfA-1-H 65T ZT——4ZAZt—HZE
“F—+FRA++LA
(Bi3E)
Granted to employees
KTES
21 March 2011 36,000,000 10,000,000 46,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
17 May 2017 (note)
“E——%ZfA-1-H 65T ZT——4ZAZt—HZE
“F—+FRA++LA
(BiE)
100,000,000 - 100,000,000
Exercisable at
RAT BB T1T6
1 January 2012
—Z--f-f-H 25,000,000
31 December 2012
“Z--E4+-fA=1-H 50,000,000
31 December 2013
ZZ-ZFtZR=+-H 75,000,000
Note:  25% of the total share options are vested immediately at the date Mzt BEBREATEZ25%NE

of grant. The remaining 75% will be split evenly into three lots and
will be vested at 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing
price of KLHL shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$6.3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

35 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 35 @%Eﬁﬂﬁ%(z@)
() Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL c) BEHEEREEELER
(continued) REFTEI(®)
The Group recognised the total expense of approximately HE-_T—=F+-_A=+—
HK$12,916,000 (2012: HK$30,847,000) for the year ended ALEEE  AEERBEERE
31 December 2013 in relation to share options granted by REEOELEREREZMAY
KLHL. #%E12,916,0008 L( —F——
4 1 30,847,000/7T) °
36. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 36. FFIERBRAER

Share of net Share option

assets of reserve of a
subsidiaries  subsidiary Total
—EMEAT
M E AT ZEB%
EEFE BRERE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——F—H—H 5,879,954 69,052 5,949,006
Share of increase in fair value of JEMRAI R ERE N TEEZ
available-for-sale investments =N 43,837 - 43,837
Share of exchange differences arising from  E(SRFTE MK LMES 2
translation of foreign operations EHZERE 797 - 797
Share of exchange differences arising from — JE{EEITE 2R G HEE+ 2 [E
translation of presentation currency WERE 4,774 - 4,774
Share of profit for the year eI A FE = T 409,934 - 409,934
Recognition of equity-settled share-based RUARRAD =S 3R
payments RRER D - 30,847 30,847
Acquisition of additional interests in UGB BB R B RS ME 2
subsidiaries (760,873) - (760,873)
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary U BE — R B B~ Al A 2
(Note 37) (M5E37) 58,559 - 58,559
Dividends paid to non-controlling SR FHEBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FEFEIRAR 2 IR B (283,370) - (233,370)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+_A=+—H 5,403,612 99,899 5,503,511
Share of increase in fair value of AR EREANFEZ
available-for-sale investments =0 6,657 - 6,657
Share of exchange differences arising from  E(FEFTEIMBE S MEL 2
translation of foreign operations MEH =58 1,425 - 1,425
Share of exchange differences arising from  E(RREFEZH/EEMAEE 2
translation to presentation currency b 5 = %A 129,337 - 129,337
Share of profit for the year EIEARFERA) 330,214 - 330,214
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ HEZRILARRMD RT3
payments KR A - 12,916 12,916
Acquisition of additional interests in U BB B A BIEEIMERS
subsidiaries (216,732) - (216,732)
Capital contribution from non-controlling B B A B) 2 FRIE I I R
shareholders of subsidiaries HE% 1,165,522 - 1,165,522
Dividends paid to non-controlling YRNFHBEATZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FEFERR AR 2 Bt B (231,134) - (231,134)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H 6,588,901 112,815 6,701,716

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z— =44

177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had the
following acquisition of subsidiaries:

(@)  In April 2012, KLHL further acquired 55.27% equity interest
in Linkfit Investments Holding Limited (“Linkfit”), a company
engaged in investment holding whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in hotel ownership and operation in the
PRC, from independent third parties at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$214,906,000.

Before the acquisition, Linkfit was an associate company
of the Group in which the Group held an equity interest of
29.67%. Upon completion of the acquisition of 55.27% equity
interest in Linkfit, Linkfit became a 84.94% owned subsidiary
of the Company. This acquisition was accounted for by the
acquisition method of accounting.

Acquisition related costs incurred were insignificant and were

recognised under administrative expenses in the current year
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (oniineq) 37. WIBMIE QR

(a)

(continued) (a) (&)
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration transferred: EHESMRE
Cash paid EANE D 214,906
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities RKERAHIBINERERZ
recognised at the date of acquisition: EEREEZAYE :
Investment properties "EMHE 138,100
Properties, plant and equipment W - WE KRB 514,522
Prepaid lease payments FEHEERE 112,000
Inventories =y 5,407
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 2 5 R HE MR R TE FRIA 8,539
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RIS 9,467
Trade and other payables B 5 M H M FERBRFK (166,148)
Taxation payable FERTFRIR (4,819)
Bank borrowings RITEE (133,457)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEA & (94,778)
388,833
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WIBFTEE 2EE
Consideration transferred EEoNE 214,906
Add: Fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit A : Z Al A MRS~ A F(E 115,368
Add: Non-controlling interest 0 JEEARAR R 58,559
Less: Net assets acquired B TR EFE (388,833)
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect WE—RBIfBATRZRER
of the acquisition of a subsidiary: HEeEEEER
Cash consideration paid BfIReNRE (214,906)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITHEBEIRS 9,467
(205,439)

The fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit held by the
Group and the fair value of investment properties, properties, Z
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments at the date
of acquisition was estimated by Messrs. Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified valuer not connected to the
Group, by reference to market evidence of transaction price

for similar properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (oniineq)

(a)

(continued)

The fair value of other assets acquired and liabilities assumed
approximately the gross contractual amounts. The fair
value of previously held interest was accounted for at the
proportionate share of the net assets of Linkfit.

The Group recognised a gain of approximately
HK$30,377,000 as a result of the remeasurement of
previously held interest in Linkfit. The fair value of previously
held interest in Linkfit was estimated by the management
of the Group with reference to per share fair value of the
purchase of 55.27% as the control premium is insignificant.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Linkfit contributed
HK$47,087,000 to the Group’s turnover and made a loss of
HK$36,356,000 for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2012, total
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 would
have been HK$37,532,481,000 and profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 would have been HK$2,512,293,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2012, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (oniineq) 37. WIBMIE QR

(b)  In May 2012, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
together with shareholders loan in Delta Realty Limited, a
company principally holding a commercial property in Hong
Kong for rental purpose, from an independent third party at a
cash consideration of approximately HK$1,299,803,000. This
acquisition was accounted for as purchase of assets.

(b)

RZE—ZFHAH FAEE
M — & B % = W Delta
Realty Limited 2 100% A% # &
REEHR  ZRBIEERFAE—
BEBREMEELERS
B & B4 A1,299,803,000/%
T o WIRWEIEEEE AR -

HK$'000
FAET
Consideration transferred: EHESMRE
Cash paid SRR 1,299,803
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised RKERAEIBINERERZ
at the date of acquisition: EEREE:
Investment properties "EMHE 1,314,800
Other receivables and prepayments HAtb eI AR SR R FE 50E 1,624
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 698
Other payables H b FEFBRTK (17,319)
Shareholders loan RERER (951,000)
348,803
Assignment of shareholders loan to the Group MANEEEERRER 951,000
1,299,803
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect WiE— R B AR ZEER
of the acquisition of a subsidiary: ReEEBEARE -
Cash consideration paid BEfReNRE (1,299,803
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITHEBLIES 698
(1,299,105)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. LHEMBEALF

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had the

following disposal of a subsidiary:

In September 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Elec & Eltek Thai (Singapore) No.
2 Pte. Ltd., to an independent third party, for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$25,621,000. The net assets at the date of disposal

were as follows:

BE-_T —_FFT-A=1THALFE
A AREHEN T —HAHNBAR

RZZE—Z_FhA  ~EER—2EL
BE=FHEI2EREM B R REec &
Eltek Thai (Singapore) No. 2 Pte. Ltd.Z
Z AR - e EX7825,621,000/8
T MHERB EEFENT

HK$'000
FAET
Consideration received: 2RE :
Deferred consideration BEERE 25,621
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KREEEREBENEZSW
control was lost:
Properties, plant and equipment M - BE REE 33,396
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H M FEER 3K 36,916
Bank balances and cash IRITHEMB RIS 30,264
Trade and other payables B 5 M H M FERBRFK (84,095)
Net assets disposed of HEBEFE 16,481
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—ENBARMEE 2K !
Deferred consideration EERAE 25,621
Net assets derecognised SRRz BEFE (16,481)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the net  REEREEREFHEEZBFIZHEATE
assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity to EFERFIEL =R
profit or loss upon disposal 682
Gain on disposal B A 2 e 9,822
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRSREFHE:
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERSKASEBEER (30,264)

The deferred consideration was settled in cash by the purchaser on

19 February 2013.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

39. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS  39. BAXR K Hb&iE

Capital expenditure contracted for but not gt E ET 4B RALGE B ISR

provided in the consolidated financial e BB 2 EARTH -

statements in respect of:

— acquisition of properties, plant and —EEWE BB MERE
equipment

- capital injection in an unlisted investment  —3F FHI&8& 7T &%

Other expenditure contracted for but not M ETHE RN R A B S RE
provided in the consolidated financial ERBE 2z Emx
statements in respect of:

— acquisition and other expenditures relating — B BARF R REE 2 W HE
to properties held for development Hinsz B

2013 2012
—E=—= — T4

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

265,662 345,546
6,308 6,308

271,970 351,854

1,661,550 1,836,113

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. HREE

(a) The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
HK$628,386,000 as at 31 December 2013 in respect of
mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the Group’s
properties. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values
of these financial guarantee contracts of the Group are
insignificant at initial recognition and the Directors consider
that the possibility of default of the parties involved is remote,
accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception of
the guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period
as at 31 December 2013.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured
by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees
will be released by banks upon delivery of the properties
to the purchasers and completion of the registration of the
relevant mortgaged properties.

(a)

RZE—=ZF+=-A=+—
[SRERVIN/N ﬂﬁﬁ%$%@%¥
BERZIEBRTETREED
emwmm%nﬁﬁ £F
RE - NEBZEUHERE
B R FERYSERR LT
R BERBISEHER
RATRE R/ - Eilt - RZF
—=ZF+=-A=+—08 - RE
RENFSGRREPRE R
W EERT(TEE -

ERREAEBEVEERNEE

RARITRME - ZFRERBERN

%%x%% R R ARRIB Y
B RO FRERTTARRR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Defendants”) were
named as a defendant in the Supreme Court of Bermuda in
respect of an allegation of the affairs of KBCF had been and
or were being conducted in a manner which was oppressive
or unfairly prejudicial to the non-controlling shareholders of
KBCF. The petitioner was seeking an order to the Defendants
to repurchase all of the KBCF’s shares held by petitioner
at the price to be fixed by a valuer or Supreme Court of
Bermuda. As at 31 December 2013, the case has not yet
reached the stage of drafting witness statements and is still at
an early stage in the litigation. As a result, management and
the lawyer of the Group are difficult to provide the estimates
on the outcome of the case. Accordingly, no provision for
liability has been made in connection with this claim.

OPERATING LEASES

40.

41.

HARE B

(b)

HEZT——F+=ZA=+—H
IHEE - RATARIOHHB A

R[S DEBERERRERE
TKBCFE B kIR 1T
F R T ERE S TA B AR R
KBCFIEIZAR AR ER - 25 AT K
R EIEGEMERES
BERETHERELMBEEH
ANFTHEKBCFRE D c R—ZT—=
F+-A=1+—8 Rk

ABABRERLERE - BN
EA.#*"%JJH&@ At - EEERA

SEAEMANRHREHERMA
it EHit - BERZRRAHREE
TR -

LR

The Group as lessee: AEBERBEEA :
Lease payments charged to the consolidated A (& ,@%ATE SRR Z
statement of profit or loss during the year e
— for premises - '—’F@%
— for plant and machinery — [ MRS

Under the leases entered into by the Group, all lease payments are
fixed and predetermined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE
41. OPERATING LEASES (ontinueq) 41. BEMRN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments RBEBBLRE R - REBRBEART
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: B e HAON BRI N ZHETE
BN IR
Premises Plant and machinery
LS R R s
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Z2—= —E——F et T4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET FHET FHET
Within one year N—FR 7,800 13,152 277
After one year but not later R—FRER
than five years HER 17,683 18,807 -
After five years REFE 46,935 44,836 -
72,418 76,795
2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
The Group as lessor/licensor: AEEESHBA BEA

Rental income credited to the consolidated ~ MERE AGAEBER Y
statement of profit or loss during the year, WA - BB HELD
net of outgoing amount of approximately 160,288,000/ 7T
HK$160,288,000 (2012: HK$123,043,000) (=% ——4 : 123,043,000/ 7T) 372,200 278,031

Licence income credited to the consolidated RERET A4 & Bk 2 IFHEFE A
statement of profit or loss during the year, A B30k $5476,000,00078 7T
net of outgoing amount of approximately (ZZE——4 : 6,000,000/ %)

HK$6,000,000 (2012: HK$6,000,000) 114,000 114,000
The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties for REBVREMEYLBERETZTE
periods up to seven years at fixed predetermined amounts. HEEFINAAL  HHSEEALE -
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41. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 41. @%*ﬂ%’g(%)

RREPHEERE R - RIBEHERED
EREEEREEHE18) 2 T A HH

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of leasing of investment properties and licence assets (Note
18) which fall due as follows:

REMLD - AEBEARRRKIERERIEA

AR ATHIR RS

2013 2012
—_E—= —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T

Within one year R—FR 388,019 336,069
After one year but not later than five years R—FEZERAEFR 417,466 311,338
After five years RAFE 358,389 361,944

1,163,874

1,009,351

The Group licences its Licenced assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

REFBERGZE  AEERED A
ZERENERNREEREENT

o Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group .
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

EREEAE T @A &%
B EREATITEZEDNE
RS —HFEETOR—E
AEhEmBL  YHB—FX
171,000,000/ ;L3 & 75 £ H 17
FHEMSTE  RIEREFERR

o After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may .
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by

ERECHAET_@EAK K&
B A A EREAE LA DR —(E

serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice ASELXEmBEN - KRIEEREFER
in writing. e o
42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 42. EEEH

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank deposits of
HK$126,002,000 (2012: HK$162,891,000) and an investment
property of HK$1,560,000,000 (2012: HK$1,314,800,000) are
pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities of the Group.

NZZE—=F+=-A=+—0 ' A£H
R 1T 126,002,000 L (T — =
F 162,891,000 L) k —HEEY
%1,560,000,000 8 T (=& — =& :
1,314,800,00078 7T ) E 3 F4R1T « 1EA
REBERITRHEMNEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE —T—=F+_A=+—HItFE

43. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 43.

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group and are invested in the funds
under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme are
members of both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and it’s employees and each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (increase to
HK$25,000 effective on June 2012) for the MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the required contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state-
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$110,009,000
(2012: HK$89,627,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2013, contributions of HK$9,347,000 (2012:
HK$7,402,356) due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end
of reporting period.

RIRBRIFTE

AN E R 2N —IEAR IR 3 R IR E
1 fI5E M 2 e BB SR T 8 ([ B R KT
2D RRESHIMATESEAINR =22
ZFE+Z AR ZaHIEATESETE
([8FERETE]) - ST EERA
SECEESHFE - WIRERBER
ANEHZES - PRI TES TSI Z AT
E2NBERKAZIZIEE  RKKA
BB B RATESTEIZKE -
FIER—_ZEEFE+ AR 2B MAK
SEZHEENELNMEHESE - R
BoafEeatal  BEERERESAAR
EEMRBRAS%ATEELMER - &
AR A LR £25,0008 7T (A=
— 4N ARRIEZE25,000/87T)

R EERR &R APEBRTEE
ZEREBRKEIKE - ZEHBR
AARHFEXHZE B D HRARNK
FHE - UXNERRERN - AEBEFEK
B EIETT 2B ERAAIPHH

o
N

MEERKE  BESHEREA
REPERFTEZINZHANEB
110,009,000 & 7t ( = T — = &F -
89,627,000 7, ) + W A BB o
R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—8 " R
2 BARS B H7 2 £ 309,347,000/ 7 (= F
— T 7,402,356 ) WA FE
A8l - RERERREHREREDL
S e
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44,

The Group entered into the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year:

Sales of goods to subsidiaries of MALEBESKFENHIRE 2B
a shareholder with significant influence NRIHEER
to the Group

Purchase of goods and machineries from r’TZlSE BESRFENNRE KB
subsidiaries of a shareholder with significant T%Bﬁ B m s

influence to the Group
Sales of goods to a non-controlling

A — R 2 B 2 FFERCR

shareholder of a subsidiary HEER
Purchase of goods from an associate W — A N RIREE R

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments at
31 December 2013 was an amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of approximately HK$19,083,000 (2012:
HK$12,448,000) which was in trade nature. The Group allowed
credit periods of up to 120 days (2012: 120 days), depending on the
product sold to its related parties.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayment at
31 December 2013 was an amount due from an associate of
approximately HK$38,845,000 (included in trade and other payables
at 31 December 2012 was an amount due to an associate of
approximately HK$10,377,000) which was in trade nature. The
related party offers credit periods of up to 120 days (2012: 120 days)
to the Group.
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FHEALRS
AK%@E@%F&% BEATHEFRETZEKXR
THUWTE

2013 2012

—_E—= —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT FABT

819,290 980,479

825,688 781,268

71,297 70,466

214,646 244,991
RZF—=F+ZA=t—0 B85k
HE R R R BN FEREERE 5
’I%-EZWEH&—FW% A2 IEFERR IR
E#919,083,000/8 L (=ZF — = :
12 4480007575) $E@mﬁﬁﬂ@/\

TRHEZEEHSREA1208(=

# :120A) - %E?Fﬁﬁé’%z;zuuﬁﬁi °
RZE—Z=%+-A=+—H8 E5

REMERERREMFECEBR
EoME R —MHE AR RIEY
38,845,000 L(R=ZT—=F+=A
=+—8" ﬁ%&ﬁ‘rﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁm@%%
NE SME 2 A — R & QB IBY
10,377,000/87T) ° ﬁﬁﬁ@}\imzx‘%
EELZEEAERA1200(Z
£ :1208) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

44.

BFBREAXTRF @

IEEEASMS
FR - EEREMIEERABZMHSE
T -

2013 2012
== —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT 5T

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

SRt
HESANES R
VAR AR FE A 3R

194,640 188,828
1,805 1,710
24,945 62,012

221,390

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

EERTIBTBRABZMERHHEER
EEEMEMNBEIRBALRTEBEERE

F oo
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Issued and fully

45. AREEEMEBAEFE

(@ KMEARAN—RER
ARBEBHBRARR-E—=
ERZFE-—_F+-A=+—H
=31

registration and paid share capital/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
TR/ BEARARRE/ TEERE
WEARER BRREEHY SRER ZERRE TEEH
2012
%
Jamplan (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands* US$1,000 100" Investment holding
EERERHE 1,000%7T RAHR
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates Co. Limited  PRC? US$29,466,000 7310 Manufacture and distribution of
ERBR)EERERAR e 29,466,000%7 laminates
HERD WEARR
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates PRC! US$17,936,546 7310 Manufacture and distribution of
Co. Ltd. M 17,936,546 7T laminates
BEBE)EESRERAR HERD WEARR
Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem Co. Limited ~ PRC! RMB96,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of
BETILELERAR e A #596,000,00070 coke
HERDHER
Kingboard (Hebei) Chemical Co. Limited ~ PRC! RMB357,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of
BAEMLCIERAR HE AR 357,000,000 chemicals
HERHEIIER
Kingboard Natural Gas Chemical PRC! US$18,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of
(Chong Qing) Limited e 18,500,000%7T methanol
BEARRI L ER)BRAT HERHETE
Kunshan Guo Rui Development Co. Ltd.  PRC 1S$90,000,000 100 Property developments
EILERESERAT i 90,000,000 BHELR
Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical Co., Ltd. ~ PRC HK$30,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of
EERECIERAG e 30,000,000 7T caustic soda
HERD HIEH
Kingboard (Lianzhou) Fibre Glass PRC' US$13,700,000 7310 Manufacture and distribution of
Co. Limited HE 13,700,000%7C glass fabric
BEEN BB EERAT HERDERRE LT
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. RNATEXEMBA TS
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)
(@  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEBARN—RERE
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration and paid share capital/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL/ BRIRBRRAE/ rEBRE
WRARER BRREEHE EfER ZEBRE TEEY
2012
—E-CF

%

Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited®  Bermuda* US$72,250,000 47.20+ Investment holding
ARE 72,250,000% 7 RERR
Kingboard Investments Limited Hong Kong* HK$8,000 100 Investment holding
BEREARAA Eie 8,000% 7 REBR
KLHL Cayman Islands* HK$300,000,000 7310 Investment holding
REBEER HEkE’ 300,000,000/ RERR
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC? HK$242,800,000 7310  Manufacture and distribution of
TFRERERERAR i 242,800,000 laminates
SERA EEIER
Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC 1US$32,000,000 7310  Manufacture and distribution of
RB(IHICIERAR i 32,000,000%7T chemicals
BERA B TIER
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) Co., Ltd ~ PRC! 1S$32,010,000 7310  Manufacture and distribution of
REREREWERAR i 32,010,000% 7 laminates
SERA EEIER
Elec & Eltek International Holdings Limited ~ Bermuda/ HK$ 122,467,240 100 Investment holding
Nz R AR R EERAR Hong Kong* 122,467 240% 70 RERR
BRE/ B
EEICe Singapore* US$113,880,000 69.41 Investment holding
g 113,880,000 7 RERR
Kaiping Elec & Eltek Company Limited PRC? 1S$49,520,000 65.94  Manufacture and distribution of
BERAREEFERLA g 49,520,000% 7 PCBs
BUE R SEIRIRSAR
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. RNATEXEMBA TS
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)
(@)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEBARN—RERE
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration and paid share capital/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL/ BRIRBERE/ rEBRE
WEAR AR BRREEHE ERER ZERRE TEEY

Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.3 Company Limited PRC? US$87,800,000 65.94 Manufacture and distribution of
AR ZEEFE=ARAR) e 87,800,000 7 PCBs
BUE R SREIRIRSAR
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.5 Company Limited PRC? 1S$30,075,100 65.94 Manufacture and distribution of
AR ZEEFERERAR) e 30,075,100%7T PCBs
BUE R SREIRIRSAR

Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou) Electronic PRC? 1S$95,596,000 68.02 Manufacture and distribution of

Company Limited el 95,596,000% 7T PCBs
KRZEBEMEFERAT BUE R SREIRIRSAR
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek Microvia PRC? 1S$24,800,000 68.02 Manufacture and distribution of

Technology Limited P 24,800,000% 7T PCBs
BMERZENENRBR AR BUE R SREIRIRSAR
Huizhou Chung Shun Chemical PRC! 1S$40,290,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of

Company Limited ! 40,290,000% 7T phenol/acetone
EMBRIIERAR BERDHAY,/ R
Shi You Chemical (Yangzhou) PRC! US$ 144,237,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of

Co., Ltd A 144,237,000%7C chemicals
EREIEMERAR BERAHILIER
Kingboard Electronic Raw Material PRC! 1S$30,000,000 7310 Manufacture and distribution of

(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd ! 30,000,000% 7T laminates
REETHRIRBRAT BERH EERER
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) Petrochemical ~ PRC RMB250,000,000 7310 Manufacture and distribution of

Company Limited ! AFR#250,000,0007T chemicals
REEBED)BILARLR BERA B IER
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(@) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

*

The Company directly holds the equity interest in Jamplan (BVI)
Limited. The Company’s equity interest in all other subsidiaries is
held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.

These companies are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of KLHL and
are regarded as non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company
because the Group has control over the financial and operating
policies of KLHL.

These companies are listed on The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

These companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

5. ZNAEEMEATFE

(#&)

@ MBLAN-—RELE)

* A B EEF B Jamplan (BVI)
Limited 2 f% # o 28 A B 7 Bt
BHAMWE AR 2 RIESSE
i@ Jamplan (BVI) Limited & #
A -

# WERKERBRAF @ &
BE2 T BRLHES

* IERR RERERERZIE
%é%ﬁﬁ[ﬂﬂ% B WA
SEYHZBEEEROPE R
KEBREAEE R
ARFPEEEHEMBAR

e HEARRTMEELRS
ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ AET

8 HEARREBHER S
*ﬁ’lﬁ RIEIRLET ©

1 HEARTAIINEBERE
ﬂ/ﬁ&¢.ﬁ24°

2 HEARTIAFRINEES
m%ﬁiﬁ*lﬁio

EXRFIIREERARIEFEAKEE
BREEZARFMBRR - EFRR
FIHEMM B AR ZFHEEBNITE

BB A RN FREREEITEMNE
BES -

W
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. RATEEMBATEE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)
(continued)
(@  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEARN—RER
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other RIREELERER - AQAHE
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of BHAREEBFEANEMMER
these subsidiaries operate in PRC. The principal activities of A o ZEMB AT AID HRE
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: B8 - ZEWBRARIZEEE
BREWT :
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEK FTEEK MEARSA
2012
—E— 4
Manufacture and sale of laminates The PRC 24
SLERIBEE AR &
Macau 2
JBFT
Thailand 1
R
27
Manufacture and sale of PCBS Hong Kong 2
B35 K S EN AR BE AR aBE
The PRC 13
i
Macau 3
JEFT
Thailand 1
ZE
19
Manufacture and sale of chemicals ~ The PRC 22
SEREE(L TER R
Properties Hong Kong 2
LES B
The PRC 38
H
United Kingdom 3
HE
43
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. AATEEMB DTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, b) BE-Z—=6R-_FT——%F
the Group further acquired certain subsidiaries with a +ZA=Z+—HLEFER &K
consideration of HK$108,478,000 (2012:HK$605,885,000). EBRE - FWESETHEBER
As a result of the acquisitions, the difference of 7+ £ {8 A 108,478,000 % 7T
HK$108,254,000 (2012:HK$154,988,000) between (ZZ=— — % : 605,885,000
the consideration paid of HK$108,478,000 (2012: JT) o W EREBEH D ANNRE
HK$605,885,000) and the amount of non-controlling interests 108,478,000/ L ( —F——F :
adjusted of HK$216,732,000 (2012:HK$760,873,000) was 605,885,000/% T ) B B & IE
directly recognised in goodwill reserve. 7 B % R A 55 216,732,000/ 7T

—Z— =4 :760,873,000%
7T) 2 B K Z §8108,254,000 7%

JL(=F — =% : 154,988,000
BT BN B RER

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) BEERFEBRBRREZR
have material non-controlling interests ZIZTERENMBRAF
15
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREHNAEEER EARFEE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling BERERZIEZEHRBNE
interests: NI

Proportion of

Place of incorporation ownership interests Profit (loss)
Name of and principal and voting rights held by allocated to Accumulated
subsidiary place of business non- controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
MR R FERBRREEHRTE AREFERRRZ EHE 2
HELREE TEERBEY BRRREELS A (&8) RRESR

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“ECfF ikl T mblgetay — T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TEx FAT

KLHL Cayman Islands

BEBRR HEEE 25.86% 26.90% | chPhbeE| 313,100 | eiREGAN 8,176,396
EEIC Singapore

EEIC Ik 30.59% 30.59% 32,696 82,950 829,989 874,562
KBCF Bermuda

KBCF BRE 52.13% 52.80% 717 (RN 531,681 524,376
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests

BEIERBRRER B AEANBAR 1,999,375 J<7:: R V44

(N (ONalN 5,503,511
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZE =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(©
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Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

KLHL

RRBEEMBARFE

(%)

() BEREXRFERERRER
ZHEEZEREEWBOAF
B(@)

BEEER

2013 2012
—E—=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT 7T

12,026,534 11,220,567

9,932,792 8,053,266

4,042,646 3,243,322

Current assets mENEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities nEE &
Non-current liabilities JERBEE

3,892,144 3,139,825

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

RRFIFE ARG

12,918,293 11,808,165

1,106,243 1,082,521

Non-controlling interests Sl e
Revenue B

12,798,302 12,483,227

Expenses, other gains and losses

Pz~ HAthiRes e 18

11,588,419 11,317,286

Profit for the year

A A

1,209,883 1,165,941

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of the Company

Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of KLHL

RAREE AT

ENYNSESEI G S
JEAE 5 F

EERER AR R S
JEAE 5 R

895,004 850,841

312,178 313,100

2,701 2,000

Profit for the year

AR A

1,209,883 1,165,941




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

KLHL (continued)

(%)

45. AAREEMMBARFE

() HEEERFERRRER
ZIEZEREEMBOAF

@)

BEEEER(E)

2013
—B—=F
HK$°000
THERT

Other comprehensive income attributable 2~ &1 8 A 4G E 42 mI S
to owners of the Company
Other comprehensive income attributable 78/ 7] JE122 A% A% B8 A %5 B 1
to the non-controlling interests of the Hib2mEies
Company
Other comprehensive income attributable 75518 [ 1R JEHE AR AR B ME RS
to the non-controlling interests of KLHL &L E 2 s

295,832

103,185

27,506

Other comprehensive income for the year 74 & E b 2 Y28

426,523

Total comprehensive income attributable  ZKA &)3G AFE(L & E R A5
to owners of the Company
Total comprehensive income attributable 72K &) 312 A IR SR AE R FE(L
to the non-controlling interests P HENEBTE
of the Company
Total comprehensive income attributable 35578 Bk FEIE AR R AEZE
to the non-controlling interests of KLHL — fE{h & 54458

1,190,836

415,363

30,207

Total comprehensive income for the year AR E 2 HE WS 4258

1,636,406

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3z 1~ F FE42E IR A 5 2 A% B,

2,500

Net cash inflow from operating activities & & %ISR ERAEE

1,037,276

Net cash outflow from investing activities % & 2SR &% HIF 58

(1,365,366)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing B & EENPTISIRETRA
activities OftH ) 8

391,588

Net cash inflow (outflow) WERACRL ) FRE

63,498

2012

HK$'000
TET

123,094

45,297

2,226

170,617

973,935

358,397

4,226

1,336,558

25,930

745,067

(673,069)

(350,484)

(278,486)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE
45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. RATFBHBA TS
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY )
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) BEEEARFERBRER
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZEZEREHNBRIF
18(8)
EEIC EEIC
2013 2012
—EB-—=£F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Current assets REEE 1,547,107 1,824,529
Non-current assets JEMENE E 2,960,989 2,944,695
Current liabilities REAE 1,465,300 1,505,681
Non-current liabilities ErREaE 253,874 327,163
Equity attributable to owners PANCIEC Y SPN Yy
of the Company 2,713,269 2,858,981
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R R AR RS 75,653 77,399
Revenue B 3,938,384 4,135,123
Expenses, other gains and losses Fixz - H e RE1E 3,830,331 3,861,694
Profit for the year IR R 108,053 273,429
Profit attributable to owners of the ARAREHE ARG T
Company 74,187 188,217
Profit attributable to the non-controling 22 F13E{EARAR S M2
interests of the Company eyl 32,696 82,950
Profit attributable to the non-controlling  EEIC 342 I& % B #E %5 (3
interests of EEIC 1,170 2,262
Profit for the year AR R ) 108,053 273,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e BRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

EEIC (continued)

45.

KRB EEMBRRFE

(%)

c) BEEXRFERBRREDR
ZIZTERENMBRAF
15 (4)
EEIC(%&)

2013 2012
—E—=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TAETT

Other comprehensive income attributable 2~ &1 8 A 4G E 42 mI S

to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income attributable 78/ 7] JE122 A% A% B8 A %5 B 1

to the non-controlling interests
of the Company

Hit 2 E S

Other comprehensive income attributable EEICZE2E A% A% 54 25 FE 15 Eith

to the non-controlling interests of EEIC

M

6,833

3,011

Other comprehensive income for the year 74 & E b 2 Y28

Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable
to the non-controlling interests
of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable

AARFAEAREZEE SR

LYNSE S et Syl
NGk

EEICIFIR IR B SR 25 15

#

81,020 189,668

35,707 83,589

1,170 2,262

to the non-controlling interests of EEIC 2 EUkz542%8
Total comprehensive income for the year ANFEE 2 E WS 42%58

117,897 275,519

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 371~ F 3E1E AR A% B8 2 A% &

2,917

Net cash inflow from operating activities

548,387 782,301

Net cash outflow from investing activities

REXRBAGHRSRHFE

(348,504) (279,630)

Net cash outflow from financing activities

BEXRBAAGHRSRHIFE

(378,713) (615,061)

Net cash outflow

R FE

(178,830) (112,390
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZ = E—=F+-A=+—HILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. RATEENBA TGS
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) BEERFERBRREEZR
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZEZEREHNBRIF
185 (&)
KBCF KBCF
2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FABT

200  KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ##55E{t T&

Current assets BB E 1,292,624 1,827,309
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,657,610 1,062,511
Current liabilities mEaE 71,562

Equity attributable to owners of the riN/NSIEEYE PN ey

Company

2,845,132 2,770,553

Non-controlling interests

AR AR R 2 33,540

Revenue

e 468,782 490,039

Expenses, other gains and losses

M - Hablas REE 460,470 492 630

Profit (loss) for the year

AE A (5 18) 8,312

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the
Company

Profit (loss) attributable to the non-
controlling interests of the Company

Profit (loss) attributable to the non-
controlling interests of KLHL

Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interest of KBCF

ARFFE ARMEEN (&)
(4,896)
RVNSE S &t S iy
(&)
BERER R R R AR IR (5
M (E1R)
KBCFIFHE R SR M 2 FE A5 )45 7

(1,801)

Profit (loss) for the year

AE ) (B 18)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE —E—=F+_-A=+—HILFE
45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. KAREEMB A TEE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) BEEEARFERBREER
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZHEZEREHBLRIF
1B (&)
KBCF (continued) KﬁBCF( ®)

2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET

Other comprehensive income attributable 2~ &1 8 A EAE E 4 2 mI S

to owners of the Company 3,029
Other comprehensive income attributable 78/ 7] FE12 A% A% B8 %5 FE 1

to the non-controlling interests Hivz2mEkaE

of the Company 1,115
Other comprehensive income attributable 7518 [ 1R JEFE AR AX B ME RS

to the non-conrolling interests of KLHL ~ fE{GE 2 EKES 2,274
Other comprehensive income (expense)  KBCFIEIZE % I 58 # 2 FE (5 Eoth

attributable to the non-controlling 2HEKE(FXR)

interests of KBCF (20)
Other comprehensive income for the year 784 & H ith 2 E Yizs 6,398
Total comprehensive income (expense) AR FEA AEMEERE(FX)

attributable to owners of the Company ~ 48%& 35,217 (1,867)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AN/ &) FEFEA AR B #E 25 FE 1R

attributable to the non-controlling 2HEWE(FX) @5

interests of the Company 12,285 (686)
Total comprehensive income (expense) 55 & B IR FEIEARAR R AE RS

attributable to the non-controlling EEEmEkas (X )@

interests of KLHL 26,065 (1,401)
Total comprehensive income attributable KBCF3E12 A% A% 5 75 fE (5 2

to the non-controlling interests of KBCF Ui z5 #4458 4,983 7,761
Total comprehensive income for the year AR & 2 H W 4258 78,550 3,807
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4% % % 7&Fr153R & n A %58 158,806 419,718
Net cash outflow from investing activities 1% & 2158 & m i F58 (4,732) (8,436)
Net cash outflow from financing activities gi& & BIFT1SIE & H 58 (2,972) (10,930)
Net cash inflow B AFEE 151,102 400,352
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
2

RESULTS ¥E

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—ETNF ZE-TF IET——F IT——F s
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FAT FET FET
(Restated)
(KeED))
Revenue =] 23,863,373 33,891,522 36,559,072 37,290,319 | <l ik oy
Profit before taxation B R AT 3,214,180 5,166,338 3,719,637 2,926,993 3,899,973
Income tax expense FrS R (248,484) (516,221) (513,061) (420,028) (608,350)
Profit for the year IR [k A 2,965,696 4,650,117 3,206,576 2,506,965 3,291,623
Attributable to: FE(R1DEE -
Owners of the Company VN/NEIESFEUN 2,396,030 3,620,818 2,594,142 2,097,031 2,961,409
Non-controlling interests IR R R A 569,666 1,029,299 612,434 409,934 330,214
2,965,696 4,650,117 3,206,576 2,506,965 3,291,623
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNEFE ZFTF F—F T —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET FAET FET
(Restated)
(g =%))
Total assets BERE 43,374,536 51,267,210 60,459,227 60,934,532 | /bl ery]
Total liabilities BEBHE (17,250,420) (19,684,875) (26,464,841) (24,785,386) | |LLili2:0)]

26,124,116 31,682,335 33,994,386 36,149,146 | “lojclieliclls]

Equity attributable to owners  ZRAFHEA A
of the Company FEh R 21,506,417 25,770,174 28,045,380 30,645,635 | <ibillii okl
Non-controlling interests FEFERR IR B AR 4,617,699 5,812,161 5,949,006 5,503,511 6,701,716

26,124,116 31,682,335 33,994,386 36,149,146 | “lojckiecll]
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Rralz B E R

The financial information of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and 31

December 2012 is as follows:

2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000
THET

4,488
901,749
403,798
128,589

23,426,287
535,302

25,400,213

4,790
6,646,134
13,669,177

20,320,101

5,080,112

Total assets BERE
Properties, plant and equipment W - BB RS
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE
Other receivables E A EYAR R
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BB A RIFUE
Bank balances IRITHERR

Total liabilities BERRE
Other payables E A fERTARR
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A RIFIA
Bank borrowings RITIEE

Capital and reserves A& K R
Share capital %N
Reserves (Note) e (I EE)

102,560
4,977,552

5,080,112

ARFR_E—=ZF+-_A=Z=+—AHK=ZF
——F+-A=+—BHZPBEEHOT

2012

HK$'000
TET

5,399
839,675
204,981

54,148
18,109,777
20,268

19,234,248

3,817
5,747,300
7,963,193

13,714,310

5,619,938

85,467
5,434,471

5,619,938
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

ARTZBBER

Note: Bfi&E :
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption Warrant option revaluation Hedging Retained Total
premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
RiaE EABOEE RREIERE BEBERERE REASHEE oy REEH EyNats
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL TAL FHL FHT FHEL FHL FHT
Balance at 1 January 2012 —E2-—5-f-Az
AEER 4,474,830 1,911 669,521 167,039 (75,065) (10,930) 253,440 5,480,746
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - - - 96,027 96,027
Increase in fair value of available-  AJ#HEREAFE 1
for-sales investments n - - - - 48,455 - - 48,455
Investment revaluation reserve R 2 R A B EE
released on disposal - - - - 15,795 - - 15,795
Impairment loss on AHEEREZRERR
available-for-sale investments - - - - 6,741 - - 6,741
Gain on cash flow hedges Rg iz e - - - - - 13,089 - 13,089
Deferred tax recognised in relation 34 St &) 2
to change in cash flow hedges  ZIEIERE - - - - - (2,159) - (2,159)
Total comprehensive income  AEE 2 ENEEE
for the year - - - - 70,991 10,930 96,027 177,948
Issue of new shares from RATHE R R T
exercise of warrants Z%ﬁﬂ%“ 5 - 1) - - - - 4
Recognition of equity-settled RNEREERHTA
share-based payments N3 - - - 74,907 - - - 74,907
Final dividend for the year H2-T—
ended 31 December 2011 +-A=+-ALEE
- - - - - - (213,667) (213,667)
Interim dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 +-A=+-BIEEE
ZHRERE - - - - - - (85,467) (85,467)
Transfer upon lapse of warrants R 2R AEE A& - - (669,520) - - - 669,520 -
5 - (669,521) 74,907 - - 370,386 (224,223)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=Z——%F
‘\‘ B=t+—Bz#H% 4,474,835 1,911 - 241,946 (4,074) - 719,853 5,434,471
Profit for the year FERER - - - - - - 196,993 196,993
Increase in fair value of available- Lﬁﬁﬁ}x BRATEZ
for-sales investments #m - - - - 67,784 - - 67,784
Investment revaluation reserve  ERE 7 A EfLEE
released on disposal - - - - (69,803) - - (69,803)
Total comprehensive income  AEE2EYEEE
for the year - - - - (2,019 - 196,993 194974
Issue of new shares from REBIRMETZ
bonus issue Gl (17,093) - - - - - - (17,093)
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREERHF
share-based payments Hm - - - 31,840 - - - 31,840
Final dividend for the year HE-Z2—F
ended 31 December 2012 + _Jr ALLFE
2RHRE - - - - - - (358,960) (358,960)
Interim dividend for the year HE-Z2-=F
ended 31 December 2013 +-A=+-BIEE
] - - - - - - (102,560) (102,560)
Special dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013 +ZA=t-ALEE
2HRIRE - - - - - - (205,120) (205,120)
(17,099) - - 31,840 - - (666,640) (651,893
Balance at 31 December 2013 =
‘\‘ A= + A48 4,457,742 1,911 - 273,786 (6,093) - 250,206 4,977,552
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KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2nd Floor, Harbour View 1, No. 12 Science Park East Avenue, Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong
BV HEEBNEEF2HRR NER1250BE IR 18248

Tel &3F : (852) 2605 6493 Fax & : (852) 2691 5245

E-mail £ : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site #831t : http://www.kingboard.com
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